
 

AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

APRIL 19, 2016 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 
 

 
 

 

City Board of Equalization meeting at 7:00 p.m. on April 19, 2016 
 
A. ROLL CALL:  

1. Roll call of all City Commissioners. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS; 

 
D. MINUTES: 

1. Consider approval of the following minutes: 
i. April 5, 2016 Board of City Commission Regular Meeting 
ii. April 5, 2016 Board of Equalization meeting  

 
E. PUBLIC HEARING: 

1. Public hearing for first consideration of Ordinance No. 1238 
creating PUD District 2016-01 for Lakewood 8th Addition First 
Replat. 

2. Public hearing for first consideration of Ordinance No. 1239 
creating PUD District 2016-02 for Ash Grove Estates Addition. 

 
F. BIDS: 

1. Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving 
Contract and Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 
201, Project 2015-11 (Meadowlands Addition). 

 
G. CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Consider approval of monthly bills. 
2. Consider approval of the following proclamations: 

i. Bike to Work Week (May 16-20) & Bike to Work Day (May 
20). 

ii. Dacotah Lions STRIDES Walk for Diabetes – May 15, 2016 
iii. National Music Week – May 1-8, 2016 

3. Consider Employer Participation Agreement in the North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System Law Enforcement Retirement 
Plan 

4. Consider approval of Special Sunday Openings at the Mandan 
Moose 425 on May 15, July 3, and June 5, 2016. 

 

  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

April 19, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 

 
5. Consider approval of the following Site Authorizations for the 

American Foundation for Wildlife from July 1, 2016 through June 
30, 2017: 
i. Lakewood Bar & Grill 
ii. Last Call Bar 

6. Consider approval of the annual Liquor License, Special B Liquor 
License Permit and Special Sunday Permits for Dacotah Speedway 
from May 1, 2016 through Oct. 31, 2016 

7. Consider approval of Site Authorizations for Mandan Baseball Club, 
Inc. from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017: 
i. Powerhouse/501 
ii. Rock Point 
iii. Broken Oar 

8. Consider ballot language related to publishing the minutes of City 
Commission meetings. 

9. Consider Architectural Services contract with EPIC Engineering  for 
the Public Works Expansion Project 

 
H. OLD BUSINESS: 

 
I. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Consider recommendations from Mandan Growth Fund Committee 
i. Application for Restaurant Rewards sales tax rebate and 

interest buy-down program 
ii. Clarifications to the Retail and Restaurant Incentive Program 

requirements 
2. Consider visitor way-finding sign recommendations including 

design, locations, destination listings and issuance of a request for 
bids 

3. Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and 
authorizing the execution of a 3-way agreement for Water & Sewer 
Improvement Project 2016-10 Big Sky Additions(Jude Lane NW). 

4. Consider approving the Resolution approving Plans and 
Specifications and Resolution directing advertisement for bids for 
Street Improvement District No. 206, Project No. 2016-07 (Big Sky 
Additions). 

5. Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and 
authorizing the execution of a 3-way agreement for Water & Sewer 
Improvement Project 2016-02(West Hills Estates 4th Addition). 

6. Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving 
Resolution approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution of 
Plans and Specifications, approving Resolution determining 
sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and Resolution 
directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 
203, Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 4th Addition). 

7. Consider amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement between 
Mandan Park District and City of Mandan. 



Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

April 19, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
J. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

1. First consideration of Ordinance No. 1237 amending and re-
enacting Chapter 16, Article 4 of the Mandan Municipal Code 
related to the Emerald Ash Borer and Dutch Elm Disease. 

2. First consideration of Ordinance No. 1238 creating PUD District 
2016-01 for Lakewood 8th Addition First Replat. 

3. First consideration of Ordinance No. 1239 creating PUD District 
2016-02 for Ash Grove Estates Addition. 

 
K. OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
L. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS: 

1. April 30, 2016, 9 a.m. Community Clean-up – Dykshoorn Park 
2. May 2, 2016, 5:30 p.m. Working Session 
3. May 3, 2016 
4. May 9, 2016, Joint Session with Mandan Park Board 
5. May 17, 2016 
 

M. ADJOURN 
 
 
 

Public Communication  
A scheduled time for public participation has been placed on the agenda at 
Mandan City Commission meetings. The Board desires to hear the viewpoints of 
citizens throughout the City. Individuals wishing to address the Board are 
encouraged to make arrangements with the Board President or the City 
Administrator prior to the meeting. Comments should be made to the Board and 
not to individuals in the audience and be related to City operations and programs. 
The Board will not hear personal complaints against any person connected with 
the City. If a citizen would like to add a topic to the agenda, arrangements must 
be made in advance with the City Administrator or Board President. The Board 
reserves the right to eliminate or restrict the time allowed for public participation. 
The Board requests that comments are limited to three (3) minutes or less. 
Groups of individuals addressing a common concern are asked to designate a 
spokesperson. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of April 5, 2016 

Page 1 of 14 

The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on April 5, 

2016 in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.   

Commissioners present were Van Beek, Tibke, Rohr, Laber and Commissioner Braun 

was present via telephone. Department Heads present were Finance Director Welch, 

Deputy Police Chief Bier, City Attorney Brown, City Administrator Neubauer, Director 

of Public Works Wright, Fire Chief Nardello, Business Development & Communications 

Director Huber, Planning & Engineering Director Froseth, Planner Decker, Assessor 

Shaw, and Building Official Lalim.  Absent:  Police Chief Ziegler.  

 

B.         APPROVAL OF AGENDA:  Commissioner Tibke moved to approve the 

Agenda. Commissioner Laber seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous 

approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

C.         PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:  Mayor Van Beek invited anyone interested to 

speak for or against any items on the Agenda except for the two Public Hearings to come 

forward.  A second announcement was made inviting anyone to come forward to speak 

on the Agenda.  Hearing none, this portion of the Public Communications was closed.   

 

D. MINUTES: 

1.        Consider approval of the following minutes from the Board of City Commission of 

March 15, 2016 regular meeting.  Commissioner Laber moved to approve the minutes as  

presented. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous 

approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

 

E.         PUBLIC HEARING: 

1.         Consider establishing a restaurant rewards program (see Old Business No. 1). 

Business Development & Communications Director Huber stated that the purpose of the 

public hearing is to gather comments on a proposal that comes with recommendations for 

approval from the Mandan Growth Fund Committee (MGF).  The MGF Committee met 

and discussed the concept to more effectively attract restaurants to our community on 

February 18
th

 and March 10
th

. This presentation includes an explanation of the sales tax 

rebate program and an interest buy-down using the Bank of North Dakota (BND) Flex 

PACE program. A public notice was published in the Mandan News about this hearing. It 

was also published via a News Release through public media and also on the City of 

Mandan’s Facebook page.  Copies of the six (6) written comments received have been 

provided in advance to this Commission.  Director Huber stated that the proposal would 

involve rebating the 1% portion of city sales tax for five (5) years.  This is the 1% local 

tax that was approved by voters in 1991 for the purpose of economic development 

projects, property tax reduction, reducing infrastructure costs, and debt reduction.  The 

restaurant owner or property owner will still be required to pay taxes and there would be 

other local sales taxes paid and they will still pay the 1% restaurant and lodging tax, 

which is a tax for capital improvement projects that attract visitors to a community, 

restricted in use by state statute, the 0.75% tax for the sports complex that voters 

approved in June that was implemented on 10/1/15 along with the half-percent for the 

Morton-Mandan Burleigh-Mandan joint jail project. 

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of April 5, 2016 

Page 2 of 14 

The incentive will be performance based in that if they don’t sell there will be nothing to 

rebate. But if they are successful then there is a rebate available.  The Flex PACE interest 

buy-down will leverage approximately $2 in BND funds for every $1 invested by the 

City of Mandan.  That program will buy down the interest rate when a project is to be 

financed to as little as 1% for as long as the buy-down will last.  That buy- down period 

will vary based on the principal amount of the amount being financed.  There is some 

protection in that program because if the project would ever go into default or the 

borrower were to become delinquent on their payment, the installments for the buy-down 

are held in escrow by the BND and that account would then be frozen.  In both of these 

situations there will need to be business incentive agreements with outlined goals and 

claw back provisions if approved.  The Flex PACE component is being proposed to set 

aside $162,000 in the Growth Fund.  These are dollars that are generated from the sales 

tax and already set aside for economic development activities.  That amount is set aside 

to provide the local match for BND’s interest buy-down program providing that local 

match in the form of a forgivable loan which can act like a grant rather than a repayable 

loan as is the case for most projects.  The above outline provides the two types of 

components for the Restaurant Rewards Program.   

 

Mayor Van Beek announced this is a public hearing and invited anyone to come forward 

to speak for or against the matter at this time.   

 

Susan Beehler, a Mandan resident, came forward and stated that she has lived in Mandan 

for over 20 years.  She questioned why the City of Mandan is giving away consumer 

dollars that are paid for in the form of a tax that could go towards a property tax relief to 

a business or a potential business and also to creating that competition between existing 

businesses that have already been established here.  She stated she has spent 13 years in 

the hospitality industry realizing those services can go up and down and at times has to 

do with the service that one gives and the quality of the employees that you have.  

Regarding the tax incentive, she inquired as to a current rental program offered by the 

Mandan Growth Fund Committee to restaurants in the form of rent reduction?  Also, 

what about the incentive for storefront building improvements that is available to 

restaurants?   It is her opinion that when compared to Bismarck, the City of Mandan 

needs to stop doing that and she recommended that what Mandan has to offer should be 

set up differently than what Bismarck has to offer.  She suggested offering something 

different that would encourage people to drive from Bismarck over to Mandan.  She is 

not in favor of giving away tax dollars to businesses that may come to the community 

(and subsequently do not), when those dollars could be used by existing businesses.  It 

would take five (5) tax paying property homes to make up that incentive of that $10,000 

that a restaurant would get.   

 

Giving away money that could be used towards things that make our community better, 

not just saying we have another restaurant or whatever, there is no exclusion to make this 

something that is identified differently.  She voiced concern that those tax dollars could 

be better spent by improving businesses that already exist within city owned properties or 

towards improving law enforcement requests for bullet proof vests or improving security 

coverage for more help at local events.  She inquired why the city wants to give away tax 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of April 5, 2016 

Page 3 of 14 

dollars to businesses that should have in their business plan what they are going to make 

based on their clients in their niche that are in this market.  She suggested reining this in 

and not adding on another way to give away the tax dollars because it is not fair to the 

businesses that have been here.  She suggested using those dollars to invest in something 

that everyone in the community can benefit from by a property tax reduction, or 

increasing law enforcement security in the community.  It is her position that giving away 

tax dollars is not the best thing that can be done for the Mandan residents.  She noted that 

she does not believe there are any restaurant business owners on the MGF Committee, 

thus noting that the group is not represented well on the committee.  

 

Don Boehm, Vice Chairman of the Mandan Growth Fund (MGF) Committee came 

forward to speak. He stated when he has an opportunity to talk with people around the 

city, they repeatedly state “What we need are restaurants”.  They are tired of going to 

Bismarck all the time to go eat, we need more restaurants.  The only way to do that is to 

enhance programs so we can draw more businesses.  The MGF Committee has attempted 

many times to bring new businesses to Mandan.  (New) Businesses will not come on their 

own accord.  To say that there is no tax revenue that’s going to be derived, yes, we will 

give the 1% rebate back; but what is important is that these businesses that come, they 

will pay the property tax. The more assessed value you have in the city the lower the mill 

levy for everybody.  The restaurants also pay the one-half percent sales tax which goes 

towards the county jail.  They also pay a 1% city restaurant tax that also helps fund the 

capital construction.  They also pay the three-quarters of 1% which is what we need to 

fund the sports complex.  All the MGF Committee is trying to do is enhance or entice 

more restaurants to provide more options for Mandan and its residents.   

 

Wayne Papke came forward and stated he is not opposed to bringing restaurants to 

Mandan. However, he believes there are better ways to attract them to the community.  

He asked why the hospitality tax is not being used for this.  He said that is because the 

City of Mandan has already given that away for the next three (3) years to the YMCA; 

therefore, there is not anything left to give to the restaurants.  His point on that is that the 

City has given, (in different respects,) all the money out and therefore there is no more 

money to give out.  When the city starts dipping into the sacred cow “the sales tax” that is 

in his opinion, the last resource.  The (city’s) reserve funds are still intact, which is good. 

But this is the city’s last revenue item that can be given away.  He stated he agrees with 

Susan Beehler about the property tax. For every dollar given away within this  

Program, the taxpayer’s levy goes up 50 cents on the dollar.  Therefore the city is 

increasing the pressure on the taxpayer’s property taxes and increasing property taxes 

versus if the incentive was there paying down the property tax.  It is his opinion that by 

approving this, the property taxes will in essence be increased.  He also said that by 

approving this it would be unfair to existing restaurant owners who have paid all taxes all 

along, and received no such (tax) breaks from the city.  In comparison to West Fargo, the 

less government involvement, the better the city has done with their programs.  They are 

investing in the basics: police, fire, the infrastructure; and the businesses are coming 

along just fine because the city government does not get in their way.  He discouraged the 

passing of this program and encouraged the Commission to find a better way to offer 

incentives for restaurants to come to Mandan.  



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of April 5, 2016 

Page 4 of 14 

Don McGuire, a Mandan resident who is a part-investor of the Mandan Comfort Inn and 

Suites and is also a commercial contractor, came forward. He indicated that he has been 

involved with investments of businesses and stated that he is aware of a restaurant 

business who is interested in coming to this area. However, there is a good chance he will 

build in Bismarck rather than Mandan.  He said that when he showed the party the land 

by the Mandan Comfort Inn and Suites, these were the contentions:  The land in Mandan 

cost slightly less (than land in Bismarck) and the infrastructure is already in place. 

However, the cost of the building was the same but the Mandan property taxes will 

eventually be higher. However, there is more traffic and roof-top counts in Bismarck.  

Well, obviously he is going to Bismarck to build his place.  Mr. McGuire said that he 

agrees with Ms. Beehler and Mr. Papke’s comments about the sports arena matter as 

alluded to.  He said that he hears from customers who have stayed at the Mandan 

Comfort Inn and Suites who come to Mandan for events but the big thing is they are not 

staying at our hotel because there is no place to eat in that area.  People are coming (to 

Mandan) for the sports events but they are going to Bismarck’s restaurants and hotels.  

He pointed out that nationally and in western North Dakota, there are very few cities the 

size of Mandan that do not have a true restaurant /bar and grill.   

 

Mark Weide, Mandan Growth Fund Chairman, came forward and stated that the Flex 

PACE programs have been successful in Mandan in the past and pointed out that many 

jobs have been created, new facilities have been built and tax dollars have been 

generated. However, not everyone is successful (in their business) as there is no 

guarantee with anything.  The Restaurant Rewards Program has built-in clauses, and he 

reviewed some of those and said they are all on an earned basis.  The Flex PACE 

program is held in escrow.  If they don’t make their payments, the money is refunded 

back to the city.  There is a cap limit on it and it is spread out over the amortization of the 

loan or it can be bought down to 1% until it is used up.  He said that because the MGF 

was challenged to create a program to bring some restaurants into the community, which 

is a key thing the community is looking for, this is what was agreed upon and presented 

to the City Commission.  On behalf of the MGF Committee, Mr. Weide recommended 

approval of the Restaurant Rewards Program as outlined by Business and 

Communications Development Director Huber.   

 

Mayor Van Beek commented that a main complaint heard today is giving away taxes and 

that there are restaurants already established in Bismarck that will not do any good for 

Mandan. He does not agree with those comments. He encouraged Commissioners to 

think outside the box by offering some type of incentive. If the 1% sales tax is enough of 

a savings for a business to say “I’m giving up” the roof top counts or car counts in 

Bismarck (do not matter) and they decide to come to Mandan (to open their business), we 

hope they will be successful and we hope they will be a thriving business in the 

community that will serve the Mandan citizens. Mayor Van Beek stated he supports the 

Restaurant Rewards Program and that he is in favor of offering an incentive to 

prospective businesses to entice them to locate in Mandan.   

 

Mayor Van Beek provided a second announcement for anyone to come forward to speak 

on this matter.  Wayne Papke requested Mayor Van Beek to clarify his comment about 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of April 5, 2016 

Page 5 of 14 

restaurants coming to Mandan that are already available in Mandan.  Commissioner 

Tibke called for a point of order stating that anyone wishing to speak is to come up to the 

podium and speak for it to be proper.   

 

Mayor Van Beek asked for any further comments from the public or the commissioners 

and hearing none, this portion of the public hearing was closed.   

 

2.         Consider approving Resolution determining insufficiency of protests for Street 

Improvement District 206, Project 2016-07(Big Sky Additions). Planning & Engineering 

Director Froseth stated that on March 1, 2016, the Commission approved the resolution 

creating the district, Resolution approving Engineer’s Report, Feasibility Report and 

Resolution of Necessity for Street Improvement District No. 206, Project 2016-07 Big 

Sky Addition.  He said that in February 2016, optional public input meetings were held to 

get input from property owners within the district prior to taking the matter to the City 

Commission. Following the March 1, 2016 meeting, a notice was published in the 

Mandan News in accordance with ND Century Code and letters were sent to addresses of 

all property owners of record in this district.  The protest period ended April 4, 2016.  

There were letters of protest representing 6 lots received for this project which is about 

22% of the district area which is below the percentage of 50% required for protest.  It was 

recommended that the project move forward.  When this was discussed with the 

Commission on March 1, 2016, there was discussion of a base bid and an alternate.  The 

base that will be constructed will be to pave 31
st
 Street, Hillside Road, and Jude Lane 

(south of Hillside Road). If property owners install sewer and water before the paving 

project were to start, the project will start north of Jude Lane.   

 

Mayor Van Beek announced this is a public hearing and invited anyone to stand and 

speak for or against the project at this time.   

 

Marty Moen, representing HM4, LLC property owners at 1627 31
st
 St. NW, came 

forward to speak with concerns of a section of 31
st
 Street NW (from Sunset Drive to Lot 

7).  He is the owner of Lot 7 of the Missouri Valley Addition, stating that he is not 

opposing construction of street improvement District 206 Project No. 2016-07.  He said 

he is also the builder of this apartment complex.  But he indicated that he is protesting 

how the units are allocated.  He has surveillance cameras throughout the property and has 

conducted an informal traffic observation through the cameras and has seen zero benefit 

to his property and that building costs should be assessed to Unit 1627 on 31
st
 Street 

Northwest.  He stated he is aware of an informal observation of traffic that was done in 

order to figure out who benefits and he suggested that a more formal study of benefits 

would be appropriate to allocate out the costs of the project.  

 

Commissioner Rohr stated he observed the project site and commented that the easement 

road is rough and it is hard to drive through there.  Mr. Marty Moen stated there is no use 

for that easement and in case of detrimental weather no emergency vehicle would attempt 

to use that road.  It is not a necessary easement to use for the property as it was designed.   

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of April 5, 2016 

Page 6 of 14 

Jim Moen, JDS Holdings, LLP came forward to speak. He said that JDS Holdings owns 

lots 5 and 6 of Missouri Valley Addition (1611 and 1619 - the apartment buildings), and 

said that these properties will have no benefit from the proposed street improvement 

project so they should not be part of the assessment district. When these lots were under 

construction a temporary construction easement access was obtained from the owner of 

the adjacent property at Big Sky Estates Addition.  The temporary easement expired on 

12/15/15.  A permanent access road in the NE corner of the properties was constructed 

with access coming off Sunset Drive.  JDS shared the cost of that access road with the 

owner of lot 7, HM4, LLC.  HM4, LLC who granted an easement to JDS for access to its 

property.  The residents at 1611 and 1619 31
st
 Street use the unapproved gravel access 

point to Jude Lane on a limited basis.  As per the plat map of the project the Missouri 

Valley Addition lots do not connect with Jude Lane so the lots do not have access to the 

streets in the project.  JDS and HM4 were required by the city to make adjustments to the 

site plan to get approval from the Fire Marshal because the Fire Marshal would not allow 

temporary construction access easement to be used.  These adjustments allowed for 

adequate space in the private drives and parking spaces for fire department equipment to 

be able to loop through the property in order to enter and exit from the private drive off of 

Sunset Drive.  Due to the above, the normal traffic patterns of JDS tenants, it is believed 

that these properties should not be part of the proposed special assessment district.  Mr. 

Jim Moen said he does not object to the project, but he believes these lots should not be 

part of the assessment district.   

 

Mayor Van Beek announced once again that this is a public hearing and invited anyone to 

stand and speak for or against the project at this time.  Hearing none, this portion of the 

public hearing was closed.   

 

Commissioner Rohr questioned Director Froseth as to what percentage of the assessment 

district would be affected if these lots (owned by Jim Moen) were taken off?  Director 

Froseth stated that each of the properties mentioned was allocated four units of cost and 

each unit of cost was estimated at $26,000 so each property x 4 equals about $104,000 x  

3 properties would be around $315,000.  The total project cost is estimated at $1,264,680.  

The records do show an access easement.  Commissioner Labor inquired if the property 

owners were notified of the City Engineer’s evaluation and that it was fair and upfront. 

Director Froseth stated that public input hearings were held and letters were sent to all the 

property owners in the area.  At those meetings, there were discussions on the traffic that 

was observed using the roads and a lot of the comments were to the effect that a lot of 

traffic was observed.  He explained that what was proposed is four units per apartment 

property of cost allocation with each apartment building having either 36 or more units 

within. So it actually divides out to about 1 unit of cost per 9 living units of apartments.  

City Attorney Brown stated that the Engineering Department at this phase of the project 

has not determined which properties pay how much for this project.  That is determined 

after the conclusion of the construction, by the Special Assessment Commission.  Their 

determination may not be the same as the Engineering Department suggests at this point.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the Resolution determining insufficiency of 

protests for Street Improvement District 206, Project 2016-07(Big Sky Additions). 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of April 5, 2016 

Page 7 of 14 

Commissioner Tibke seconded the motion.   

 

Commissioner Rohr commented that the Big Sky Additions has been discussed now for 

several years and it has been difficult for the City to determine a viable way to get it paid 

for.  It is a difficult terrain in that area and the City has put a lot of effort into this matter 

and he feels the City has done the best that it can under the circumstances.   

 

Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner 

Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion 

passed. 

 

F.         BIDS: 

1.         Consider the award of bids for Municipal Sidewalk Improvement Project 2016-05 

and approving the Resolution approving the contract and contractor's bond. Planning & 

Engineering Director Froseth reported that five bids were received on March 15, 2016 for 

this project.  The engineer’s estimate was approximately $83,000 for the remove and 

replacement of the sidewalks for the upcoming construction year.  Fleck and Sons 

Concrete was the low bidder in the amount of $68,115.00.  It was recommended to award 

the project bid to Fleck and Son’s.  

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the award of bids for Municipal Sidewalk 

Improvement Project 2016-05 and approving the Resolution approving the contract and 

contractor's bond to Fleck and Sons Concrete in the amount of $68,115.00.  

Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  

The motion passed. 

 

2.         Consider for approval the award of the Lawn and Weed Spraying contract to All 

Pest Control. Public Works Director Wright stated that on March 23, 2016, bids were 

opened for the lawn and weed spraying contract.  Two bids were received but one bid did 

not include the bidders bond so the bid was considered a nonresponsive bid.  The contract 

includes noxious weed spraying, weed and feed on city owned lots, non-noxious weed 

spraying and total kill applications.  Advertisements for bids were published in the 

newspaper, the website and 10 companies in the Bismarck-Mandan area were contacted.  

It was recommended by the Weed Board to award the bid to All Pest Control in the 

amount of $13,643.  

 

Commissioner Rohr moved to approve the bid award for the Lawn and Weed Spraying 

contract to All Pest Control in the amount of $13,643.  Commissioner Laber seconded the 

motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.         Consider award of low bid for Old Red Trail reconstruction to Veit contingent 

upon NDDOT concurrence. Planning & Engineering Director Froseth said this request is 

for awarding a bid for the Street Improvement District 205 Project 2015-06.  On February 

2, 2016, the Commission approved the creation of Street Improvement Project No. 205 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of April 5, 2016 

Page 8 of 14 

and approved the resolution approving Engineer’s Report, plans and specs and the 

Resolution of Necessity.  On March 15, 2016, the Commission approved the Resolution 

of Insufficiency of Protest.  Since the project is receiving federal funds it was bid through 

the NDDOT bid opening system. On March 18, 2016, the bids were opened by the 

NDDOT. Veit and Company of Rogers, MN, was the low bidder in the amount of 

$3,761,743.90.  The bid is 22% lower than the engineer’s estimate.  Since the bids came 

in under estimate the local share will be reduced appropriately and be less than previous 

estimates.  The local sources of funding that will require less allocation because of lower 

than expected bids include sales tax fud, property tax, special assessments and hub city 

funds or utility fund to pay for the water main replacement portion.  It was recommended 

to accept the bid received from Veit and Company of Rogers, MN, in the amount of 

$3,761,743.90.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the bid award for Old Red Trail reconstruction to 

Veit and Company in the amount of $3,761,743.90 contingent upon NDDOT 

concurrence.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van 

Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

4.         Consider concurrence with NDDOT for award of low bid for Twin City Drive and 

Main Street traffic signals to Edling Electric Inc. Planning & Engineering Director 

Froseth presented a request to consider a bid for Twin City Drive and Main Street traffic 

signals.  He said that the existing traffic signals at Twin City Drive and Main Street are 

beyond their life expectancy and they are due for replacement.  This project would 

consist of replacing all posts, mast arms, and equipment.  It will incorporate the latest in 

ITS for optimum intersection efficiency.  Since the project is receiving federal funds it 

was bid through the NDDOT bid opening system through the DOT process.  On March 

18, 2016, the bids were opened.  Edling Electric, Bismarck, ND, was the low bidder in 

the amount of $213,578.75.  The bid is 48% lower than the engineer’s estimate.  It was 

recommended to approve the bid from Edling Electric.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the award of low bid for the Twin City Drive and 

Main Street traffic signals to Edling Electric Inc. in the amount of $213,578.75 

contingent upon NDDOT concurrence.   Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll 

call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

G.        CONSENT AGENDA 

1.         Consider request to allow BMHBA signs within city right of way during the week 

leading up to the home show.   

2.         Agreement with KLJ for Engineering for Lakewood 9
th

 Street Improvement 

District 204 Project 2016-06. 

3.         Consider the Fire Department’s requests for out-of-state travel. 

4.         Consider for approval of the loader lease option and adopt authorization 

resolution. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of April 5, 2016 

Page 9 of 14 

5.          Consider approval of Millennium Trail Cost Participation and Maintenance 

agreement.  

6.          Consider approval of the following proclamations: (i) Proclaiming April 5, 2016 

as Mayors Day of Recognition for National Service in the City of Mandan; (ii) 

Proclaiming April 8, 2016 as Wear Blue Day in the City of Mandan; (iii) Proclaiming 

April 10-16, 2016 as National Public Safety Telecommunications Week in the City of 

Mandan. 

7.          Consider approval of site authorization for Horse Race ND at Strawberry Bar & 

Grill from April 15, 2016 through June 30, 2016. 

8.          Consider approval of Annual Site Authorization for Abate of ND at the Hideaway 

Bar from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017. 

9.          Consider approval of Special Sunday openings for Lukes Bar LLC dba Silver 

Dollar Bar: April 3, 2016 through June 26, 2016. 

10.        Consider Police Department 2016 General Fund Budget Transfer. 

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the Consent Agenda items 1, 3, 4, 5, & 7-10, as 

presented, excepting items No. 2 and No. 6 to be removed for further discussion.   

Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 

Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  

The motion passed. 

 

Consent Agenda Items removed for discussion: 

2.         Agreement with KLJ for Engineering for Lakewood 9
th

 Street Improvement 

District 204 Project 2016-06.  Commissioner Laber stated she requested this item be 

pulled for discussion due to it being a request for the approval of an engineering services 

agreement for an improvement district. She indicated that the Commission does not 

normally enter into these agreements in this manner.  She inquired why “we are breaking 

our rules” when it is their rule to bring it before the City Commission.  She questioned 

whether this binds the Commission into something that she was not previously aware of.  

Director Froseth explained that it has not been standard practice for the City Engineer’s 

Office to enter into an engineering service agreement for street improvement districts 

near developments.  There is an inherent motivation on the part of the developer to keep 

those costs in-check because those costs of engineering and construction as well as any 

administrative change orders that come about can be assessed to the district.  In the past, 

there has not been any formality with engineering service agreements for street 

improvement districts and it may not be a bad way to move to going forward so there is a 

clear understanding before getting into the project itself.   This is also a new process on 

KLJ’s part, (having an engineering service agreement for a new development), but their 

management staff needs this agreement for them to be satisfied.   

 

Commissioner Laber suggested changing the City’s process to doing business this way so 

there is a formal agreement on file between the staff and the third party contractors that 

are working with those street improvement districts so there is a joint oversight in place.  

Director Froseth pointed out that many times the Engineer’s Office does not know what 

developer is working with what engineer on these development projects until it gets to the 

point of commission for the street improvement district request so they may have 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of April 5, 2016 

Page 10 of 14 

completed a lot of engineering before it is presented to the City.  They have already 

opened bids on this project and they are already to the construction part of this project.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the Consent Agenda Item No. 2. Commissioner 

Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 

Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion 

passed. 

 

6.          Consider approval of the following proclamations: (i) Proclaiming April 5, 2016 

as Mayors Day of Recognition for National Service in the City of Mandan; (ii) 

Proclaiming April 8, 2016 as Wear Blue Day in the City of Mandan; (iii) Proclaiming  

April 10-16, 2016 as National Public Safety Telecommunications Week in the City of 

Mandan. Mayor Van Beek read the three proclamations aloud.  

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the Consent Agenda Item No. 6. Commissioner 

Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner 

Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion 

passed. 

 

H       OLD BUSINESS: 

1.       Consider a Mandan Growth Fund Committee recommendation to establish a 

restaurant rewards program. Business Development Communications Director Huber 

added the following points subsequent to her earlier presentation:  She said there are 

really four points as to how this program will benefit the Mandan community and its 

economy: (i) There have been two household surveys and Nielson data done in the last 

decade that indicate that restaurants are a top demand (in Mandan) only second behind a 

general merchandise store which has been achieved;  (ii) It impacts our ability to attract 

visitors to our community and to retain them for longer periods of time for further 

expenditures. We have tremendous events in our community, but we need a more robust 

hospitality business sector in order to attract more visitors and retain them for longer 

periods of time; (iii) (Existing) Businesses tell us how important it is to have restaurants 

in the community; (iv) It is a significant way to generate additional tax revenues for the 

community in property tax, in increasing property values by occupying buildings, new 

construction, increasing the tax base as a whole and many other revenues.  There has 

been favorable support (for the Restaurant Rewards Program) from the real estate sector, 

the financial institutions and commercial lenders that have participated in the discussions 

of this program thus far.  There are definite interested prospects if this program is 

approved.  Director Huber explained that in regard to the questions about what existing 

tools are still available: the Store Front Improvement Program is in effect for the greater 

main street downtown area including Memorial Highway corridor. The Retail Incentive 

Program is available for businesses on smaller scales and it is maxed out at $20,000 per 

project under current approved guidelines.  This is a program to help with overall initial 

business start-up costs and the qualifications are rated on a series of 13 factors in order to 

qualify. 

   



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of April 5, 2016 

Page 11 of 14 

Director Huber summarized the Restaurant Rewards Program stating that the beauty of 

the proposed 1% sales tax rebate is its simplicity.  And there will be very few dollars 

rebated if that restaurant is not successful.  If they do not generate sales, they will not be 

successful in the long run. So the goal is for restaurants that are long term and successful 

will generate far more in sales tax revenues in the future than are ever rebated in that 

short term initial period.   

 

Commissioner Laber commented that the focus of this request should be that this is “an 

incentive” which is a small piece of the pie.  According to the US Census Bureau, half of  

the new establishments survive for 5 years or more. So it is risky.  If someone is willing 

to take the risk, if you do not perform, if you do not have a product that people want then 

people will not patronize you and you will not be successful.  There is risk and with risk 

you need an incentive.  It is a rebate.  It is an incentive. It is not something that is going to 

be coming out of your direct bill and when your property tax comes, that is not how this 

works.  If people choose to eat here, they pay sales tax.  If you pay sales tax, that money 

goes to different programs.  Having a $23 million dollar leakage as Director Huber 

indicated is a huge leakage and we cannot continue to afford having prospective business 

owners going somewhere else.  We need to keep this here.  We still get all the other 

benefits.  Commissioner Laber stated that in her opinion it is a small incentive and it 

should be considered.  

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the establishing the Restaurant Rewards 

Program.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner 

Rohr: No; Commissioner Tibke: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  

Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

I.        NEW BUSINESS: 

1.         Update on transition to Central Dakota Communication Center (CenCom). 

Mike Dannenfelzer, Communications Director of the Central Dakota Communication 

Center (CenCom), presented an update on the transition of the City of Mandan’s Public 

Safety Communication services to what is now called the Central Dakota 

Communications Center.  This transition started the week of January 4, 2016 wherein 

emergency and non-emergency calls for service for the City of Mandan Police and Fire 

Departments and Metro Area Ambulance Service shifted over to the newly formed 

CenCom organization.  Regular monthly meetings have been held by the Executive 

Committee to monitor the status of the transition to make sure everything was working 

smoothly.  The Board of Directors has also met monthly to review the progress.  A 

transition to the normal schedule will occur in April wherein meetings will move to a 

quarterly basis for the Executive Committee and the Board of Directors will meet 2 or 3 

times per year.  An Operational Committee meets on the 1
st
 Tuesday of the month to 

discuss operational matters. There is also a Technical Committee that has met in the past 

and will be meeting sometime probably in early May to discuss replacement of CAD 

records mobile system and determine when that will occur and how that will be funded.  

He provided highlights of the calls received and how they compared to previous calls. 

There was roughly an increase of an additional 600 calls in February and March for the 

City of Mandan.  He reported that the staff has adjusted well to the new process and 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of April 5, 2016 

Page 12 of 14 

operations much to the assistance of the Mandan Police and Fire Department and Metro 

Ambulance.   

 

Fire Chief Nardello reported that as far as the radio communications since the switch to 

CenCom, all staff members are very pleased with the exception of one.  Chief Nardello 

explained that the one is not “displeased”, but he just does not understand why a switch 

was made.  He said that at the beginning of this switch there was speculation that Mandan 

would not get equal attention. He noted that when discussions occur, it is not about 

jurisdiction or agencies, rather it stems around how we can work better together and get 

better information.  For example, he said it is helpful to learn and know how departments 

can share their warrant information.  It is working very well.  There is an electronic 

emergency medical dispatch which is very helpful to the fulltime firefighters because it 

will tell them pretty much in advance what type of a medical call it is and how to 

respond. Almost all the patient information that is needed is contained in the CAD 

narrative dispatcher.  There have been no problems with the CAD going down.  He has 

had conversations with Deputy Chief Bier who has indicated the police department is 

pleased with the service as well.   

 

2.         Consider the city water system projects to submit to the State Water Commission 

for 2017-19 funding.  Planning & Engineering Director Froseth stated that city staff have 

met with AE2S staff and developed a short list of water projects for the 2017-2019 

biennium.  The State Water Commission grant monies have been approved for the 2015-

2017 water projects that were before this Commission recently; so it is hopeful that they 

will grant monies for the 2017-2019 projects as well.  The items on the short list include:  

(i) Collins Reservoir Roof Replacement; (ii) the 30” Sunset Avenue Reservoir 

Transmission Main replacement; (iii) Boundary Road Pressure Reducing Valve (PRV) 

NW; and (iv) Conventional Intake (Construction).   If the City receives 60% State Water 

Commission grant money for the 2017-2019 term, (as it did for the 2015-2017 biennium), 

the City would still have to come up with a local cost share of approximately $7.8 

million.  In working with the Finance Department, that would represent about a $5.26 

increase in the residential monthly utility bill.  It was recommended to approve the four 

projects listed for SWC grant consideration.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the four projects listed for State Water 

Commission grant consideration.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call 

vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; 

Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

3.         Consider Architectural Services recommendation for the Public Works Expansion 

Project.  Director of Public Works Wright stated that on January 19, 2016, the 

Commission approved the advertising for Professional Architectural Services for the 

existing Public Works Expansion project.  A panel of 5 individuals reviewed the four 

request proposals received and rated each firm on the Request for Proposals (RFP) 

evaluation criteria.  EPIC Engineering was scored the highest.  In checking references, 

EPIC Engineering was found to be a good firm to work with and kept projects within 

budget and on time.  He also met with staff onsite who reviewed different options and 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of April 5, 2016 

Page 13 of 14 

ways to satisfy the City of Mandan’s needs for this project.  A concept drawing and an 

estimate for that concept drawing was provided to the Commissioners in their packets.  

By moving forward with negotiating a contract with EPIC Engineering, we will be able 

to plan for this project and allow us to bring the cost estimate within the budget.  Director 

Wright requested approval to begin negotiations with EPIC Engineering and bring a 

proposal back to the Commission for approval at the next meeting on April 19th.  If 

approved, the bidding and design process would begin with construction scheduled to 

start in September 2016 with anticipation of completing the project on or before May 

2017.  It was recommended to move forward with a negotiation process with EPIC 

Engineering with City staff and City Attorney Brown for the architectural and 

engineering services for the Public Works Expansion project.   

 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the recommendation to negotiate with EPIC 

Engineering for the architectural and engineering services for the Public Works 

Expansion project.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.   

 

Commissioner Rohr stated that the City will need to be sure to provide proper 

accommodations in the City Shop area for the next 10-15 years.  He recommended that 

discussions occur with the Park Board regarding their future plans for the land where the 

football stadium was near the Public Works Shop. There is some available land there that 

could be of value to the City.  He suggested that option be pursued.  Director Wright 

indicated that it will be a joint effort with the Park District to make both projects work.  

Mayor Van Beek concurred with the recommendation outlined by Commissioner Rohr to 

work with the Park Board on the land south of the Shop.  Commissioner Laber reminded 

the Commissioners that there is a Joint Meeting with the Mandan Park Board on May 9
th

 

at which time this matter could be discussed with the Park Board.   

 

Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; Commissioner 

Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

J.        RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:    

1.         Consider for approval resolution creating private street named Cascade Way in 

Eagle Ridge First Addition.  Planner Decker stated that when this project was developed 

there were no streets identified within the project.  There were easements created to 

provide access for various portions of this development but the only street that was 

available at the time building permits were issued was 12
th

 Avenue.  The two buildings 

that are currently there were both issued addresses off of 12
th

 Avenue.  The emergency 

responders have requested having addresses on a street that pass by the buildings. These 

buildings are east of 12
th

 Avenue.  We are identifying one of the existing improved 

access easements and placing a street name on it as a private street.  There are four more 

buildings that will be going up in this area and emergency responders would like better 

location addresses in order to find them.  The private street maintenance responsibility 

remains within the property owners and they are aware of that responsibility.  Planner 

Decker stated that the owner of the property will make sure the streets are properly 

maintained for the use of these residential apartment buildings.   

 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 

Minutes of April 5, 2016 

Page 14 of 14 

Commissioner Laber moved to approve the approval of the resolution creating a private 

street named Cascade Way in Eagle Ridge First Addition.  Commissioner Rohr seconded 

the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Laber:  Yes; 

Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

K.       OTHER BUSINESS:   

1.        Working Session:  Commissioner Laber requested that a Working Session be 

scheduled in order to discuss the overall business incentive programs in preparation for 

the upcoming budget process.  A temporary date of Friday, April 15, 2016 was discussed. 

When confirmed, a notice will be provided to the public.     

 

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, 

Commissioner Rohr moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:30 p.m. Commissioner Laber 

seconded the motion.  The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. 

The motion passed. 

 

   

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 

 

 Arlyn Van Beek,  

President, Board of City 

Commissioners 
 

 
 

 



City of Mandan – Board of Equalization  

Minutes of April 5, 2016 

Page 1 of 1 

 The Mandan Board of Equalization met in regular session at 7:30 p.m. on April 5, 

2016 in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall.  Present were Commissioners Van 

Beek, Rohr, Laber and Braun (via teleconference call).  Also present were Finance 

Director Greg Welch, City Attorney Malcolm Brown, City Administrator Neubauer, and 

City Assessor Shaw.  Absent:  Commissioner Tibke.   

 

B.        NEW BUSINESS:    

1.         Recess the City Board of Equalization until April 19, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the Ed 

“Bosh” Froehlich Meeting Room at Mandan City Hall, 205 2
nd

 Ave NW, Mandan, North 

Dakota.  

 

Commissioner Laber moved to recess the City Board of Equalization until April 19, 2016 

at 7:00 p.m. in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Meeting Room at Mandan City Hall, 205 2
nd

 

Ave. NW, Mandan, North Dakota.  Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call 

vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Tibke: Absent; Commissioner Laber:  

Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Commissioner Van Beek:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

 

C.       ADJOURNMENT:   

There being no further actions to come before the Board the meeting adjourned. 

 

_________________________________ _______________________________ 

Shirley Shaw   Arlyn Van Beek, President 

City Assessor      Board of City Commissioners  



 

 

  Page 1 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

The proposal is to replat Lots 20 through 39 of Lakewood 8
th

 Addition and rezone this area to 

PUD District 2016-01. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  

The request is to modify the plat to create 26 lots where there are now 20 lots in order to develop 

smaller footprint single family and twin homes.  The PUD option is being used to adjust some of 

the zoning requirements to accommodate these narrower but deeper lots.  The standards for R3.2 

would allow up to eight more units than what is proposed if all the lots were rectangular at close 

to the minimum square footage. 

 

The proposal includes development of 4 standard size twin homes (8 units), 5 small twin homes 

(10 units) and 8 small single family units that are actually half of a small twin home.   

 

The only standard that this proposal doesn’t meet is the building footprint requirement in R3.2 of 

0.35.  Some of the lots will have a building footprint closer to 0.50.  The average for the 

subdivision will be less than 0.35. 

 

Water and sewer lines have already been installed based on the previously approved design.  

Adjustments will need to be made to accommodate this design.  The engineer is coordinating 

these adjustments with staff.  Since the paving project for this area has been bid, there will be a 

short time window to accomplish these water and sewer adjustments. 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed this proposal at their March 28, 2016 meeting 

and unanimously recommended approval.  No one appeared in opposition to the proposal. 

 

The final plat is scheduled for review at the April 25, 2016 Planning and Zoning Commission 

meeting and, if recommended for approval, will be scheduled for review and final approval at the 

May 3, 2016 City Commission meeting along with the second consideration of this ordinance. 

MEETING DATE: April 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: April 15, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, P.E., Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: Public hearing for first consideration of Ordinance No. 

1238 creating PUD 2016-01 for Lakewood 8th 

Addition First Replat 

 

  

Public Hearing No. 1 



 

 

  Page 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Lot layout showing proposed building footprints  

2. Ordinance 

3. Aerial photo 

4. P & Z agenda memo 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his 

review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Staff recommends adoption of this ordinance. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:   

Move to close the public hearing and consider Resolutions and Ordinances Item Number 2. 

 

 

 



 

 

  Page 3 

 



 

 

  Page 4 

 

 

 

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 1238 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 21-03-02 OF 

THE MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT 

BOUNDARIES AND ZONING MAP 

 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 

amended to read as follows:  

 

Lakewood 8
th

 Addition First Replat located within the City of Mandan, Morton County, 

North Dakota shall be excluded from the R3.2 Residential District and shall be included in PUD 

District 2016-01 with the following conditions and restrictions. 

a. All lots shall conform to the requirements of an R3.2 district unless modified herein. 

b. Lots 1 through 8 and 17 through 26 shall be developed with one half of a twin home and 

lots 9 through 16 shall be developed with single family dwellings. 

c. The minimum lot size shall be 4,000 square feet. 

d. The minimum lot width at the front building line shall be 30 feet. 

e. The minimum side yard setback for a primary structure shall be 20% of the average lot 

width for the combination of the two side yards for single family lots and 10% of the 

average lot width for the one side yard for twin home lots. 

f. The minimum side yard setback for a primary structure shall be 5 feet. 

g. The minimum front yard setback for a garage door facing the street shall be 25 feet.  

Other portions of the structure may be developed within 20 feet of the front property line, 

including any 2
nd

 floor overhang. 

h. The minimum rear yard setback for a primary structure shall be 20 feet. 

i. The maximum building footprint for all structures on lots 1-6 shall be 50% of the lot area. 

j. The maximum building footprint for all structures on lots 7-8 shall be 45% of the lot area. 

k. The maximum building footprint for all structures on lots 9-16 shall be 35% of the lot 

area. 

l. The maximum building footprint for all structures on lots 17-26 shall be 40% of the lot 

area. 

m. The floor area ratio (FAR) for all structures on a lot shall be 0.8. 

n. The property owner shall be responsible to install a sidewalk in the boulevard along the 

property line prior to occupying the dwelling or within the next construction season after 

occupancy if this delay is approved by the city. 

o. The property owner shall be responsible to install landscaping within the next growing 

season after occupancy. 

p. The width of the driveway apron shall be limited to the width of the garage or 36 feet 

whichever is less. 



 

 

  Page 5 

 

SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 

hereby re-enacted as amended.  The city principal planner is authorized and directed to make the 

necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance with this section.   

 

           

President, Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

 

                                             

City Administrator 

 

Public Hearing:    _______________ 

First Consideration:    _______________  

Second Consideration and Final Passage:   _______________ 

 

 

  



 

 

  Page 6 

 
  



 

 

  Page 7 

 
  



 

 

  Page 8 

 

each dwelling unit. It also allows old lots to be as small as 3,250 square feet. 

The proposed twin home lots meet the minimum lot size requirements for R3.2. The minimum lot size for the 
twin home lots is 4,050 square feet. 

105-1-2 allows accessory buildings to be placed within 3 feet of the lot line. The proposal meets this 
requirement. 

The proposed density is 8.52 units per net acre. The allowable density for R3.2 is 12 units per net acre. 

The narrowest single family lot is about 34 feet at the building line. The minimum for R3.2 new lots undivided 
is 60 feet or 30 feet divided. The minimum allowance for old lots is 25. 

Agency & Other Deportment Comments 

Eneineering & Planning Staff Comnlents 

The water and sewer taps have already been installed so adjustments will have to be made to accommodate 
the reconfiguration of lots. Some easements will be required where a service line for one unit crosses the 
yard of another unit. Sanitary sewer service lines can be shared since they are large enough to serve multiple 
units. Potable water service lines should not be shared since they are not large and can limit water pressure 
or volume of flow if shared . A two-way cleanout should be installed at the end of the shared portion of a 
sewer line and that should be the demarcation point between public and private responsibility. The curb stop 
should be the demarcation point between public and private responsibility for a water line . An additional 
service charge should be added for city maintenance of a portion of the service lines. Water and sewer 
demarcation points should be located in the boulevard between the back of the curb and the sidewalk. 

The only thing this proposal does not meet is the FAR. The proposal is to have an FAR of 0.5 while the 
requirement for R3.2 is 0.35. A calculation indicates that the actual FAR based on the proposed building 
footprints is significantly less than D.S. The average for the subdivision is approximately 0.33. The FAR for lots 
1-8 is 0.47. These lots will need an FAR of 0.5 to allow for an accessory building. 

En1ineering & Planning Recommendation 

Specify that this area be rezoned to PUD 2016-01 with a base zoning of R3.2. 
• FAR for lots 1-6 to be 0.5. 

• FAR for lots 7-8 to be 0.45. 
• FAR for lots 9-16 to be 0.35. 
• FAR for lots 17-26 to be 0.4. 
• Minimum lot size shall be 4,000 square feet. 
• Maximum floor area ratio (FAR) shall be 0.8. 

Proposed Motion 

Move to recommend approval of preliminary plat. 

Move to recommend that final plat be submitted to City Commission for consideration. 

Move to recommend rezoning to PUD 2016-01 with a base zoning of R3.2 as modified by staff 
recommendations. 



 

 

  Page 1 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:   

A portion of Lot 1 and all of Lot 2, Block 1 of the School District Sixth Addition is proposed to 

be replatted as Ash Grove Estates Addition and rezoned to PUD District 2016-02. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  

The Mandan School District determined that this land was no longer needed for school purposes 

and offered it for sale. 

 

The proposal is to develop this area with 41 single family dwellings in several building 

configurations and 7 small footprint twin homes (14 units). 

 

Some of the lots will be smaller and the street design standards are being modified to help reduce 

the cost of the houses.  The PUD option is being used to adjust some of the zoning requirements 

to accommodate these smaller lots and narrower street standards. 

 

A 20 foot wide strip along the southern and western boundary is proposed to be sold to the lots in 

the adjoining subdivision in order to provide them with deeper back yards.  The larger single 

family lots in this proposed subdivision will back up to the existing subdivision in order to 

provide a greater separation between existing structures and proposed structures.  The smaller 

lots are located in the middle of the proposed development and along the boundary with the 

school property where there is substantial open space. 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed this proposal at their March 28, 2016 meeting 

and unanimously recommended approval.  A neighboring property owner was present and spoke 

in favor of the proposal.  No one appeared in opposition to the proposal. 

 

Due to soil and groundwater conditions in the area, special care will need to be taken when 

installing water and sewer lines and constructing streets. 

 

Pending the outcome of this public hearing, the final plat is currently scheduled for review at the 

April 25, 2016 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting and, if recommended for approval, 

MEETING DATE: April 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: April 15, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Robert Decker, P.E., Principal Planner 

SUBJECT: Public hearing for first consideration of Ordinance No. 

1239 creating PUD 2016-02 for Ash Grove Estates 

Addition.  

 

  

Public Hearing No. 2 



 

 

  Page 2 

will be scheduled for review and final approval at the May 3, 2016 City Commission meeting 

along with the second consideration of this ordinance. 

 

Things to consider when reviewing this proposal include: 

1. The need for lower cost housing has been documented in a regional housing study 

completed last year.  This proposal provides a mix of housing types with varying price 

ranges.  The styles of units proposed have been successfully marketed in the metropolitan 

area. 

2. A primary reason for a zoning code is to set minimum standards for health and safety.  

However, our code tends to dictate the market.  Why do we have a minimum lot size of 

7000 square feet?  Is there a health and safety reason?  If there is, then why do we allow 

the same house to be built on a lot half that size if it is built as a twin home?  By building 

a twin home the buyer can get more house for the same money because the land cost is 

reduced.  This proposal modifies the standards to reduce that disparity. 

3. A concern has been expressed that this proposal is not compatible with the area.  The 

design of this project places all units facing other units within the proposed development.  

The units that back up against existing units in other developments are the same type as 

the existing units. 

4. The majority of the units are single-family.  The number of twin homes proposed is 

small. 

5. Except for the minimum lot size and the size of the house in relation to the size of the lot 

for some lots, all requirements for an R7 development are being met.  Since there are 

twin homes proposed, R3.2 is being referenced as the base zoning. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Lot layout showing proposed building footprints  

2. Draft ordinance 

3. Aerial photo 

4. P & Z agenda memo 

5. Emails received by Commissioner Laber 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his 

review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

Staff recommends adoption of this ordinance. 

 

SUGGESTED ACTION:   

Move to close the public hearing and consider Resolutions and Ordinances Item Number 3. 

 

 

 



 

 

  Page 3 

  



 

 

  Page 4 

 

 

 

 

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 1239 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 21-03-02 OF 

THE MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT 

BOUNDARIES AND ZONING MAP 

 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 

amended to read as follows:  

 

Ash Grove Estates Addition located within the City of Mandan, Morton County, North 

Dakota shall be excluded from the R7 Residential District and shall be included in PUD District 

2016-02 with the following conditions and restrictions. 

a. All lots shall conform to the requirements of an R3.2 district unless modified herein. 

b. Lots 1A through 15A and 16 through 20, Block 1 and Lots 1 through 9 and 11 through 

22, Block 2 shall be developed with single family dwellings and lots 21 through 34, 

Block 1 shall be developed with one half of a twin home. 

c. The minimum lot size for the twin home lots shall be 3,000 square feet. 

d. The minimum lot size for the single-family lots shall be 4,000 square feet. 

e. The minimum lot width at the front building line shall be 30 feet. 

f. The minimum side yard setback for a primary structure shall be 20% of the average lot 

width for the combination of the two side yards for single family lots and 10% of the 

average lot width for the one side yard for twin home lots. 

g. The minimum side yard setback for a primary structure shall be 5 feet. 

h. The minimum side yard setback for all structures on the side yard facing 37
th

 Avenue 

NW shall be 15 feet. 

i. The minimum front yard setback for a garage door facing the street shall be 25 feet.  

Other portions of the structure may be developed within 20 feet of the front property line, 

including any 2
nd

 floor overhang. 

j. The minimum rear yard setback for a primary structure on Lots 20 through 34, Block 1 

shall be 15 feet and for all other lots 20 feet. 

k. The maximum building footprint for all structures on lots 1A through 15A and 16 

through 20, Block 1 shall be 30% of the lot area. 

l. The maximum building footprint for all structures on lots 21 through 34, Block 1 shall be 

50% of the lot area. 

m. The maximum building footprint for all structures on lots 1 through 9 and 11 through 22, 

Block 2 shall be 35% of the lot area. 

n. The floor area ratio (FAR) for all structures on a lot shall be 0.8. 



 

 

  Page 5 

o. The property owner shall be responsible to install a sidewalk in the boulevard along the 

property line prior to occupying the dwelling or within the next construction season after 

occupancy if this delay is approved by the city. 

p. The property owner shall be responsible to install landscaping within the next growing 

season after occupancy. 

q. Lot 10, Block 2 shall be developed as a detention pond that is owned and maintained by 

all lot owners within the subdivision through a home owners association. 

r. Lots 1B, 2B, 2C, 2D, 3B, 3C, 4B, 4C, 5B, 5C, 6B, 6C, 7B, 8B, 8C, 9B, 9C, 10B, 11B, 

12B, 12C, 12D, 13B, 13C, 14B, 14C, 15B and 15C are not buildable lots and may be sold 

separately. 

s. The width of the driveway apron shall be limited to the width of the garage or 36 feet 

whichever is less. 

t. The street to be created within this subdivision shall be constructed within an 80 foot 

wide right-of-way and have a 31 foot wide paved surface with 1 foot wide mountable 

curbs on both sides. 

u. Sidewalks may be constructed against the property line and fire hydrants may be located 

between two and seven feet behind the back of curb.  

 

SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 

hereby re-enacted as amended.  The city principal planner is authorized and directed to make the 

necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance with this section.   

 

           

President, Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

 

                                             

City Administrator 

 

Public Hearing:    _______________ 

First Consideration:    _______________  

Second Consideration and Final Passage:   _______________ 
 

  



 

 

  Page 6 

 

 



 

 

  Page 7 

 
  



 

 

  Page 8 

 
  



 

 

  Page 9 

 
 

  



 

 

  Page 10 

 
 

 
 



 

 

  Page 11 

 

F'rlun : ~.~II;,; ff~~: b.•1n i:1j),-.;1.1m ·~(;l'C')'Sl' h:1fif:!i)bultooil.ri:.•01 ':• 
Oatt: Af)l'il ~. 2616 .~t 5: I :'-:~2 .Pl'.f CDT 
... o: <.lh&nn!l.ltihcr"11~ci I y11 fn~,iar• .C•)ll\·;. 

Sohjttt: \,.eYity Ho111~ r l'-1nnlnt t'NJ11f';Cof. 

'\>¢rif:· HQ<.\¢& ( fOl'r.);:;ly ~d 1)¢('(1 ~ 9. t1rui1tcJ fl p.IAA (,') 1bc t•t?•>..11111 l'l~'lli >'I~ 1u1('11"(0\l11r, C:;)ln Wl$$1ron •('l·th<: 
11\lid ili~1l)' •Wl"1h .-.fkco! 1·r11h ~:''"'~11t1r~:. In U'lit j'){')>'I v-..~· hn •oc 11 >'tq'>::tt141\:?t~ttl ll.:t~ re "ll~· ~r .... :in 
hum<s" 

I am writ-in' tn ~'r.u. in in5Ytm ~"'" ch:rt a:;~ n~isht:N tw) thi~ luid. I ~.o~ ~ t1>;,i11.in~ttqu<:I. Thi:; land mcoukl :1.:y 
-'illtW l\!t ~: .. g.1.. l#uil;, O:w.•Oi11z.~. I t..coix )\IU .... ;r. l-<t.:k OUl 111~ .. r.i11iv·1s ,1ftl-,,;11d(lt1l:1.'C.'h11:J 1:1."loo: 11111\.i:•\;V.y 
:Wtt<titf'I :111 \I• is a11J 1~~1 II> \'llur <X111'4it11U:!~ 

lt::w.k )'t.•\I, 
L:Orey ~ciult\' 
'i(('lf, 1.•)f\ A''" \."v.'. 
t.(t1\;i1'n. 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  This is a review and possible award of bid for Street 

Improvement District No. 201, Project 2015-11 (Meadowlands Addition). 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  We received two bids on April 5 for the project 

and Mariner Construction was the low bidder.  The bid amount was $428,523.00.  The 

Engineer's estimate was $477,321.50.   The bid is 10% lower than the engineer’s 

estimate.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Bid Tabulation 

2. District Map 

3. Resolution approving Contractor and Contractor’s Bond 

              

FISCAL IMPACT:   The Project will be paid for by special assessments from the 

benefiting properties within the District. The construction cost of the project is 

$428,523.00 plus the engineering and administrative cost of $149,983.05 totaling 

$578,506.05. The special assessments will be assessed to the benefitting property. There 

are 35 acres in this special assessment district which brings the amount to be assessed to 

an estimated $0.38 per square foot.  

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   These documents have been forwarded to the City Attorney for his  

   review.  

 

MEETING DATE: April 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: April 14, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider award of bid and approving Resolution 

Approving Contract and Contractor’s Bond for 

Street Improvement District No. 201, Project 

2015-11(Meadowlands Addition). 

 

 

  

BID No. 1  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 201, Project 2015-11 

(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 2 of 5 

RECOMMENDATION:  We would recommend awarding the project. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to award the bid to Mariner Construction as the low 

bidder of Street Improvement District 201 Project 2015-11 (Meadowlands Addition) in 

the amount of $423,523.00 and approve the Resolution approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 201, Project 2015-11 

(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 3 of 5 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 201, Project 2015-11 

(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 4 of 5 

 
 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2014 

Subject:  Consider award of bid and approving Resolution Approving Contract and 

Contractor’s Bond for Street Improvement District No. 201, Project 2015-11 

(Meadowlands Addition). 

Page 5 of 5 

RESOLUTION  

APPROVING CONTRACT AND CONTRACTOR’S BOND FOR  

STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 201 

(Project No. 2015-11) 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body of the City of Mandan, North Dakota 

(the “City”), as follows: 

 

 1. It is hereby found and determined that this Board has heretofore 

caused Notice for Advertisement for Bids to be made for an improvement 

Street Improvement District No. 201 of said City, and has duly and 

publicly opened and considered said bids received pursuant to said Notice. 

 

 2. Said improvement is hereby ordered to be constructed in 

accordance with the plans and specifications therefore as heretofore 

adopted by this Board pursuant to a resolution duly adopted by this Board. 

 

 3. It is hereby found and determined that the lowest responsible 

bidder for various categories of the work, material and skill required for 

said improvement is Mariner Construction whose bid provides for the 

construction of said improvement at a total estimated base price of 

$428,523.00. 

 

 4. The President of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan and City Auditor are hereby authorized and directed to make and 

enter into a contract with said bidder on the part of the City, in the form 

prescribed by Sections 40-22-35 and 40-22-35, N.D.C.C. as amended, 

provided that said bidder shall within ten (10) days from this date execute 

said contract and a construction bond conditioned in accordance with the 

provisions of Sections 40-22-30 and 40-22-32 of said Code. 

       

Dated this 19
th

 day of April, 2016 

 

 

                                                                        _________________________                                             

      Arlyn Van Beek, President of the 

      Board of City Commissioners 

 

Attest: 

                                               

James Neubauer, 

City Administrator 

 



CITY 01'
MANDAN

M/\ND/\N CITY HALl. - 20~; 2nd Avenue NW

MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 5B5~;4

7()1-667-321 '; • FAX: IIJI-667-J223 • www.cityofrnandan.com

PROCLAMATION

BIKE TO WORK WEEK

IConsent No 2i

A[)MINI$rRAriON 6&7-31.15
ASSESSINC/IJUIIDING INSf'ICfION (,(,7,31.30
IIUSINI:SSOEVUOI'MfoNT 667·:H85
CEMHfRY (,(,7-60·101
ENGINIIRll'tANNING Ii< ZONING 667·JV5
FlNANCf 667-3713
FlRf 6(,7·.l1.011
HUMAN IH:SOURCES (,67·3717
IANOFll.l. 667·018·1
MUNICIPAl. COLIRI (,1,7-3770
rouct (,67-3·155
PUlJl.ICWORKS 667')7'10
WASllWMER TRfAfMENT 667-.l771l
SI'1.(I,\I ilSSI'SSMfNIS (,67-J771
UTILITY lJIl.!.ING 66/·3719
WArElURf:A1MENI M,7·JUS

WHEREAS, for more than a century, the bicycle has been an important part of the lives of most
Americans; and

WHEREAS, today, millions of Americans engage in bicycling because it is a viable and
environmentally-sound form 0 f transportation, an excellent form offitness and provides quality
family recreation; and

WHERI':AS, the education of cyclists and motorists as to the proper and safe operation of
bicycles is important to ensure the safety and com fort of all users; and

w~mREAS, the City of Mandan is promoting greater public awareness of the importance of
commuting by bicycle, bicycle operation and bicycle safety education as a means of reducing
reliance on the automobile, reducing vehicle traffic congestion and promoting a healthier and
more connected community; and

NOW, THIW..EFOIU:, I, Arlyn Van Beck, Mayor of the City of Mandan, do hereby proclaim
May 16-20,2016 as Bike to Work Week, and May 20, 2016 as Bike to Work Day in the City of
Mandan to call attention to the importance of bicycles for both recreation and transportation and
I further calt upon all residents of the City of Mandan to usc a bicycle to commute to work or run
errands during that week.

Dated this 19th day of April, 2016

Arlyn Van Beck, President
Board of City Commissioners

Attest:

James Neubauer, City Administrator



IConsent No. 2ii I

I ' WI IEIU!TltEWI~9r BEGINS"

CITY 0
MANDAN

MANDAN CITY HALl. - 205 2nd Avenue NW

MANDAN, NOKtH DAKOTA 51355>1

70 1· (,(>7 · :12 15 0 lAX: 70 /·667 ·3123 0 www.citvofmnndan.com

PROCLAMATION

Ma ndan Dacotah Lions Club
STRIDES: Lions Wa lk for Diabetes Aware ness

Sunday, May 15,2016

CITV mrARTMINTS

ADMINISTRATION 667·)215
ASSISSINCJOll lLDING INSI'[ CIION 667·)2)0
IIlJSINFSS mVnOPMINT 667·3485
C[MUIRY 61>7·60"'"
[NGINW:tPIANNING &-ZONIN G 667·3225
fl NANCI 667·3213
fl R[ 61,7·)288
IIUMAN RISOURCI 5 667·)2 17
IANDml 667·0 184
MUNIOI'AI COlJR T 667·3270
roucr 667·3-155
ruauc WO RKS 667·32'10
WASrrWArm m fAl MI N f 667·3278
SPECIALASSESSMENI S 667·3271
lJ l lI.ITV IIILI.ING 667·J21 9
WAr m l l(l-AIM I N I 667·3275

WHEREAS, the Mandan Dac otah Lions Club is working to increase diabetes
awareness, by sponsoring "STRIDES: Lions Walk for Diabetes Awareness"
on Sunday, May 15; and

WHERE'AS, the Ma ndan Dncotah Lions Club, through "STRIDES" is
participating in an international activity with Lions clubs throughout the
world; and

Wll/~REAS, the Mandan Dacotah Lions Club is keeping with the challenge
Helen Keller issued to the association in 1925, to become "knights of the
blind in the crusade against darkness;" and

WHEREAS, the Manda n Dacot ah Lions Club, established in 2004, is composed
of men and women volunteers who dedicate their time to the betterment of
our community and aiding those in need; and

Wll/~R/~AS, the Ma nda n Dacot ah Lions Club is a member of Lions Clubs
International, the world 's largest service elub organization with 1.35 million
members in 45,000 clubs in 205 countries and geographical areas:

NOW THEREFORH, I, Mayor Arlyn Van Beck, of the City of Mandan, USA, in
recognition of this important event sponsored by the Mandan Dacotah Lions Club,
do hereby proclaim Sunday, May 15, 2016 as "STRIDES: Lions Walk for
Diabetes Awareness Day" in the City of Mandan.

Signed this 19th day of April, in the year 2016.

Arlyn Van Beck, President
Board of City Commissioners

Attest:

James Neubauer, City Administrator



~IW~IE:nr,:THE WES1' BEGINS"

CITY OP
MANDAN

MANDAN CITY HAl.l.· 205 2nd Avenue NW
M/\NDAN, NORTH DAKOIA 51l5S'1

701-(,(,7-J21 S • II\X: 10/·661·3223 • www.cityofmandan.com

PROCLAMATION
NATIONAL MUSIC WEEK

May 1-8,2016

IConsent No. 2iii

ADMINISTRI\f[ON 667']215
AS$[SSINGIBUILDING INSPH: flON [,67-,17.30
llUSINf:S5OI:VI!.OI'MI:N"1 667 -HilS
(1:,1.11: llRY 667 ·60·1-1
f:NGINI:ElVI'I.I\NNING & ZONING 6[,7·)/.25
IIN,\N(f: 661-1/.1)
FIRI' 667·12ftO
HUMANRI'SOlJRCES MI7-.n 17
I.ANDFII.!. 667·018·1
MUNICIPAl- COllin 667·17.70
I'OllCE 661,)'155
I'UllLiC WORKS 6(,7·D,IO
WASTfWATr:R TRI'/(fMf:NT 6(,7·3270
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 667-1271
uuurvllIUJNG 667·3719
WATWTREArI"lfNT [,(,r·JU5

WHEREAS music plays an increasingly important role in our world today; and

WHEREAS music is one of the most sublime of human pursuits and is subscribed to by all
races ancI creeds; and

WHEREAS music is the language of all peoples and one of the greatest forces in creating
peace and harmony; and

WHEm.EAS The National Federation of Music Clubs, dedicated to encouraging young
musicians, to increasing musical knowledge, and to advancing American music and its
cooperating organizations, join forces to direct attention to the dynamic influence of music
in everyday living;

NOW THEREFORE, I, Arlyn Van Beck, Mayor ofthe City of Mandan, do hereby
proclaim the week of May 1-8,2016 to be NATIONAL MUSIC WEEK in the City of
Mandan, North Dakota

And ask that all citizens of this community observe and take part in activities,
recognizing the importance or music, musicians, and musical organizations to the
cultural life of our City, State, Nation and World.

Dated this 19th day 0 f April, 20 t 6.

Arlyn Van Beck
Mayor of the City of Mandan

NMW THEME, 2016: "Music ....Notes to the Future"



~ ?Aiii
CITvor

MANDAN
"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS"

Consent Agenda No.3

Board of City Commissioners

Agenda Documentation

MEETING DATE:
PREPARATION DATE:
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT:
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR:
PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:

April 19, 2016
April 15,2016
Administration
Jim Neubauer, City Administrator
Jim Neubauer, City Administrator
Employer Participation Agreement in NDPERS 
LE Plan

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To consider the Employer Participation Agreement in the
North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Law Enforcement (ND PERS LE)
Retirement Plan.

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: As a result of Board action to provide the ND
PERS LE retirement plan to sworn officers an agreement is required between the City of
Mandan and ND PERS.

There are a few steps that we are currently working on to implement the transition.
1) April 19, 2016 - Board approve the attached agreement.
2) Amend current retirement plan document to indicate:

a. Sworn officer hire after June 30, are automatically enrolled in the ND
PERS LE plan

b. Allow current sworn officers to waive participation in ND PERS LE if
they wish to remain in our current plan.

3) April- May = training sessions and complete enrollment forms
4) Jun is" Deadline for enrollment forms
5) July 1, enrollment date
6) July 2016 payroll deductions begin.

The effective date of the agreement is proposed to be July 1,2016. This gives ample time
for employees to review their individual situations and adequate training sessions from
ND PERS and to allow for our current plan amendments to take place to ensure
employees have all best options available to them.

ATTACHMENTS: Employer Participation Agreement in the North Dakota Public
Employees Retirement System Law Enforcement Retirement Plan.



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: April 19, 2016
Subject: Employer Participation Agreement in NDPERS - LE Plan
Page 2 of2

FISCAL IMPACT: Minimal to unknown at this timc depending upon on the number of
current employees that may opt into this plan.

STAFF IMPACT: time to implement changes

LEGAL REVIEW: City Attorney Brown has reviewed the agreement and has no issues.

RECOMMENDATION: I recommend approval of the Employer Participation
Agreement in the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Law Enforcement
Retirement Plan with an effective date ofJuly 1,2016.

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move approval of the Employer Participation Agreement in
the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System Law Enforcement Retirement
Plan with an effective date of July 1,2016



EMPLOYER PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT
INTHE

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAW ENFORCEMENT RETIREMENT PLAN

This agreement is entered into pursuant to Section 54-52-02.1 of the North Dakota Century Code
by and between CITY OF MANDAN 200027, North Dakota, as authorized by the resolution
hereto attached and the NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
(NDPERS) as authorized by the Retirement Board through its chairman and executive director and
shall be effective on 1, 2016.

Whereas, a referendum has been held of the eligible peace officers and correctional officers of
CITY OF MANDAN, North Dakota, pursuant to Chapter 54-52-02.2 of the North Dakota Century
Code, and a majority of such eligible employees have voted in favor of participation in the
Retirement System and CITY OF MANDAN has determined that this agreement should be entered
into; and

Whereas, the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement Board agrees to extend the benefits of
the Public Employees Retirement System to eligible employees of CITY OF MANDAN;

Now, therefore, it is agreed and understood that:

1. All of the provisions of Chapter 54-52 of the North Dakota Century Code and the
current or later amended rules of the Retirement Board shall apply with regard to
benefits, contributions and administration of the system.

2. The employee contribution rate has been actuarially determined to be 4.00% of
"wages" and "salaries" as defined in Section 54-52-01 of the North Dakota
Century Code for those eligible employees employed at the date of this
agreement and for those eligible employees whose date of employment is after
the effective date.

3. The employer contribution rate shall be a percentage of "wages" and "salaries"
for all eligible employees as defined in Sections 54-52-01 of the North Dakota
Century Code, which specific percentage shall be determined by the retirement
board. (Ref. N.D.C.C. 54-52-06 and 54-52.1-03.2.)

4. Eligible employees who are employed by CITY OF MANDAN at the time this
agreement is entered into have the option of not participating in the Public
Employees Retirement System. Eligible employees who waive participation in the
Public Employees Retirement System may not have their pay increased as a result
of that waiver, which determination shall be made by the retirement board in its sole
discretion, and any violation of this requirement will constitute a breach of this
agreement.

5. All eligible employees hired by CITY OF MANDAN on or after 1,
2016, must participate in the Public Employees Retirement System.

6. Should CITY OF MANDAN wish to terminate membership with the Public
Employees Retirement System, it shall do so only after:

(a) Submitting a request in writing to the Retirement Board at least sixty (60)

ORG-1106 (06-2012)



days prior to the requested date of withdrawal; and

(b) Complying with Section 54-52-02.1 of the North Dakota Century Code
and the Rules of the Retirement Board regarding withdrawal from the
system.

7. This Agreement may be amended in writing by mutual agreement of both parties.

8. If the CITY OF MANDAN fails to perform according to its statutory participation
requirements and the terms of this agreement, the NDPERS Board may terminate
the CITY OF MANDAN's enrollment in NDPERS. The termination shall be
performed pursuant to the withdrawal procedures outlined in N.D.C.C. Chapter 54
52.

Executed at , North Dakota, this __ day of , 20 .

CITY OF MANDAN

By _

By _

Executed at Bismarck, North Dakota, this __ day of , 20__.

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BOARD

DateExecutive Director
By__-=-_--,----=-,--- ----=-,---_

ORG-1106 (06-2012)



· CITYOF MANDAN

IConsent No, 4

SUNDAY ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE,PEnMIT

Date of Application: __~~'-L--&"~:""- - _

Nameof Licensee: 'ffi Ok. V\ ~ 0, Y""\.

Address ofLicensee: \ 1 \ l 1'Th-

moo S~·e- l;:\':t 5

~ AJf-

Address ofpublic facility ifused: ---------~-----

State thepurpose oforganization: G 0 l:P ±QyC('0'4!t4&cYC 40'11 6[(?7Ze., AJ

-~~~~ ~A&t~~'
-~ (~Date(s) of requested Sunday(s): . / - '- ...u - 01£t - 6tJ-;::)

.~- '~_.-. {/

Time of daywhich the applicant desires the permitto be in effect: ~.f(?;' - /1(£/22

Description oftherooms on the premises, whichhavebeen specifically reserved, for the
dispensing of alcoholic beverages and dancing during the term ofthe permit: -1~-c.J2-

?U/fJt ')cn-d1' ¢e~~'

State whether the applicant requests permission to open to the generalpublic, and ifso an
explanation ofthereasons for the request: d - ~ --r;./"u

Ifapplicable, estimatedn~ber ofpolice officers necessaryto providesecurityat the
dance to be ope~ to thepublic: ~;Y::,,-,-,)4,--__~ _

I the applicant will abideto the following conditions:

a. Alcoholic beverages may be distributed for consumption on the premisesand
Dancing maybe permitted onlyin thoseroomsspecificallyreserved for event
activities;

j

b. Dancing andthe dispensing of alcoholic beverages shall be permittedonly
between thehours oftwelve noon'on the datespecified in thepermit and one
a.m, onthe following Monday; ; .

j

c. Any conditions or circumstances delineated by the Boardrelatingto the conduct
'ofllie event orto the admissionof the general public to the event.



GAMING srrs AUTHORIZATION
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL
SI'N 11996 (02/2016)

lConsent No. 5i I
G- L __)_

Site License Number
(Attorney General Usa Only)

The above organization is hereby authorized to conduct games of chance under the license granted by the
Attorney General of the State of North Dakota at the following location

/

If conducting Raffia or Poker aclivityprovidedate(s) or monU1(S) of event(s)ifknown

RESTRICTIONS (City/County Use Only) Tobe completed ONLY if restrictions are set by the local governing body

Daysof week of gamingoperalions Hoursofgaming

ACTIVITY TO BE CONDUCTED Please check all applicable games to be conducted at site

Bingo

ELECTRONIC Quick Shot Bingo
Raffles

ELECTRONIC 50/50 Raffle
PullTabJar

PullTab Dispensing Device

ClubSpecial

Tip Board

Seal Board
Punchboard

Prize Board

Prize Board Dispensing Device

Sports Pools

Twenty-One
Poker
Calcuttas

Paddlewheels with Tickets

Paddlewheel Table

APPROVALS

Allorney General

Signalure of CilylCounty Auditor

PRINTNameand official position of personsigningon behalfof dty/countyabove

Date

Date

INSTRUCTIONS:

1. City/CountyAUditors ~ Retain a copy of the Site Authorization for your files.

2. City/CountyAuditors ~ Return the original Site Authorization form to the Organization.

3. Organizations- Send the original, signed, Site Authorization to the Office of AttorneyGeneral with any
other applicable licensing forms for final approval.

RETURN ALL DOCUMENTS TO:

Office of Attorney General
Licensing Section
600 E Boulevard Ave, Dept. 125
Bismarck, NO 58505-0040
Telephone: 701~328-2329 OR 800-326-9240



"
r~i~:8·117f\t. AGnE;[:iVi~:~NT
orncs OF IrrronNE'( G~[\!E'J'lAL
UC;EN~HNGSECTION
SFN 9tfn (R~v. CS·201~»)

···~~5ji!i~>e2~:~;):·~/~)--li·~~J~;);·~~:-~~;.?·j-;··;L'(~"""""""""""··,,·············_·"-·I·~~.W;·,.j~;Zt?zi'~l£:~:i·;.:r·'···_·-lsi~~f>~~:~~~~VJy_···_·
···::;E·~;F'(i(I;:~$:,;-_· ,(J( _._",•... .JL .•.I: ../l...""""'l'Cii'Y--' - " _ pi&).~_ .. ·fiT';<5o;I'---------or "~,"ii --------- -----
J)04.'J,......s5.f.ji!.t},J...ii!.l:.:y.-f)/l :&,[f._...._ J}Ji?t.~!DL)!.{~!.I :- -~..:--).JJJ.[1......._.. Q!f:.:j:~.y ..._._._ .,ilJAJ.tlAL.....__.....,
0: .Iam<::'lllf.-a (Ll'SSIlC) 1:(!itull-',mo(t

/1JjL<;JZ:Ci/lV.. )?!aIV/?/l!?dP ../·7J/I...(tL/j}.!d£X...._,.. ~..JaL~L!;/!aiY..._..~~..Jfj!Pt!.'.i1;U{ill? ..._~'/IOIl~~ ~~!~.~~.l:~':~l_.
i. til fHr\iJo fJoi<lg 10 l~:: conduded at tili5 sit,,;'t 1)./1 No rJ YilS

·Ia. li'Y"s"lo number 1 above, j~ Bitl(l(llh0l11'1mmy 9f;l\Wconducted? .",. .... $
Ii "Y.,;;," (:lllf:r th~ l110nihly f<ll1ll'ilnQLI!il (0 be p"icl. "1'11011 ,1115','101" u,ues~iol'lS? -'i htl! (1<> 110:. C"] No ["'1 Ye3
('~n~c!" ml., rf,1:llt amounts. ,._0 .,,-

I~: pun THbr." itw.)lving (.Hb~~( ~ j:,;r tHu anC:()f ~ d(~p~:)ra~ir~~J c1l)v~c~: c<.\tldl!~~t(::d {:;~ thh~ ;;:H:;?
, I

Plt:;,~:\~ d~c~d~: [J J£u' r:.~tH· (mly [] nh:p~~J\~:in9 ()u":)k;,~ O;jl~' l);l J~H' l~8r t~:ld t)k<·).~;H~lnf:! O,;:,:\;ir:~
I' \

(;,

~)O ()
.........................._ _.._._ " " __ _ _ _ _ - ...i~:.._ _..•.__ .

j
'I<* ;11,!i0i11tIIYI'\ont

~; ill) (;
.......,"\' ' _ .

Xi:::' nCi'l'i N ..A(::i'~I:t";bV:I"r i.: h~i~'m,''-l lil'~ OWn:.)!' (lESSOn) ~;ncl (};WIIlil.,:!ioj, (U::~~'JEq liK\lvJ:,l he l("~~jni! tho sH·. !,H'(}I1(illtl lpn,''; <:.j Ch'''lC(,'.

'0"1::': LEt';~;On t..;1:"l: :'S; l.t~~ nofP:~.U8 wj!~ he(i;r\.;;~t;y o~c~'<:)~I:l'l ('.~ p:,:(t of ~il'::; l~;~,t\(.·;'511.!::~h~(!*;t.

llK, I.C1::80H ~ ,:r<,(,:~ lh,:;\ lh" (lessor), (10:<~('~'!;) f,PO~I;;(), (!\~;;~or's} f'!,:llm(~n hm!~,:hQkI mr>illb,;:;·.-" (1l1,'ni:J\~\l,~IlI), (mf:I),,~[Icmcnrl':) SpiJ(lG0, (';" Ill.
(·:',nii;\')y~t~ (;,.; t])\; If:5~;()i' VJ:~o i~ tt1 n ~\o:;iHon l(l clr)l~lfOVe ~H· (.k·n~t '.1 ka:.:~~ m:'l}t n0i COjKI\IG~ !·~.-"n~~ (-,It :":IIY O(th? (J~~!::mj;;;.c:iton·s $i(u~.. cindl e~~cef-"! i~')l oflicr.rs ~U){;

hor,,(i 0'(di~"d..-:" 1lJ·.~l"d}~rs who <lid not<ipplO'.'(' the k:ll~':,)' Illay not rl;;:y ~~al"n,,·~ ~'l thot ~j"i;' Ho',·,"01!,,",<ll)r.n~fllploy,~(> IllOlY redce.,> <IW)l'Illill;) ptllllii\b or pli;;;,:
t'o;;;'d~ illV()lvin~J ,: dif:pc:nsing d:tvios ~1I1d sell mfite licl~ds 01" spol"l~ po,,: Ch:~IlC;;~ (,11 <l il~)~,rd 0:) b,":'~Jif of'ln (JlwmizaliOIl.

" i'l~ U:·:~;son "f!"~('3 that the )':S$o('s on c:?:,i or IEllllflomry or pUI'!l~;1Gij~ cmp!oy,%: will nt,I, dii"0CUy 01' illdir0cHy, conduct l!:'llm~~ ~l\ til'} sits 8$ (,;1 lOll'!lpJ()y,:~ o(
Ih~ Im;~0,} on tho ~<lnl~' ('~y Ute (~nlplo:/<')0 is VJ:llldng ill tho n,e,,", of th" b::[ wh()r<~ s!coholic )):;lv~rQ~.'1:i ~:l"O dispensed0"consumed.

l'llh'~ Le'>Sr£ providl.\\llh<: l.ossor wilh a tempormy !l)~... ~)f ftm(l;; for rdnrnill!J pHlIln:J!;01" prim hQI'((1~:. or l:1Cllh, invtll'/illg ," t;i3pm)~,lng d<,:i~'O. til:>' f.Gs;;,',·
c::~:;'Q~:': to r~~p~t>J lh~ 0l1th',a I:.:~;.:n in)rI1stii~r{:;}~y ~/J(h:n tll(: k;::it;C:;·~ dif;!;'/~I1~inua~,:,t!~ill~ HH: devfc(~ (·l~ iii:, sa~~. .

:,

Til:> l.l~$SOi~ ol!l'UC'':; llot to fnl;:)l"n"m \\~I~l ,; <ltl;!)~IFl to iilf1u<.ot;(1 lhi': I."s::(~a·s sz!o,'·!ion of iJ<lIll,~<" cl0:-;·.lmlnalk,n c:pri1.os, includillf) a bl:lgO im;~po~ pri<.e, 0"
disbuf$GnK,nlof n(;~ pro\;O ~d,·;.



Gl\lVHNG srre AUTHORtlATION
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY Gl:NEF~AL
SFN 'I799l)(0?-12016)

IConsent No, 5ii

-. -.G ~ ( .L_
Site License Number

(Attorney Gen<:ml UseOnly}

CalclIHaf,

Paddlewheels with Tick~)!s

P8ddlewheol Table

Sports Pools
7
".1, litJenty-One

PO!(0r

e;i~l~;i-Na-m~-;-Ga-II-1if-19-O(ga-ni-Za-fi-or;----------~... ~

"..._,. ---12)1.21:YZ~!.l):l.t1._/32(jldj)j21if.2.1ll ....,Et2i2...tJJ/l DL:.B;f .__.---1
Ti IE) <IbOV0 organiz<ltion is berE.'oy mlf!lor.ized to CCH1t!1l<;'t g"lmw, of Ch8rlCQ under the license grant0d by tho

Attornoy G0110rd (If the State of North D~lllOt<l at th0 'foflowing tocatlon

....c ~.- _ _ .. ~.,._ "".~ __ "'''~",•••• _ •• ~ _ •••·~· ~ H ,'0.0. , ~ _ , .-.. _ _ _ .._ ,.. • ...........- _._ .,

r~i~:~~~,:~iE~~~ON~_.~~!y!?~~~;tY·l;i~=();~·t~12~~~:~3.j·0~i~~d~?~~~i!ir·r:~~~~!~~~i?.!."~tb.x,~j~ 1~;~1"'90-;~;:~i~g·b~~2'_._J
l0<:lYS of week of gaming oporntlons • Hours oegumlng

..=--:::-·-_:::::-:.:=-::.:.-._-_-.._-~.~:_-..,-,.;~-_-,-.._·::::.-:::::.7_=:.-_-_-._:::::::.-:::::..--._-...:.::.~.::.-~..-_..:.::_.:::=:.:.---.:::::.-_--::. .._. .----
j\GTfl/IlY TO BE CONDUCTf:D P!e~S0 check all applicable gamer:; to be conducted at site

['.- BiHfP Club Special

c:~ EU?:GnWi\lIC Olliek Shot mogo Tip Board

J~:Jfie$ Se<:\1 80<ln:.1

H.I~ClTWN1C 00/50 Raffle PllnchbO<ir(j
')rr Pull lab Jar Prim HOMd
7' Pull To~b Dispensing Device Prizo Bomd Dispensing Device--,. -

•__ R.' •• _ ••• __ • _ __ ._~ •• _ ••~.__ •••• ""__••..:~ ,,__.~ •• _ ,.._~_ ,.~,~ _ ••••• ' _I _......,.~ __ •., __ _ '."' .--~•....--~I·

Attorney (;,;n01<11 Dale

s1jr;;,(li;:;;'of"i:ily/coi,,;-iyAudilor--·---·-·-·------.-----... -.-....------..------.--- Di5"'-"''''''

PRINT N<lme and officisl positioll of p~{f;on signing on behalf or cily/county above

H\S'rWJCTIONS:
1. City/County Auditors - Retain a copy of the SiteAuthorization for your files.

2. City/County Auditors 0, Return the origin;;tl Site Authorization form to the QrgMizaiion,

3. Organiz8tions - Send th~) ol"iginal, signed, Site Authorization to tho Qffige of AltorQEiv Genera! withany
other applicable licen()ing forms for final approval.

HETUHN ALL KJOGUMENTS TO;

Office ofAttorney General
Licensing Section
GOO E Boulevard Avo, Dopt. 125
Bismarck, NO 58505~0040
Telephone: 701-328-2329 or{ 800-326-9240



nr:~NTJ\t AGl1EEIVIENT
OFFICE: OFATTOHNEY GENH'::AL
L1CENSIHG SECTION
SFN 9413 (Rev. 08·?-013)

;~. I~ a 1'<1ii!~, drswin(J ([oino to 1)(-) conductedat this site? Dll No [J Yes $
....._ __.__.~_.._._.__.__•__._._._.._•.__ _ _._.._._._.•..__••._ _.._ _.'i._._ __ .. _.... .__

..~~.. ~~.I.:ii~~~~.~:~.i~:V~.I~~I~:~.(~I::~~ir~~_:.~)~:~:n<lll~:~:~~~.: ~jlC.~,, ._ .._._.._.. _.. 154 ~~ .._.~J ~:_ ~ _
4. !(; Tw(;nly·Ouf)comluc\(,dat thins;:.. ',' 1'_'_-1 No 'j $

Nl!lllber of fahl<Js with w",g<lnl lip to $5 . X r~,~l\t per 'lhbJ(l S IX Yes

N\lmbarof Tableswith W<lfpr,:; '··'!Elr se ...--l--_.. X Henl per Tal)le s ::~·=:~~·{2~~l~~ ·;-_·--.··;;X)""·---
_ _. ._.. ._ __..__.._. .__ _ __. _ _._.. _ .._ __._~,~2._:_._ _. _
.'o. I" Paddlewh0d, condilc!&,l at this "ite?

Nl!rnlmr01 '1.blo:, X [{en; »2r 'Iablo $ .__.__ ._ ,.._. f),tJ No
.;,;-.'

[] Yt)s

TW~Nlfl or: RENTi\LAGREl::iVlt:N'I':

This HEN'!'!\!..AGREEMENTif; bclw(:'c:I the Owne,- (U::SSOH)and Org<:niz~ltk'll (1.E;8~;f:E) tMt wlII tm IN'I,slllg Ihe silo ttl conduct galilC$ of c1l<1I1C0.,
'ih~ LESSOR HgW'iS I! ;<'ll no g<lllH~ will be ~lirecHy opr.l'al~:d as pal'! of tire 10ssor's business.

The LESSOr~ il9r~cf, that llit: (I<!cS:>OI'), {less,)\"s) SPO",;!). (lessor's) common household mornbere, (m,lIlagenWI1\), (nl<lnl1gemenrs) SflO\ISC, or ,\!l

employeeof tho I~,s~,v.· who is in H positiol1 to approve or ~kmy ,1 tense )\1(1'/ not conduct 9,:111(,':; Flt <J.{ly of the organilaiion'ssitesand, exceptfor ofiic:crs and
board of direc(orsmemberswho did not approve Ih010<:1S0, m~y not pray9<1rn(::;. <1t Ill!'l (,iI0. However, a bar employee ll1<1y redeem a winning pull tabor pri~.~
boards inv{lI'Iing!l dlsperdng dfNice and sell raffle tickets Orsportspool ct.nnccs on El uoard on 1)011£111 of an organii:<ltion.

Tl10 IJ,SSOH 8!Jre'3$ ihat lhe lessor's on calt or temporary or permanent en,ployef,l will not, dir<':l'~ly or indirectly, conductgamesot lhe $i~o as an 0mploye~ of
tili) IC$$e~ on lila !;iam~ clily thG' ~lnployee i!> working in the mfla of th., b~r wh<~re /)!(;(Jhol!c b<>VOi>lfJ<% are di$penseri or (;0I1SlI111<1:d.

11 lh~ LESSEEprovides the Lessor with a temporary loan of Funds for re<!I,eminfi Pl!1t tabs 01' prize bONd~, or both, involving a dispensing device, the Lessor
,iWec,; to lcpa~' tho <mtim loan ilrall~.:liately Wilen th<lI\l3S00 di:;cQIWimlllS ~isillg the devtce at tho dM.

The I£ssor~ aweef, not to interfeTO "'lUll 01' attempt to inffuenco the lessee's selection CJf 9<11\185, determination of priZElS, indmlin9 a bingoj1CC{(pot pri1./), or
dr~bui~(:mcl1t of net I):occcos,

TtlfJ L~:S8Of, agr.;lfJ3 net to loan money to, provide ~F'minl1 eqllil"ment10, or countdrop boy. cash for the lessee.

I\t 1:10 I.ESSOR'SopHoa, Ih~~ ie$~'~" ogfCe;·; th~l this mnld ;;1~Jff'CI11<:llt m;·.'j be f.lI!or.;;"licoify t"l'mflli:l(ed if lh~~ les~<'·.;':; gaming licenseis suspended at Ihis ~ite
fur m:;;,<;: UlanfourteendtWsor revoked.



IConsent No.6 I

Corporation Liquor License Application

1. Type of License:

Liquor On-Sale_.t'_ Off-Sale__ Class: ABC D Dl E F WB MP DY

0000000000

Beer On-SaleL. Off-8010__ Class: ABC D Dl E F WB MP DY

0000000000

2. Duration of license: Annual: July l, to June 30, _

Part of year from:~ 20 II..; to-D~, 20...lia.-

3. Name of business establishment at which license will be used: Dacotah Speedway

4. Corporate Identification Information: Please completeall of the following:

N f· t' Bismarck Mandan Stock Car Association, Inc.a. ame 0 corpora IOn: _

b. Date of incorporation: _1_9_8_8 _

c. State of incorporation: _N_o_rt_h_D_a_k_o_t _

d.

c.

f.

g.

Amount of authorized capital stock: _

Amount of paid capital: _

If, subsidiary, name of parent corporation: _

Purposeof incorporation: Promote Auto Racing

5. Description of licensed premises

Address: 2500 Longspur Trail, Mandan, NO

Legal description

Lot & block: Lot 1, Block 2 - Midway 18t Addition
Also submit 011 au attached page a diagram of the physical layout of the licenses premises
including, a mlnlmum of doors, storage areas and areas where liquor/beer is purchased and
consumed.



Address: 3388 Little Rock Court

Age: DOB: Citizenship: _U_S__

6. List names, current addresses, dates of birth, ages and citizenship of all the officers, directors,
managers, agents , and all persons holding I%or moreof the capital stock in the corporation (may attach),
Note: A separate notarized list of each individual's name, social security number and addresses for
the last five years is required, the privacy of which will be malntalned by the City, but Is required
for background checks:

7. List names, current addresses, dates of birth, ages & citizenship of all persons who will have charge,
management or control of the establishment for which the license is requested (may attach). Note: A
separate notarlzed list of each individual's name, social security number and addresses for the last
five years is required, the privacy of which will be malntalned by the City, but is required for
background checks:

See attachment - Board of Directors

H'_ . , _

8. Name of the individual who is to be in charge of the day-to-day operations and management of the
licensed premises and will be responsible for complying with the municipal ordinances and state laws
covering the operation of the premises:

Name: Levi Kalsow

City: Bismarck State: ND

If naturali zed, give date and place of naturalization: _

List at! other places of residence within the last five years: _

9. List the occupations and employers of each of the individuals listed in answer to questions 6, 7 and 8
during the last five years. Use a separate page to answer this question.

10, Ownership/Lease: If the licensed premises is owned by the applicant, provide date of purchase.

If licensed premises is leased, attach copy of executed and dated Lease.



11. Does Aoplicant certify that all property taxes have been paid to date on the licenses premises?
Yes No n/a

12. Have any of the individuals identified in answer to Questions 6,7, and 8 ever engaged in the sale or
distribution of alcoholic beverages (as an owner, manager, 01' employee) at a location other than in the
City of Mandanat any time prior to this application. Yes: No:~ If yes, explain in detail
on a separate page location, type of business and dates of license 01' employment.

13. Have any of the individuals identified in answer to Questions 6, 7 and 8 ever had a license of any
kind (including alcoholic beverage license, other business licenses or motor vehicle Iirense) Suspl"nrled,
revoked 01' non-renewed by any political subdivision,state or federal agency, Yes: No:.(
If yes, explain in detail on a separate page.

14. Have any of the individuals identified in answer to Questions 6, 7 and 8 ever been convicted of a
violation of any law of the United States, or of any state or political subdivision other ths» minor traffic
violations, (but including reckless driving or driving under the influence). Yes __ No -1._ If yes,
explain the vlolation in detail on a separate page.

15. Do any of the individuals named in answer to Questions 5, 6 or 7 have any interest whatsoever in any
other liquor establishment, either at wholesale or retail, within or without the state of North Dakota. (The
interest which must disclose also includes a right of inheritance by law or by will). Yes No~
If, yes please explain in detail on a separate page.

16. Docs anyone other than the Corporation applying for this alcoholic beverage license 01' the business
owing the premises have any right, estate, or interest in the lease hold buildin« or furniture, fixtures 01'

equipment, in the premises for which the license is requested. Yes No~ If yes, explain in
detail on a separate page.

17. Does the Corporation applying for this alcoholic beverage license have any agreement, contract,
understanding or intention to have any agreement, contract or understanding, with any person,
partnership, or corporation to obtain for any other person, partnership or corporation, or to transfer to any
other person, partnership or corporation the license for which this applications is made or to obtain for
any other person nartnershln 01' corporation, for any other purpose other than for the specified usc of the
applicant. Yes__ No~ If yes, explain in detail on a separate page.

18. Does the Corporation applying for this license or the person, partnership or corporation owing the
premises named herein, engage in any business other than that for which the license is sought or intending
to engage ill any business othp.r than "liw the sale of alcoholic beverages under the license for which this
application is made. Yes:__ No:L If yes, explain, in detail on a separate page giving the type
of business and identification of any and all owners.

19. List the names and addresses of all officers, directors and stockholders of the Corporation who are
engaged or employed in a capacity in the conduct 01' operation of the business at which the alcoholic
beverage license is to be used,

None

20, The corporation must have a valid Certificate of authority issued by the North Dakota Secretary of
state and a valid Alcoholic Beverage License issued by the ND Attorney General's Office. A copy of the
Certificate of Authority and ND Alcoholic Beverage License must be attached hereto.



21. List the names, addresses of at least 3 business references, _

Cenex - Box 366, Bismarck, NO 58501

Butler - Box 757, Bismarck, NO 58501

RDO - Box 7160, Bismarck, NO 58501

22. Docs the building 01' structure in which the business is to be conducted mecr all applicable state and
local building, health and zoning regulations and requirements? Yes__ No _ Applicant must
attach certifications of compliance from each state and/or local agency or department responsible
for building, health and zoning regulations.

23. List all the names of individuals who are authorized to make purchases for the business at which the
IiCCllSC is to be used and located,

See attachment

Note: These individuals must submit their names, current address and soelal security numbers on
the forms which will protect there rights of privacy, but allow the appropriate police department
background checks to be done. If not attached, the application will be deemed incomplete.

24. List the names of all individuals who are authorized to sign checks used to pay the payroll and
expense bills of the business at which the license is to be used.

See attachment



Dated at Mandan, North Dakota, on this

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA ) Affidavit of Application Completenessand Accuracy,
) S8. Sworn Statement ofConditions of Licensure,

COUNTY OF MORTON ) and Agreement 10Right of Entry of City Personnel

I, Herb Bargmann , having been sworn and under oath, state that [ am a
duly authorized officer or director, namely Treasurer • of the above named
corporation which hereby applies for the above referenced alcoholic beverage license in the City of
Mandan, and [ do hereby certify that the above information is true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and beliefs.

I do further certify that said corporation and its officers, directors and employees will abide by the
provisions of Chapter 4 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances and any amendments thereto, as well as al
applicable laws of the State of North Dakota, and the United States Government lind that said
Corporation, its officers, directors and employees will not permit the violation of any law, rule or
regulation on the premises at which the license is authorized. I further certify that the corporation, its
officers and directors acknowledge that this license will only authorize the retail sale of liquor, including
beer, wine and other spirits as defined by the North Dakota Century Code, at the premises designated in
this application unddepicted on the attached diagram.

1do further certify and affirm on behalf of the corporation, its officers, directors and employees that the
corporation will not sell or permit the sale of alcoholic beverages to a minor, incompetent person, or
anyone who is under the influence or an habitual drunkard and that I wiII accept any penalty including,
suspension or revocation of license for any violation of said prohibited sales.

[ do further certify and affirm that the applicant corporation, its officers and directors understand and
acknowledge that any license granted under this application confers no property right to the applicant 01'

licensee, and that said license will not be transferable except by specific authority 0 f the Mandan Board
of City Commissioners.

I do further certify and affirm that the applicant corporation, its officers, directors and employees do
hereby consent to the entry of any city official (including administrative, building, zoning health and fir
officials) and its police officers upon the premises described herein at any hour of the day or night and
that they shall have free access to the described premises and every part thereof for the purpose of
inspecting the premises and the records of this applicant relating to the operation of the premises, and
purchase and sale of alcoholic beverages. 1 further certify and affirm that the corporation, its officers,
directors and employees do hereby waive any and all rights that they may have under the Constitution of
the United States and the State of North Dakota, relative to searches and seizures without issuance of a
search warrant, and the applicant docs hereby agree that such immunitiesshall never be claimed by them,
and that such entry, inspection, search and seizure may be made at any time without a search warrant,
which waiver of rights is acknowledged to be a condition of licensure.

5 dayOf~. 20-.lP

B~~Its: ~-v;:eGl'o$ •

Attest:

By: _

Its:



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA )
) 55.

COUNTY or MORTON )

I Herb Bargmann , being first duly sworn, deposes and says that he/she is
the individual who executed the foregoing and aboveaffidavit of application completeness and accuracy,
sworn statement of licensure conditions and agreement of right to entry by city personnel, that he/she has
read each question lind statement contained therein lind knows the contents thereof to be true and
accurate, and that he/she has furnished the answers sci forth in said application, and that each one of said
answers is true to the best of this knowledge.

SUbscribed and sworn to before me on this

(Notary Seal)



CITY OFMANDAN

SPECIAL "B" LIQUOR PERMIT

Date of Application: Apri I 5, 2016
Name of Licensee: Bismarck Mandan Stock Car Association, Inc.

Address of Licensee: Box 6272, Bismarck, NO 58506

Address of public facility if used: 2500 Longspur Trail, Mandan,NO

State the purpose for which this permit will be used: Mandan Rodeo

Date(s) of requested (not to exceed 3 day)July 2,3)4, 2016,--"----_----:.----------

Time of day which the applicant desires the permIt to be in effect: 8 a.m. to mldnight

Does this organization have approval of the Mandan Park District for this application?

Yes .; No_

Date Received:__-L.-=---1~---=-~__
Commission Approval: _

§9~r Event - Amount paid $ I 00 (.t)



CITYOF MANDAN

SUNDAY ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE PERMIT

Date of Application: _A---:p_ri_' _5_,_2_0_1_6 _
Name of Licensee: Bismarck Mandan Stock Car Association

Address of Licensee: Box 6272, Bismarck, NO 58506

Address of public facility if used: 2500 Longspur Trail, Mandan

State the purposeof organization: Promote Auto Racing

Date(s) of requested Sunday(s): June 12, July 31, August 7, August 14

T' f d hich tl I' desi h . be i ff 12p.m,to12a.m.ime 0 ay W rc t ie app tcant esrres t e permit to e In e teet : _

Description of the rooms on the premises, which have been specifically reserved, for the
dispensing of alcoholic beverages and dancing during the term of the permit:

Main Concessions and Pit Concessions

State whether the applicant requests permission to open to the general public, and if so an
explanation of the reasons for the request:

Yes



If applicable, estimated number of police officers necessary to provide security at the
dance to be open to the public:

None

I, the applicant, will abide to the following conditions:

a. Alcoholic beverages may be distributed for consumption on the premises and
Dancing may be permitted only in those rooms specifically reserved for event
activities;

b. Dancing and the dispensing of alcoholic beverages shall be permitted only
between the hours of twelve noon on the date specified in the permit and one
a.m, on the following Monday;

c. Any conditions or circumstances delineated by the Board relating to the conduct
of the event or to the admission of the general public to the event.

d. The applicant as a condition to the issuance of such permit consents and agrees
that any City police officer may enter upon and inspect the licensed premises or
any part thereof at any time for the purpose of determiningcompliance with the
conditions of the permit;

e. The permit issued under this section may not expand the scope of the class of
alcohol license held by the applicant;

f. An applicant which holds a Class A liquor license must supply copies of the most
recent six month's filings of the City food and lodging taxes and allow the City to
verify with the ND State Tax Department that said tax paymentshave been made.

g. The permittee shall comply with all other applicable ordinances and laws relating
to the useand sale of alcoholic beverages in the City.

Date Received: -l-_-:::.._.L...J=.._

Commission Approval: _

J1 ~uditor Approval: _

'-I~ 6::; '3P
$5.00 Fee pel' Sunday-Amount paid $ dO·CL")

Copy to be filed with Mandan Police Department

Receipt # _



GAMING SITE AUTHORIZATION
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL
SFN17996(02/2016}

IConsent No. 7iI

G- L __}_
Site license Number

(Attorney GEmeralUse Only)

NDlnf: of Location Powerhouse/501

Street
501 Burlington Street SE

City IZIP Code County
MortonMandan 58554

BeginnIng Date($) Authorized 7/1/16 Ending Date(s) Authorized 6/30/17 Numoer at twenty-one
2tables if zero,enter"0":

Specific location where games atchance willbe
conducted~ played at thesite(required) Games will be conductedin bar area, excluding the restroorns.

If conducting Raffle orPOker acllvlly pro'llde date(s) ormonlh(s) of event{s) if kl\Own

RESTRICTIONS (City/County Use Only) To be completed ONLY ifrestrictions are set by the local governing body

Days ofweekotgaming operatlons IHours ofgaming

ACTIVITY TO BE CONDUCTED Please check all applicable games to be conducted at site
.-- r-- ,--
I-

Bingo
f-

Club Special Sportspools

I--
ELECTRONIC Quick Shot Bingo

J- Tip Board ~ Twenly-One
J! Raffles Seal Board ~ Pokerto-
I- ELECTRONIC 50/50 Raffle

~
Punchboard Calcuttas

~ Pull TabJar Prize Board
~

PaddJewheels with Ticketsl- f--
~ Pull Tab Dispensing Device

'--
Prize Board Dispensing Device Paddlewheel Table

'--

APPROVALS

Altorney General Oate

Signature of City/County Auditor Data

PRINTName and official position ofperson signing On behalf of cily/counlY above

INSTRUCTIONS:

1. City/County Auditors - Retain a copy of the Site Authorization for your files.

2. City/County Auditors" Return the original SiteAuthorization form to the Organization.

3. Organizations - Send the original, signed, Site Authorization to the Office of AttQro~y General with any
other applicable licensing forms for final approval.

RETURN ALL DOCUMENTS TO:

Office of Attorney General
l.lcensinq Section
600 E Boulevard Ave, Dept. 125
Bismarck, NO 58505-0040
Telephone: 701·328·2329 OR 800·326-9240



RENTAL AGREEMENT
OFFICE OFATTORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTiON
SFN 9413(Rev. 08·2015)

License Numoer (Office UseOnly)

(over)

SUe Owner(Lessor) Site Nama Site PhOne Number

J & C Investments, Inc, Powerhouse/501 (701) 663·3020
SiteAddress ICity State IZiP Code CounlY

501 Burlington Street Sa Mandan NO 58554 Morton
Organizalion (Lessee) IRental Period Monthly RentAmoun1
Mandan Baseball Club, Inc. 7/1/2016 to 6/30/2017

1. Is 8ingogoing to be conducted at thissile? [Rl No 0 Yes
ta, If"Ves" to number 1above. rsBingothe primary gameconducted? $

If''Yes,''enterthe monthlyrent amount to be paid. Then answer questions 2·7 butdo not 0 No 0 Yes
enter anyrentamounts.

2. Is a taffledrawing gOing to be conducted at this sile? [RJ No 0 Yes $

3. Is PrizeBoards Involving a dispensing deviceconducted at Ihis site? @ No 0 Yes $

4. IsTwenly-One concucteo at thissite?

0 [El $
Number of Tables wilh wagersup to $5 X Rentper Table $ No Yes

Number of Tables with wagersover $5 2 X RentperTable $ 300.00 $ 600.00

5. Is Paddlewheels conducted at this site? [RJ 0Numoer of Tables X RentperTable $ No Yes $

--
6. Is PullTabs involving eithera jarbar and/ora dispensing device conducted at thissite? 0 No [R] Yes

Please check: 0 Jar aar Only 0 Dispensing Device Only ~ Jar BarandDispensing DevIce
$ 325.00

.--
Total Monthly Rent

$ 925.00

TERMS OFRENTAL AGREEMENT;

This RENTAL AGREEMENT Is between the Owner (LESSOR) and Organization (lESSEE) matwlll be leasing thesite to conduct gamesof chance.

TheLESSOR agrees lhal no gamewill be directlyoperated as partof thetessor's business.

The LESSOR agrees that the (lessor), (lessor's) spouse, (lessor's) common household members, (management). (managements) spouse, or an
employee of the lessorwhO is In a position to approveor denya leasemaynot conduct games at any of the organization's snesand,except forofficers and
boardof directors members who did not approvethe lease, maynotplaygamesat Ihatelte. However, a baremployee mayredeem a wlnnlng pull tabor prize
boardsInvolving a dispensing deviceandsell rame licketsor sports poolchances ona boardon oehalfof anorganization.

The LESSOR agrees thet the lessor'son call or temporary or permanent l;l{l1ployee will not, dlrecllyor indirectly, conduct games at the siteas an employee of
tne lessee on thesame day theemployee Is wor~ing in the area of thebarwherealcoholic beverages are dispensed or consumed.

lithe LESSEE provides the Lessorwith a tempofa/yloan of funds for redeeming pull tabs or prize boards.or boih, involving a dispensing device. tho Lessor
agr08s to ropay tho ontlr~ loan Immedlatoly whon tho lessso (l!scontlnuos uslng tho devlco at tho site.

The LeSSOR agrees not to Interfere wilh or attempt to Influence the lessee's selecdon of games, determination of prizes. including a oingo jaCkpot prize, or
dlsbursement of netproceeds.

TheLESSOR agrees not to loanmoney10, provtdegaming equipment to.or countdropbox cash fOf the lessee.

At theLESSOR'S option, Ihe lesseeagreesthat lhis rentalagreement maybe automatically terminated If the lessee's gamIng ltcense Issuspended at thissile

r~Qll;h" """OW", or revoked.

e--") JAVJ ~~~OAmrv'2t ·(5Wn.£Jl~·--:<F ;1'-/-Jb
Srgna(ure ofLes~ J' U· 0 Title Date

"Q(~~1xecutlve Official)
-

'~~I~
Date

(.1-(,·- 201 (0
/



GAMING SITE AUTHORIZATION
OFFICE OFATIORNEYGENERAL
SFN 17996(02/2016)

Full,Legal Name of Gaming Organization M d B b II CI b Ian an ase a u 1 nco

IConsent No. 7ii I

G~ L __)_
Site LicenseNumber

(Attorney GeneralUseOnly)

~:
The above organization Is hereby authorized to conduct games of chance under the license granted by the

Attorney General of the State of North Dakota at the following location

Name of tocauon Rock Point

Street
2500 Pirates Loop

Cily /ZIPCOdC County
Mandan 58554 Morton

BegInning Oate(s) Authorized 7/1/16 Ending Date(s) Authorized 6/30/17 Number of twenty-one
1tables ifzero, enler "0":

Specific location where games of chance willbe
conducted .uru:l played at thesite(required) Games wifl be conductedin bar area, excluding the restrooms.

IIconducting Raffleor Pokeractivity provide datets) ormonth(s) ofevenl(s) jf known

RESTRiCTIONS (City/County Use Only) To be completed ONLY if restrictions are set by the local governing body

Days ofweek of gaming operations !Hours of gaming

ACTIVITY TO BE CONDUCTED Please check all applicable gamesto be conducted at site
r-- r-- r-
l---

Bingo
f-

Club Special SportsPools

!- ELECTRONIC Quick Shot8lngo
f- TIp Board t;( Twsntv-Ons

~ Raflles I-'""'
Seal Board Pokerl- I--

10- ELECTRONIC 50/5QRaffle
l---

Punchboard CalcuUas

~ Pull TabJar I--
Prize Board Paddlewhsels with TIckets10- I-Jf Pull Tab Dispensing Device

'--
Prize Board Dispensing Device Paddlewheel Table

'---

APPROVALS

Attorney General Date

Signa!ur~ ofCity/County AUditor Dale

PRINT Name and official posuton ofperson signing onbehalf of clly/county above

INSTRUCTIONS;

1, City/County Auditors - Retain a copy of the Site Authorization for your files.

2, City/CountyAuditors ~ Return the original SiteAuthorization form to the Qrganization.

3. Organizations - Send theoriginal, signed, SiteAuthorization to the Qfficeof Attornw. Gene@twith any
other applicable licensing forms for final approval.

RETURN ALL DOCUMENTS TO;

Office of Attorney General
Licensing Section
600 E Boulevard Ave, Dept. 125
Bismarck, NO 58505~0040

Telephone: 701-328-2329 OR 800·326·9240



RENTAL AGREEMENT
OFFICE OFATTORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
Sf'N 9413(Rev. 08-2015)

License Number (Offica UseOnly)

SileOwner (Lessor) SileName SilePhone Number

Captain Freddn, Inc. Rock Point a01} 751·3348
SiteAddress ICity State IZiP Code Coumy

2500Pirates Loop Sa Mandan NO 58554 Morton
OrganlzaUon (Lessee) IRental Period Monthly Rent Amount
Mandan Baseball Club, Inc. 7/1/2016 to 6/30/2017

1. Is Bingo goingtobe conducted at thissite? 0 No ~ Yes
1a. If "Yes" to number 1 above, is Bingo theprimary gameconducted?

!R] 0
$ 0.00If "res," entertne monthly rent amount to bepaid. Thenanswer quesHons 2- 7 butdo not No Yes

enter any rentamounls.

2. Is a raffle drawing going to beCOnducted !lIthia sile? [R] No 0 Yes $

3. Is Prize Boards Involving a dispensing deVice concucted at thissite? ~ No D Yes $

4. IsTwenty-OM conducted at tills site?

0 I!J $
Number of Tables withwagers up to $5 X Renl per Table $ No Yes

Number of Tables with wagers over $5 1 X RentperTable $ 300.00 $ 300,00.-n_.
5. Is Paddlewheels conducted al this site?

[RJ 0 $X RentperTable $ No Yes
Number or TallIes

6. Is PullTabs inVOlVing eithera jar bar andlora dispensing device conducted at thtssile? 0 No 1RI Yes

Please Check: 0 Jar BarOnly 0 Dispensing DevIce Only lEI Jarsar andDispensing Device
$ 325.00

Total Monthly Rent

$ 625.00

TERM$ OFRENTAL AaIU::I:MENT:

ThisRENTAL AGREEMENT is between the Owner(LESSOR) and Organization (LESSE!::) thatwill heleasing Ills site to conduct games of chance.

TheLESSOR agrees Ihat nogamewHi bedirecllyoperated as partof thelessor's business.

The LESSOR agrees mat the (lessor), (lessor's) spouse, (lessor's) common hOusehold members, (management), (management's) spouse, or an
employee of the lessor who is In a posmon to approve or denya leasemaynol conduct games at anyof tM organli':allon's sitasand, except forofficers and
board ofdirectors members whQ dIdnot approve the lease, may (lOt playgames at lhatsite. However. a baremployee mayredeem awlnn!ng pull taborprize
boards Involving a dispensing deviceandsell ratlleticketsor sports poolchances on a board on behalf of an organIzation,

The LESSOR agrees thaI lhe lessor's on call or temporary or permanent employee will not.dltecUy or indirectly, conduct games at ine siteas anemployee of
tha lessee onthe same day Iheemployee IswO~lng In lhe areaof the barwherealcoholic beverages aredIspensed or consumed.

If the LESSEE provides the Lessor wllh a temporary loan of funds for redeeming pull tabsor prizeboards, or both. involving a dispensing device, tho Lessor
lIgroo~ to repay tho ontlre Joan Immed1ately whon tho lesseediscontinues using tho dllVlcfl at the site,

The LESSOR agrees not to Interfere WIth or attempt to Influence the lessee's setecuon of games, determination ot prl;>.:es, including a bIngo Jackpot prite,or
disbursement of net proceeds.

TheLESSOR agrees not to loanmoney 10, provide gaming equipment to,or countdropboxcash for the lessee.

At lhe LESSOR'S option, thelessee agrees that this rental agreement may be automatically terminated If lhe Jessee's gaming license Issuspended at this site
formorethanfourteen daysor revoked,

/\ ..#

Slgni~ ;LIo._r ;;:>)1:2/1tt.X. ~
""Srg~ ~ee=x~~~clal~__.",. T~ Date I

'-.,- re>t~-A (.f~G ' (016
7"- / "'- (over)



Consent No. 7iii
Added 4-19-16

G-____ L __)_
ION

SiteLicense Number
L (Attorney General UseOnly)

GAMING SITE AUTHORIZAT
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERA
SFN 17996 (02/2016)

Full. Legal Name ofGaming OrganizaJion M d B b II CI b Ian an ase au, nco

The above organization is hereby authorized to conduct games of chance under the license granted by the
Attorney General of the State of North Dakota at the following location

Name of Location Broken Oar

Street Cily IZIP Code County
4724 Pintail Loop Mandan 58554 Morton

Beginning Date(s) Authorized 7/1/16 Ending Datets) Authorized 6/30/17 Number of twenty-one
1tables if zero, enter "0";

Speciffclocationwhere games of chance will be
conducted,allil played at the site (required) Gameswill be conducted in bar area, excluding the restroorns.

If COnducting Raffle or Poker activity provide oaters) Or month(s}of eventts) if known

RESTRICTIONS (City/County Use Only) Tobe completed ONLY if restrictions are set by the local governing body

Days of week of gaming operations IHours of gaming

ACTIVITY TO BE CONDUCTED Please check all applicable games to be conducted at site
~ r-r- ,.......
fo-

Bingo - Club Special Sports Pools
ELECTRONIC Quick ShotBingo f0-

r- - TipBoard ~ Twenty-One

r- Raffles Seal Board ~ Poker-
X

ELECTRONIC 50/50 Raffle - Punchboard Calcuttas
Pull Tab Jar I-

- Prize Board Paddlewheels wilhTicketsX PUll Tab Dispensing Device Prize Board Dispensing Device r- Paddlewheel Table= L- -

APPROVALS

Attorney General Date

Signatureof City/CountyAuditor Date

PRINTName and official position of person signing on behalfof city/counlyabove

INSTRUCTIONS:

1. City/County Auditors - Retain a copy of the Site Authorization for your files.

2. City/County Auditors - Return the original Site Authorization form to the Organization.

3. Organizations - Send the original, signed, Site Authorization to the Office ofAUorneV General with any
other applicable licensing forms for final approval.

RETURN ALL DOCUMENTS TO:

Office ofAttorney General
Licensing Section
600 E Boulevard Ave, Dept. 125
Bismarck, ND 58505-0040
Telephone: 701-328-2329 OR 800-326-9240



RENTAL AGREEMENT
OFFICE OFATIORNEY GENERAL
LICENSING SECTION
SFN9413 (Rev, 08-2015)

ucense Number (Office use Only)

SneOwner(le••or) SiteName SitePhone Number

B&B,lnc. Broken Oar 17011667-2159
SlleAddress ICity Siale IZIP Code County
4724Pintail LOOD Mandan NO 58554 Morton

Orgsnlzallon (lessee) 1Rental Period Monlhly Rent Amount
Mandan Baseball Club. Ina. 7/1/2016 10 6/30/2017

1. Is 61ngo going 10 be conducted ellhis slle? ~ No 0 Yes
1a, If "Y6SK tonumber 1above. Is BIngo theprimary game conducted?

0
$

It "rea." enter the monthly rentamount to be peld. Then answer questions 2 ~ 7 butdonot No 0 Yes
enter anyrentamounts.

2. Is a raffle drawing gOing to be conducted at this site? ~ No 0 Yes $

3. Is Prize Boards InvoMng a dispensing device conducted at this site? ~ No 0 Yes $

4. I. Twenty.One conducted at this slle?

0 ~ $
Number of Tsblas withwagersup to $5 X Renl per Table s No Yes

Number of Tables with wagers over $5 1 X RenlperTable $ 300.00 $ 300.00

5. Is Peddlewheels conducted at thissite?
~ 0Number of Tables X RentperTable $ No Yes $

6. Is PullTabs involving eitheraJarbarand/ora dispensing devIce conducted at this site? 0 No ~ Yes

Please chack: 0 JerBarOnly 0 Dispensing Device Only (!] JarBar and Dispensing Device
$ 325.00

Total Monthly Rent

$ 625,00

TERMS OFRENTAL AGREEMEN'f.

This RENTALAGREEMENTis between the Owner (LESSOR) and OrganIzation(LESSEE) that will be teasingthe site to conduct games of chance.

TheLESSOR agreea lhel no gameWill be directlyopereted aspartof the iesecrs business,

The LESSOR agrees that the (lessor). (lessor's) spouse, (lessor's) common hOusehold members. (management), (management's) spouse, or an
employee of the lessor whois in a poslUon to approve or denya lease maynot conduct games at anyof theorganization's sites and, except for officers and
board Qf dIrectors members whodid not approvethe lease,maynot playgamesat thatsite. However, a baremployee mayredeem a winning pulltabor prize
boards involvIng a dispensing deviceandsellraffleticketsorsports poolchances on a boardon behalfof anorganization.

The LESSOR agrees thatthe le880r'8 on callor temporary or permanent employee wlll not.directly or IndIrectly, conduct games at thesiteasanemployee of
the lessee on the same daytheemployee IsWOrking In theareaof thebarwhere etccnoec beverages aredispensed or consumed.

If the LESSEE provides the lessor With a temporary loanof funds forredeeming pull tabsor prizeboards, or both, involving a dIspensing uevice, the Lessor
.S.... to ",pay th. onU", loan ImmodJatoty whon tho _ dl.conUnuee uslns the deViceat tho sit••

TheLESSOR agrees not to Interfere with or attempt to [nfluence the lessee's selection of games, determination of prizes, IncludIng a bIngo Jackpot prize, or
dlsbursemenl of netproooe<is,

TheLESSOR agrees notto loanmoneyto. prOVide gaming equipment to, or count dropboxcash for thelessee.

At theLESSOR'S option, lhe lessee agrees thatthis rentalagreement maybe automatically termInated If the lessee's gaming license is suspended at this site
formore thanfourteen days or revoked.

- ~n~ lessee fI' ve Official)

'~.L'--=====r '
Dl1-{p-zo(b

(over)



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider placing on the June 14, 2016 election ballot the 

question of whether to publish the minutes of the City Commission meetings. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  According to State Law (NDCC 40-01-09.1) every 

four years each City, regardless of form of government, must place on its ballot the 

question of whether the minutes of the governing body shall be published in the official 

newspaper.   The minutes shall continue to be published until disapproved at a succeeding 

quadrennial election.   In 2012, the electorate approved this action with 4407 “yes” to 635 

“no” votes in favor of publishing these proceedings.  This question must again appear on 

the June 14, 2016 election ballot. This is rather a formality as the question must be asked 

every four years. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

 Copy of NDCC 40-01-09.1 - Publication of city government proceedings - 

Electorate to decide. 

 Copy of ballot language 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:     The total expenditures for publishing the minutes in 2015 were 

$14,495.74.    

 

STAFF IMPACT: minimal  

 

LEGAL REVIEW: City Attorney reviewed ballot language at the time this action 

commenced.    

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To approve placing the question on the election ballot.  

 

MEETING DATE: April 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: April 15, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Administration 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

PRESENTER: Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Publication of the Board Minutes 

 

  

Consent Agenda No. 8   



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Publication of Governing Minutes 

Page 2 of 2 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve placing the question on the June election 

ballot of whether to publish the city’s minutes in the official newspaper. 

 

CITY OF MANDAN 
 

Publication of city Governing Body Minutes 

 

According to state law, once every four years, each city must place on its ballot the 

question of whether or not the minutes of the governing body shall be published in its 

official city newspaper.  If approved, the minutes must be published until disapproved by 

the voters at a succeeding election. 

 

A ”Yes” vote means you want the city of Mandan to publish its city minutes in the 

official newspaper. 

 

A “No” vote means you do not want the City of Mandan to publish its city minutes in the 

official newspaper.   

 

    Shall said Measure be approved?          Yes_______  

                         No_______ 

 



Consent No.9
Revised 4-19-2016

Board of City Commissioners

Agenda Documentation

"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS"

MEETING DATE:
PREPARATION DATE:
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT:
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR:
PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:

April 19,2016
April 14, 2016
Public Works
JcffWright
Jeff Wright, Public Works Director
Consider Architectural Services contract with
EPIC Engineering for the Public Works
Expansion Project

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To approve of city staffs negotiated contract with EP[C Engineering
for architectural and engineering services for the Public Works Expansion Project starting in
2016.
BACKGROUND/ALTERNAT[VES: The City Commission approved the partial use of HUB
City funds ($1.3 M) for the construction of additional storage, office and mechanic space and a
salt/sand storage building at the existing Public Works Facility and on January [9,20[6 the
commission approved the advertising for Professional Architectural Services for the expansion.
On April 5, 2016 commission approved the selection of EP[C Engineering and to start
negotiating a contract for their services.
Project schedule:

• Approve Contract for services with EP[C Engineering: April 19,2016
• Start concept and design work: May 2016
• Start Construction: September 2016 - estimated
• Complete Construction: May 2017 - estimated

ATTACHMENTS: Negotiated contract and project task order form, Revised signature pages

F[SCAL [MPACT:

STAFF [MPACT:

LEGAL REV[EW:

$1.3 M of Hub City Funding.

Time working with architect and dealing with the phasing of the project.

Attorney Brown has reviewed my documentation.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve negotiated contract with EP[C Engineering for architectural
and engineering services for the Public Works Expansion project.

SUGGESTED MOnON: [move to approve negotiated contract with EP[C Engineering for
architectural and engineering services for the Public Works Expansion project.



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: April 19, 2016
Subject: Architectural Services contract for the Public Works Expansion Project
Page 2 of 13

B, Severability In theevent that any condition,covenant,or provisionhereincontainedis
held 10 be invalidor voidby anycourt of competentjurisdiction,the same shallbe
deemedseverable from the remainderof this Agreementand shall in no wayaffect any
other covenant or condition hereincontained. If suchccnditiou,covenant, or provision
shall be deemed invalid due to its scope or breadth,such provisionshall bedeemedvalid
to the extent of the scopeor breadthpermittedby law.

C. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the parties
and supersedesall prioragreements, whetherwritten or verbal. No promises,
representations, warranty,or covenantnot includedin this Agreement has beenor is
reliedupon by the partiesto this Agreement.

D. Covenants aod Conditions. Each provisionof this Agreement performable by either
partyshall be deemedto be botha covenantand a condition.

E. Assignment. This Agreement shall be bindingto the benefitof the partiesand their
respectiveheirs, personalrepresentatives, successors, legal representatives, and assigns;
providedthat this provision shall not be construedas permittingassignment, SUbstitution,
delegation,or other transferof rightsor obligationsby each partywithout the prior
writtenconsentof the other party.

F. Headings. The headings to the variousSectionsand Paragraphs of thisAgreement arc
for convenienceand easeof referenceonly and do not define, limit,augment,01' describe
the scope, content,or intentof this Agreementor any part or parts of this Agreement.

G. Notices. All noticesgivenunderany of the provisionsof this Agreementmustbe in
writingand shall be deemedto havebeen givenby either registered or certifiedmail,
returnreceipt requested, postageprepaid,addressedto the partyor person intended as
follows:

"Engineer"

"Client/Owner"

Epic Engineel"lng, PC (Nil Branch)
1418 2nd Ave West, Suite #3
Williston, North Dakota 58801
Tel: (701) 774-5200

Epic Engineering, PC (Headquarters)
50 East 100 South
Heber City, Utah 84032
Tel: (435) 654-6600
F<\x; (,t)5) 654-6622

City of Mandan
Arlyn Van Beck
205 2nd Avenue NW
Mandan, ND 58554
Tel: 701-667-3240
Fax: 701-667-3203
Cell: 701·319-7934
Email: jwrighl@cityoflllandan.com

Any party may,by noticegiven at any time or fromtime10 time, require
subsequentnoticesto begiven to another individual person,whethera party,
officer,or representative, or to a differentaddress,or both. Noticesgiven before
actual receiptof noticeof changeshall not be invalidated by the change.

H. Time. Time is of the essenceof each term,provision,condition, and covenant of this
Agreement.

Page3 of6

Epic initials

MSA2014 JA

Client's Initials



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: April 19,2016
Subject: Architectural Services contract for the Public Works Expansion Project
Page 3 of 13

expensesbilledto Client/Owner by Engineer. Client/Owner consentsto
Engineer's withdrawal and immediatetermination of this Agreement shouldthe
account becomedelinquent.

2. Interest Chnrges. Client/Owner further agrees to pay interest at the rate of one
and one-halfpercent(I Y.%) interestper monthon any and all unpaidbalancesof
services,costs, and expenses, lfsuch amountsare not paid in full within thirty
(30) days of the billing date.

3. Default and Remedies. Failure ofClientlOwner to make payment when due, or
to observe or perform any of the terms hereunder, shall be considered a default
and breach. In the eventof default, the entire outstandingamountdue hereunder
shall be immediately dueand payableby Client/Ownerto Engineer.
Furthermore,in the eventof default, Engineermaypursueany and all remedies
availableat lawor in equity.

4. Costs and Attorney Fees. In the event of default, Client/Owner shall payany
and all costs of collection, includingattorney's fees, legalexpenses, and other
lawfulcollection costs, in additionto all other sums due hereunder, which are
incurred by Engineer in collectingthe indebtedness due hereunderwhetherwith
or without lawsuit.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partieshaveexecutedthis Agreementeffective the dale and yearset forth
above.

"Engineer"

Epic Engineering, PC
A North Dakota Professional Corporation

By, _

Korey C. Walker, P.E.
Principal

Date: _

"Cuent/Owncr''

City of Mandan

By, _

Al'Iyn Van Beck
Mayor

Date: _

Page 5 of6

Epic Initials

MSA 2014 JA



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: April 19, 2016
Subject: Architectural Services contract for the Public Works Expansion Project
Page 4 of 13

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Project Task Order effective the date and year set
forthabove,

"Engineer"

Epic Engineering, PC
A North Dakota Professional Coepcratton

By, _

Korey C. Walker, P.E.
Principal

Date: _

"Client/Owner"

City of Mandan

By, _

Arlyn van Deck
Maym'

Date: _

Page 2 of4

Client's Initials



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To approve of city staff’s negotiated contract with EPIC Engineering 

for architectural and engineering services for the Public Works Expansion Project starting in 

2016. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The City Commission approved the partial use of HUB 

City funds ($1.3 M) for the construction of additional storage, office and mechanic space and a 

salt/sand storage building at the existing Public Works Facility and on January 19, 2016 the 

commission approved the advertising for Professional Architectural Services for the expansion.  

On April 5, 2016 commission approved the selection of EPIC Engineering and to start 

negotiating a contract for their services. 

Project schedule: 

 Approve Contract for services with EPIC Engineering: April 19, 2016 

 Start concept and design work: May 2016 

 Start Construction: September 2016 – estimated 

 Complete Construction: May 2017 – estimated  

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Negotiated contract and project task order form  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   $1.3 M of Hub City Funding.     

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Time working with architect and dealing with the phasing of the project. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   Attorney Brown has reviewed my documentation. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve negotiated contract with EPIC Engineering for  architectural 

and engineering services for the Public Works Epansion project.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve negotiated contract with EPIC Engineering for  

architectural and engineering services for the Public Works Epansion project. 

 

 

MEETING DATE: April 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: April 14, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jeff Wright 

PRESENTER: Jeff Wright, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: Consider Architectural Services contract with 

EPIC Engineering  for the Public Works 

Expansion Project 

 

  

Consent No. 9  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Architectural Services contract for the Public Works Expansion Project 

Page 2 of 10 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Architectural Services contract for the Public Works Expansion Project 

Page 3 of 10 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Architectural Services contract for the Public Works Expansion Project 

Page 4 of 10 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Architectural Services contract for the Public Works Expansion Project 

Page 5 of 10 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Architectural Services contract for the Public Works Expansion Project 

Page 6 of 10 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Architectural Services contract for the Public Works Expansion Project 

Page 7 of 10 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Architectural Services contract for the Public Works Expansion Project 

Page 8 of 10 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Architectural Services contract for the Public Works Expansion Project 

Page 9 of 10 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Architectural Services contract for the Public Works Expansion Project 

Page 10 of 10 

 

 
 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a recommendation by the Mandan Growth Fund 

(MGF) Committee for the  Restaurant Rewards program application. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The City Commission at its April 5, 2016, meeting 

approved a recommendation from the MGF to establish a Restaurant Rewards incentive 

program for new and expanding enterprises. The program has two components:  a five-

year rebate of the 1% local sales tax, which is the tax that can be used for economic 

development, and the allocation of $162,000 in the Growth Fund to be used on a first-

come, first-served basis for the local match for the Flex PACE interest-buy program with 

the allowance that this local share can be provided in the form of a forgivable loan rather 

than the typical repayable loan. 

 

MGF met April 14, 2016, with agenda items including the review of a draft application 

for this new incentive tool. The MGF voted to recommend approval of the application, 

noting one area of clarification. The area of ambiguity was coffee shops or other formats 

such as juice bar. Rather than single out only liquor establishments, the MGF voted to 

recommend adding an eligibility clarification that at least 50% of sales must come from 

food, pointing out that the intent is to have more businesses serving prepared food. If 

approved, the program description should be revised accordingly. 

 

As a result of the discussion about requiring verification of the prepared food component 

of enterprises that may also have a focus on beverage sales, it became apparent that 

provision of the rebate on an annual basis would be best as compared to quarterly. This 

would be after review of documents verifying sales or a signed certification that at least 

50% of sales were generated from prepared food. This adjustment to the plan of the 

MEETING DATE: April 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: April 14, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 

Department 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: MGF Recommendation for Restaurant Rewards 

Application 

 

  

New Business No. 1i  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject:  MGF Restaurant Rewards Application & Program Description 

Page 2 of 2 

 

rebate being provided annually, rather than quarterly, is also noted in the proposed 

revisions to the program overview and would be corresponding noted in any recipient 

agreement. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   1) Proposed Restaurant Rewards Application, 2) Revised Program 

Description 

  

FISCAL IMPACT:  The fiscal impact of the sales tax rebate and interest buy-down 

program was addressed during the program approval at the April 5, 2016, meeting. The 

sales tax rebate has no direct cost, only a potential indirect cost under the following 

assumptions: 

1. That the new or expanded restaurant(s) would come without the incentive and 

therefore generated the sales tax dollars anyway that could then be applied to the 

general fund to reduce property taxes. 

2. And that the sales tax rebate would somehow have an unfavorable impact on 

property taxes, which would occur only if there was a need to increase the city’s 

budget as a result of a restaurant opening or expanding. 

 

To the extent the incentive helps to secure new and expanded restaurants for Mandan, it 

could actually have a positive fiscal impact through additional property and other local 

sales tax revenues. Furthermore, if restaurants open or expand under the program and are 

successful, it will generate more sales tax revenue for property tax reduction in the future, 

beyond the five-year rebate period. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Staff time is required to process applications and manage the resulting 

rebate and compliance. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Attorney Brown has reviewed all information and is drafting a 

template recipient agreement for future consideration. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  The MGF voted to recommend approval of the proposed 

application, which includes a clarification that should also be addressed in the program 

overview. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the Restaurant Rewards application and 

revisions to the program overview as presented. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
RESTAURANT REWARDS INCENTIVE PROGRAM 

1% Local Sales Tax Rebate & Interest Buy-Down 
Application & Checklist 

 
 

PRIMARY CONTACT INFORMATION FOR THIS APPLICATION 

Name:       

Title:       

Address:       

Phone:       E-mail:       

 Form of Assistance Sought:   1% Sales Tax Rebate 
 Flex Pace Interest Buy-down (requires additional application) 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
Name of person or 

entity to receive 
rebate:       

State Sales Tax 
Number:       

Federal Employer 
Identification Number:        

Restaurant 
Ownership/Affiliation:  Corporate  Franchise  Independent 

Project Principals: 
(If applicable) Name       %       Name       %       

 Name       %       Name       %       

 Name       %       Name       %       
Are you applying for 

any other local 
incentives? 

 Yes (please indicate programs)       
 No 

 
RESTAURANT INFORMATION 

Levels of Service:  Full-Service (table side service) 
 Limited Service (order w/ cashier, food 

brought to tables) 
 Counter service only 

 Drive-thru (must have customer seating 
to be eligible) 

Restaurant Concept: 
 Fast Food  Fast Casual  Cafe 

  Coffee Shop (at least 
50% of sales must come from 
prepared food) 

 Pub or Bar/Grill (at 
least 50% of sales must come 
from prepared food) 

 Buffet 
 

  Fine Dining 
 

 Other (please explain):        
 

Menu: 
(Primary Foods Served) 

Attach document and/or describe here:       

Do you have or intend 
to apply for a liquor 

license? 

 Yes, I have a license – please specify type:       
 I plan to apply for a license – please specify type:       
 No, I do not plan to serve alcohol. 

 
Hours of Operation: Su:       

am - 
     pm 

M:       
am - 
     pm 

Tu:       
am - 
     pm 

W:       
am - 
     pm 

Th:       
am - 
     pm 

F:       
am - 
     pm 

Sa:       
am - 
     pm 

Draft Recommended 
for Approval by MGF 
on 4-14-16 



2 – Draft Recommended for Approval by MGF on 4-14-16 
 

 
LOCATION INFORMATION 

Address of New or 
Expanding Restaurant:       

Property Control – 
Land: 

 Owned  Leased 
Term of Lease       

 Other (please explain) 
      

Property Control – 
Building:  

 Owned 
 

 Leased 
Term of Lease       

 Other (please explain) 
      

Building Situation:  Existing  Addition  New Construction 

Building Square 
Footage: 

Existing       
 

Addition       
 

New Construction 
      

Seating Capacity: Existing       Addition       
New Construction 
      

Building Improvements: 
(Cost & Description)       

      

      

Projected Opening Date:       
 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Number of Jobs 

Created: Full-Time        Part-Time       
Estimated Annual 

Sales:       
For existing restaurants —  
Last 2 Years of Retail 

Sales: 
Attach copies of sales tax 

submissions.  

Indicate Year       
Sales $ Amount       

Indicate Year       
Sales $ Amount       

Estimated daily 
customer traffic:       

 

Other Business & Applicant Information 

Please submit as many of the following items as possible in order for the City of Mandan Growth Fund 
Committee and City Commission to make an appropriate decision on an application: 
 

 Option to buy agreement for a building or letter of intent to lease contingent on receipt of incentives 
 Business plan for new businesses or first-time restaurant operators 
 Certificate of Good Standing from N.D. Tax Department 
  Proof of registration with N.D. Secretary of State 

 
Additional information or documentation may be requested if deemed necessary. 
 
Be advised as per North Dakota open records law that applications may be released to the public if 
requested except for portions subject to NDCC 44-04-18.4 pertaining to confidentiality of trade secret, 
proprietary, commercial, and financial information. 
 



3 – Draft Recommended for Approval by MGF on 4-14-16 
 

Certification and Authorization 
 
I / We certify that all information set forth in this application is a true representation of the facts pertaining 
to the proposed business for the purpose of obtaining funding under the City of Mandan Restaurant 
Incentive Program. I / We understand and acknowledge that any willful misrepresentation of the 
information contained in this application could result in disqualification from the program, requiring any 
funds already disbursed to be repaid in full to the City of Mandan. 
 
The undersigned specifically authorizes the City of Mandan Business Development Office or its 
representatives to conduct a background check on the applicant, including the checking of references 
and the verification of any information on the application. 
 
I understand that personal and/or business information may be requested pursuant to this applicant for 
an incentive and I hereby give my consent for such information to be provided to the City of Mandan 
Business Development Office, the Mandan Growth Fund Committee or its representatives. I also 
understand that the Mandan Growth Fund Committee and the Mandan City Commission retain the 
decision as to whether this incentive application is approved, disapproved, or modified. It is my right to 
accept or decline the incentive amount and terms approved by the program. 
 
The applicant further certifies that he/she has read and understands the City of Mandan Restaurant 
Incentive Program Guidelines. The applicant must comply with all local, state and federal regulations. It 
is understood that all funding commitments are contingent upon the availability of program funds. 
 
Release of information 
The applicant hereby authorizes any third party to release to the City of Mandan Business Development 
Office without limit, any and all financial information regarding the applicant that is requested by the City 
of Mandan Business Development Office, its representatives or employees. Further, the applicant hereby 
authorizes release of said records and information by the City of Mandan Business Development Office 
to a third party, as deemed necessary by the City of Mandan Business Development Office, its 
representatives or employees. 
 
All owners, officers or partners must sign this application. 
 
Signature(s): 
 
Applicant/Business Owner: __________________________ Date: _____________________ 
 
 
Applicant/Business Owner: __________________________ Date: _____________________ 
 
 
 
 
Submit application form and all supporting documents to: 
 
City of Mandan 
Business Development Office 
205 Second Avenue NW 
Mandan, ND 58554 
Website: www.cityofmandan.com/businessdevelopment 
E-mail: ehuber@cityofmandan.com 
 
 
For more information, call City of Mandan Business Development Office; phone 701-667-3485. 



 
 

RESTAURANT REWARDS 
Sales Tax Rebate & Interest Buy-Down 

Incentive Program (Adopted April 5, 2016) 
 

PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
Restaurant businesses are an integral part of the Mandan community. Having convenient access to a 
variety of eateries is important to the quality of life for area residents and to the quality of experience for 
people visiting our community for various events and attractions. Convenient access to restaurants is 
also important to the attraction and retention of other types of businesses. 
 
Mandan’s demand for restaurants outstrips the supply. According to a 2015 Nielsen opportunity gap 
analysis, there is a $23 million gap between expenditures and supply or store sales for the category of 
foodservice and drinking places in Morton County, our primary trade area. Breaking this down further, the 
analysis shows a near $9 million gap for full-service restaurants, a $7.6 million gap for limited-service 
eating places, and a $6 million gap for special foodservices. 
 
The Mandan Growth Fund Committee in cooperation with the City of Mandan Business Development 
Department is proposing a new program to provide financial assurances for new and expanded 
restaurant facilities to locate and operate in our underserved market. The program is structured to help 
reduce both start-up and initial operational costs. 
 
The program is available to qualified retail and restaurant businesses new to or expanding in the City of 
Mandan. Mandan welcomes unique, one-of-a-kind restaurants as well as national franchise and 
corporate concepts. The program is open to restaurants that are full-service restaurants (table side 
service), limited service (order w/ cashier, food brought to tables), and fast food (counter service or drive-
up only). Restaurateurs may choose any location within the City. 
 
The program is offered through the City of Mandan’s Business Development Office through March 31, 
2017; at which time the program will be evaluated for a potential one-year extension. The funding source 
is a portion of the City’s 1 percent sales tax revenue. Approval may depend on availability of funds in the 
Growth Fund at the time of application. Funding for qualified applicants is encumbered on a first-come, 
first-served basis. Approved applicants will be required to enter into a participation agreement and a 
business incentive agreement with the City of Mandan. 
 
PROGRAM STRUCTURE & BENEFITS 
 
Sales tax rebate. Restaurants in Mandan collect a total of 3.25% in local taxes from customers: 

• 1.75% - City of Mandan sales tax. Of this total, a 1% amount is for uses such as economic 
development, property tax reduction, infrastructure and debt reduction. The remaining share, 
0.75%, is dedicated to a Mandan Park District sports complex approved by voters in June 2015. 

• 1% - City of Mandan restaurant and lodging tax. Funds may be used for capital construction and 
promotion projects to attract visitors to the community to use travel and tourism facilities. 

• 0.5% Morton County sales tax. Funds are dedicated to a joint jail project with Burleigh County. 
 
The City of Mandan will rebate back 100% of the collections of the 1% city sales tax for qualified 
restaurant owners for 5 years.  
 

Revision Proposed 4-14-16 
shown in underlined blue 
type. 



RESTAURANT REWARDS – Page 2 
 

 

Example: A restaurant generating $1 million in annual taxable sales would receive a rebate of $10,000. 
 
Interest buy-down. The City of Mandan will set aside $162,000 in the Mandan Growth Fund to provide 
the local match in the form of a forgivable loan of up to $53,846 for qualified restaurants seeking a Bank 
of North Dakota Flex PACE interest buy-down. Funds will be available on a first-come, first-served basis. 
The restaurant must obtain preliminary approval from their commercial lender and the Bank of North 
Dakota.  
 
Flex PACE utilizes a partnership between financial institutions and the Bank of North Dakota through a 
participatory lending arrangement in which half of the loan amount is provided by the lead lender and half 
by the Bank of North Dakota. Funds are used to reduce the interest costs to borrowers by up to 5 percent 
below the lead lender’s rate to a rate as low as 1 percent. 
 
The program requires a local match, which in Mandan’s case is 35 percent. If the principal amount of a 
project warrants it, the program maximum allows for a buy-down of $153,846 with the state bank 
providing $100,000 and the City of Mandan required to provide $53,846. 
 
Absent this special program, Mandan Growth Fund Committee policy generally requires repayment of 
the principal of the local match after the term of the buy-down is complete (usually 5 years). The interest 
rate and repayment terms are determined based on the nature of the project and public benefits 
provided. Criteria include jobs creation, job quality, contribution to the local economy, project scope and 
level of private investment, generation of sales tax, and extent to which the borrower is provided a 
product or service missing or in greater need in the community. Priority projects in the areas of primary 
sector businesses, retail, child care and affordable housing will generally be considered for a 0% interest 
rate. 
 
Eligibility 
1. Application must be reviewed and have full approval by the Mandan Growth Fund Committee AND 

the Mandan City Commission prior to the opening of the restaurant or the expansion of an existing 
restaurant. Applications after the actionable event are not eligible. 

2. Applications will be considered for first-time restaurateurs, new and expanding concepts by existing 
restaurateurs, and expansion by restaurateurs from outside the City. An inter-city relocation is not 
eligible for the sales tax rebate without expansion as compared to the previous location. 

3. For an expansion of an existing restaurant, any sales tax rebate would be measured as the increase 
in sales above reported quarterly sales for the prior two years.  

4. Delivery or take-out only concepts are not eligible. 
5. If the enterprise includes liquor sales,A at least 50% of revenue from any enterprise, including 

beverage sales, must be generated by prepared food sales on an annual average. 
6. The Mandan Growth Fund Committee will review each application on a case-by-case basis and 

reserves the right to make other exclusions if the use is not consistent with approved City 
redevelopment and development plans; if it does not benefit the health, safety and welfare of the 
community; or if the business activity does not meet the objectives of this program. 

 
Conditions 
1. In lease situations, a minimum 3-year agreement is preferred. 
2. Restaurant must be open for business a minimum of 30 hours per week. If an applicant proposes to 

be open fewer hours, justification must be presented with the application. 
3. Pending further discussion — First-time restaurant operators or applicants that have been in 

business for less than one year must submit application to the local N.D. Small Business 
Development Center office and after start-up participate in quarterly consultations with the SBDC or 
another approved business consultant. 

4. Installation of an automatic door is required for at least a main entrance to the building as required by 
Mandan Municipal Code Section 111-2-9. 

 



RESTAURANT REWARDS – Page 3 
 

 

Application Process 
1. Submit the application and all required attachments to the City of Mandan’s Business Development 

Office (application to be developed pending approval of program proposal). 
2. City staff will make every effort to review completed applications (along with all necessary supporting 

documentation required for the application process) within a 2-week period. 
3. The Mandan Growth Fund Committee will meet to review application and make recommendation to 

the Mandan City Commission. MGF meetings are scheduled as needed. Applicants will be notified of 
the meeting and asked to attend to present their request for assistance. 

4. An application recommended for approval will be forwarded to the Mandan City Commission for 
consideration. The City Commission meets the first and third Tuesdays of the month at 5:30 p.m.  
Applicants will be notified of the meeting and asked to attend to represent their request. 

5. Recommendations of the Growth Fund Committee will be presented to the City Commission for 
consideration of final approval within 45 days after a complete application is submitted. 

 
Implementation Procedures 
1. Business has 1 year from City Commission approval to be open and operational. This includes 

having a certificate of occupancy and being compliant with all laws and health regulations. The 
applicant may request an extension in writing to the City Commission. The extension may or may not 
be approved based on documentation of progress toward the goal. If the extension is not approved or 
the deadline passes without a qualified restaurant opening, the amount allocated to the applicant will 
be forfeited by the applicant. 

2. An approved restaurant will be required to provide the N.D. Tax Department with authorization to 
release data to the City of Mandan regarding its quarterly sales tax remittance. It will also be required 
to submit a copy of its monthly or quarterly sale tax remittance report to the City of Mandan. 

3. The City of Mandan will provide the sales tax rebate to the approved restaurant on an quarterly 
annual basis, within 1 month of the data being made available. 

4. Applicant (and landlord in lease situations) must be current on all municipally applied taxes, special 
assessments, utility bills, or loans. Payments will cease if either party fails to be current on these 
obligations. 

5. Payments cease if applicant discontinues the business, moves the business from Mandan, or fails to 
comply with any and all building, fire, health or zoning codes or regulations applicable to the 
business. 

6. The subsidy will be structured as an interest-free loan that will be pro-rated and forgiven over the 
course of 5 years from date of opening, provided the restaurant remains in continuous operation 
within the City of Mandan. A participating restaurant that locates outside the City before this time 
shall repay a pro-rata share of the subsidy. 

7. Following the first 12 months of subsidization and through the fifth year of operation, each applicant 
will be required to submit an annual report to the Business Development Office to provide information 
about full-time and part-time employment, wages and benefits. 

 
Application form and template legal agreement pending. For more information, contact the City of 
Mandan Business Development Office, phone 701-667-3485. 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a recommendation by the Mandan Growth Fund 

(MGF) Committee for the clarifications to the Retail and Restaurant Incentive Program. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The Retail and Restaurant Incentive Program was 

first approved and established in 2010 and modified in 2011. The program provides a 

stipend of up to $5 per square foot of operating space during the first year of operation for 

qualified retail and restaurant businesses that fill a gap in the community’s market profile. 

The program is capped at $20,000 per project and so inherently is most fitting to 

relatively small, independent business enterprises.  

 

The MGF reviewed program guidelines and eligibility criteria at its April 14, 2016, 

meeting and voted to recommend two substantive clarifications and minor clean-up 

language. The substantive clarifications are: 

1. That the application must have final approval from the Mandan Growth Fund 

Committee and Mandan City Commission prior to the business opening (or 

expanding). 

2. That the list of retail preferences in Exhibit A be modified similar to the proposal 

for the Restaurant Rewards Program recommendations to indicate that a restaurant 

business is defined as having 50% or more of its revenue generated by prepared 

food sales (as compared to sales of beverage or other non-food items). 

 

MEETING DATE: April 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: April 14, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 

Department 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: MGF Recommendation for Clarifications to the 

Retail & Restaurant Incentive Program 

 

  

New Business No. 1ii  



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject:  MGF Retail & Restaurant Incentive Program 

Page 2 of 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   Retail and Restaurant Incentive Program Overview and 

Application Information with proposed clarifications and updates 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The proposed changes have no fiscal impact. The program itself has 

a remaining allocation in the Growth Fund of $23,312.50. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Staff time is required to process applications, manage stipend 

payments and compliance. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Attorney Brown has reviewed all information. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  The MGF voted to recommend approval of the proposed 

clarifications and updates to the Retail and Restaurant Incentive Program. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the clarifications and modifications as 

presented to the Retail and Restaurant Incentive Program. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 
 

 
 

Retail & Restaurant Incentive Program 
GUIDELINES 

 
The Program 
The purpose of this program is to serve as a catalyst for securing new retail, restaurant and 
service concepts to fill vacant properties and stimulate new construction by providing financial 
assistance to qualified applicants. 
 
The program is available to qualified retail and restaurant businesses new to or expanding in the 
City of Mandan. Retailers/restaurateurs may choose any location within the City. 
 
The program is offered through the City of Mandan’s Business Development Office. The funding 
source is a portion of the City’s 1 percent sales tax revenue set aside in the Mandan Growth 
Fund for economic development purposes. Availability of funds for the program will depend on 
the balance in the Growth Fund at the time of application. Funding for qualified applicants is 
encumbered on a first-come, first-served basis. 
 
Program Benefits 
An incentive in the form of a forgivable loan during the first 12 months of operation for qualified 
retail, restaurant or service businesses based on their operating square footage. The maximum 
assistance to be provided is $5 per square foot. There is an additional cap of no more than 
$20,000 per property. 
 
Examples: 

• Retail shop or restaurant plans to open in a 3,000 square foot operating space. Could 
apply for up to a $5 per square foot subsidy to be paid for 12 months totaling $15,000 or 
$1,250 per month.  

• Retail shop or restaurant plans to operate in an 8,000 square foot space. A $5 per 
square foot subsidy exceeds the maximum of $20,000 per property, so the most that 
could be allocated is $20,000 for 12 months (an equivalent subsidy of $2.50 per square 
foot) at $1,666.67 per month. 

• Existing retailer plans to expand from 3,000 sf to 6,000 sf. Could apply for up to a $5 psf 
subsidy on the 3,000 sf expansion to be paid for 12 months totaling $15,000 or $1,250 
per month. 

 
 
 

Proposed revisions noted in 
underlined blue text. 



Page 2 
 

Eligibility 
1.  “For profit” businesses that collect sales and use taxes and that are not currently operating 

in the city or that provide new or underserved products or services. (See Retail Preferences 
– Exhibit A). 

2. Applications will be considered for first-time retailers/restaurateurs, new and expanding 
concepts by existing retailers/restaurateurs, and expansion of retailers and restaurateurs 
from outside the City. 

3. Eligible retailers must devote a majority of the floor space to the display of products 
available for sale on the premises. Catalog showrooms shall not be eligible. 

4. Non-profit organizations will be considered only if there is a retail component to the 
operation.  

5. Must be a permitted use in compliance with all laws, zoning ordinances, rules and 
regulations applicable to the business. 

6. Ineligible uses include but are not necessarily limited to thrift stores, second hand stores, 
dollar stores, pawn shops, non-profit agencies and entities (unless there is a retail 
component), schools, day care centers, currency exchanges including check cashing 
agencies and some non-bank financial retail outlets, bars and liquor stores (more than 50% 
of revenue generated by alcohol sales as compared to food), passive real estate ownership 
and management firms, and personal service retailers such as tanning salons, nail shops, 
beauty parlors, or tattoo parlors. 

7. The Mandan Growth Fund Committee will review each application on a case-by-case basis 
and reserves the right to exclude other business activities if the use is not consistent with 
approved City redevelopment and development plans; if it does not benefit the health, safety 
and welfare of the community; or if the business activity does not meet the objectives of this 
program. 

8. Businesses currently located in the City moving from one location to another location are not 
eligible unless there is an expansion and then only on the additional operating square 
footage. 

8.9. Application must have final approval from the Mandan Growth Fund Committee and 
Mandan City Commission prior to business opening. 

 
Conditions 
1. In lease situations, a minimum 3-year agreement is preferred. 
2. Retailer must be open for business a minimum of 30 hours per week. If an applicant 

proposes to be open fewer hours, justification must be presented in the business plan. 
3. First-time retailers or applicants that have been in business for less than one year must 

submit application to the local N.D. Small Business Development Center office and after 
start up participate in quarterly consultations with the SBDC or another approved business 
consultant. 

4. Installation of an automatic door is required for at least a main entrance to the building as 
required by Mandan Municipal Code Section 111-2-9. 

 
Application Process 
1. Submit the application and all required attachments to the City of Mandan’s Business 

Development Office (see application for required documentation). 
2. City staff will make every effort to review completed applications (along with all necessary 

supporting documentation required for the application process) within a 2-week period. 
3. The Mandan Growth Fund Committee will meet to review application and make 

recommendation to the Mandan City Commission. MGF meetings are scheduled as needed. 
Applicants will be notified of the meeting and asked to attend to present their request for 
assistance. 

4. An application recommended for approval will be forwarded to the Mandan City Commission 
for consideration. The City Commission meets the first and third Tuesdays of the month at 



Page 3 
 

5:30 p.m.  Applicants will be notified of the meeting and asked to attend to represent their 
request. 

5. Recommendations of the Growth Fund Committee will be presented to the City Commission 
for consideration of final approval within 45 days after a complete application is submitted. 

5.6. The project applicant will be notified in writing and both the City and the Applicant 
will sign a Recipient Agreement once the City Commission has approved a project. 

6.7. Business has 180 days from City Commission approval, which encumbers 
funding, to be open and operational. The applicant may request an extension in writing to 
the City Commission. The extension may or may not be approved. If the extension is not 
approved and the reimbursements have not commenced within 180 days, the amount 
allocated to the applicant will be forfeited by the applicant. 

 
Selection Criteria 
• Degree to which business provides an economic and added value public benefit to the 

location area and complements other businesses in the community 
• Degree to which the business fills gaps in Mandan’s retail and service sector (as indentified 

in a 2008any household surveys and through available market statistics) 
• Qualifications and track records of business owners or managers 
• Potential for long-term viability 
• Business plan 
• Financial history 
• Hours of operation 
• Extent of customer base 
• Storefront plans (exterior condition or upgrades, signage, displays) 
• Investment of business owner (in inventory, point-of-sale software, equipment, building 

improvements, or other business start-up expenses) 
• Jobs created 
• Degree to which other public incentives are being utilized or the overall ratio of public to 

private investment. 
 
Implementation Procedures 
1. The program requires that the applicant pay upfront expenses. The City of Mandan will 

provide the subsidy within 30 days after the applicant has been open for business for one 
month. 

2. Applicant (and landlord in lease situations) must be current on all municipally applied taxes, 
special assessments, utility bills, or loans. Payments will cease if either party fails to be 
current on these obligations. 

3. Payments cease if applicant discontinues the business, moves the business from Mandan, , 
or fails to comply with any and all building, fire, health or zoning codes or regulations 
applicable to the business. 

4. The subsidy will be structured as an interest-free loan that will be pro-rated and forgiven 
over the course of 3 years from date of opening, provided the retailer remains in continuous 
operation within the City of Mandan. Retailers who locate outside the City before this time 
shall repay a pro-rata share of the rent subsidy. 

5. Following the first 12 months of subsidization and through the third year of operation, each 
applicant will be required to submit a quarterly report to the Business Development Office to 
verify that the business is still operating in the approved location and an annual report to 
provide statistics on full-time and part-time employment. 



Page 4 
 

Exhibit A — Retail Preferences 
• Appliances 
• Art/frame store 
• Arts, crafts, hobby shop 
• Bakery/bread store/dessert shop 
• Book store (new) 
• Clothing and other apparel — men, women, children 
• Consumer goods rental 
• Dry cleaners 
• Electronics 
• Food specialties — product specific, health, fresh, organic, etc. 
• Gift, novelty, souvenir shop 
• Hardware/paint 
• Home décor or accessories 
• Ice cream parlor 
• Kitchen supplies and accessories 
• Movie theater or other recreational/entertainment services 
• Music or musical instruments 
• Pet supplies 
• Restaurants (more than 50% of revenue generated by prepared food sales as compared 

to alcohol) 
• Shoe store — men, women, children 
• Toy store 

 
 
This list may not be all inclusive. Other types of businesses may be eligible as long as not 
explicitly listed as “ineligible” and if providing products or services missing from Mandan’s 
business community or documented as in demand by residents. 



 

 

 
Retail & Restaurant 
Incentive Program 

APPLICATION & CHECKLIST 
 
Business Name ______________________________________________________________________ 

Address of Proposed Downtown Business _________________________________________________ 

Applicant’s Mailing Address____________________________ City___________ State_____ Zip______ 

Applicant’s Phone____________________________ Email____________________________________ 

Use:  

Retail  Square Feet__________  Restaurant  Square Feet________ 

AMOUNT OF ASSSISTANCE REQUESTED PER SQUARE FOOT $____________________________ 

Approximate cost to open the business: $__________________________________________________ 

Personal Investment $__________________________________________________________ (Equity) 

Bank or other financial commitment $________________________ Other: _______________________ 

Building Acquisition or Construction Cost $_________________________________________________ 

Building Rehabilitation $____________________________________Lease Term __________________ 

Monthly Rent/Lease Per Square Foot $________________________Landlord Match_______________ 

Proposed Opening Date of the Business __________________________________________________ 

Description of the Business Including Products and Services Being Offered _______________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Number of New Jobs __________ Expected daily traffic ________Estimated Opening Date __________ 

Weekly hours of operation ______________________________________________________________ 



 

Other Business & Applicant Information 

Please submit as many of the following items as possible in order for the City of Mandan Growth Fund 
Committee and City Commission to make an appropriate decision on an application: 
 
�  Option to buy agreement for a building or letter of intent to lease contingent on receipt of incentives 
�  Business plan 
�  Personal financial statement and 3 years federal tax returns for principals of any new business, or 

business operating less than one year. Three years tax returns for any existing business 
�  Marketing plan 
�  Cost estimates for up‐fit/equipping the space 
�  Business/personal history 
�  Certificate of Good Standing from N.D. Tax Department 
�  Proof of registration with N.D. Secretary of State 
 
Be advised as per North Dakota open records law that applications may be released to the public if 
requested except for portions subject to NDCC 44-04-18.4 pertaining to confidentiality of trade secret, 
proprietary, commercial, and financial information. 
 



 

Certification and Authorization 
 
I / We certify that all information set forth in this application is a true representation of the facts pertaining 
to the proposed business for the purpose of obtaining funding under the City of Mandan Retail & 
Restaurant Incentive Program. I / We understand and acknowledge that any willful misrepresentation of 
the information contained in this application could result in disqualification from the program, requiring 
any funds already disbursed to be repaid in full to the City of Mandan. 
 
The undersigned specifically authorizes the City of Mandan Business Development Office or its 
representatives to conduct a background check on the applicant, including the checking of references 
and the verification of any information on the application. 
 
I understand that personal and/or business information may be requested pursuant to this applicant for 
an incentive and I hereby give my consent for such information to be provided to the City of Mandan 
Business Development Office, the Mandan Growth Fund Committee or its representatives. I also 
understand that the Mandan Growth Fund Committee and the Mandan City Commission retain the 
decision as to whether this incentive application is approved, disapproved, or modified. It is my right to 
accept or decline the incentive amount and terms approved by the program. 
 
The applicant further certifies that he/she has read and understands the City of Mandan Retail & 
Restaurant Incentive Program Guidelines. If a determination is made by City of Mandan staff that 
program funds have not been used for eligible program activities, the Applicant agrees that the proceeds 
shall be returned, in full, to the City of Mandan and acknowledges that, with respect to such proceeds so 
returned, he/she shall have no further interest, right, or claim. It is understood that all funding 
commitments are contingent upon the availability of program funds. 
 
Release of information 
The applicant hereby authorizes any third party to release to the City of Mandan Business Development 
Office without limit, any and all financial information regarding the applicant that is requested by the City 
of Mandan Business Development Office, its representatives or employees. Further, the applicant hereby 
authorizes release of said records and information by the City of Mandan Business Development Office 
to a third party, as deemed necessary by the City of Mandan Business Development Office, its 
representatives or employees. 
 
All owners, officers or partners must sign this application. 
 
Signatures: 
 
Applicant/Business Owner: __________________________ Date: _____________________ 
 
 
(if different from applicant) 
 
Property Owner : ___________________________________ Date: _____________________ 
 
 
 
 
Submit application form and all supporting documents to: 
 
City of Mandan 
Business Development Office 
205 Second Avenue NW 
Mandan, ND 58554 
 
For more information, call City of Mandan Business Development Office; phone 701-667-3485. 



 

RETAIL & RESTAURANT INCENTIVE — APPLICATION EVALUATION 
 
The purpose of the program is to serve as a catalyst for securing new retail, restaurant and service business 
in the City of Mandan to provide greater selection and convenience to residents, businesses and visitors as 
well as to generate additional revenues for the public sector by way of local sales or restaurant and lodging 
taxes. Following are guidelines for use by Mandan Growth Fund Committee members. To be completed 
individually, tallied and averaged. Subject to discussion. 
 

Applicant: 
Amount of subsidy requested psf: 
Operating space (sf): 

SECTIONS BELOW FOR USE BY MANDAN GROWTH FUND ONLY 

1. Degree to which 
business fills a gap? 

Significant    Minimal 

5 4 3 2 1 
2. Products/services 

needed by other 
businesses? 

Significant    Minimal 

5 4 3 2 1 
3. Sales or restaurant 

tax potential? 
Significant    Minimal 

5 4 3 2 1 

4. # of jobs created? 
Significant    Minimal 

5 4 3 2 1 

5. Use of other public 
incentives 

Minimal (5% or 
less) 

6-9% 10-19% 20-29% Significant 
30% or more 

5 4 3 2 1 

6. Customer base 
Broad    Limited 

5 4 3 2 1 

7. Hours of operation 
High    Low 

5 4 3 2 1 
8. Qualifications of 

owners, managers 
Strong   Weak No info 

5 4 3 2 1 
9. Potential for long-

term viability 
Strong    Weak 

5 4 3 2 1 
10. Storefront plans/curb 

appeal 
Significant    Minimal 

5 4 3 2 1 
11. Investment - 

inventory, equip, 
building, etc. 

Significant    Minimal 

5 4 3 2 1 

Ratings/recommendation to be provided by third-party such as SBDC or LCRDC 

12. Business plan 
Strong   Weak No plan 

5 4 3 2 1 

13. Financial history 
Strong   Weak No info 

5 4 3 2 1 
 
Totals 

     

 
Grand Total 

 Average 
Rating 

 

General Guide (based average rating): 
• Less than 2.0 = no assistance 
• 2.0 to 2.4 = ¼ of maximum 

• 2.5 to 2.9 = ½ of maximum  
• 3.0 to 3.9 = ¾ of maximum 

• 4.0 and greater = maximum 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a recommendation for the Ad Hoc Visitors Way-

finding Sign Committee for the design, locations and destination messaging for the visitor 

way-finding sign project and to issue a request for bids for sign fabrication and 

installation. The purpose of the proposed signs is to provide direction to visitors for 

various attractions and destinations as well as a sense of community branding and 

character. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The City Commission at its Dec. 1, 2015, meeting 

approved up to $250,000 for this project to include design and engineering fees as well as 

sign fabrication and installation. The money was approved from the Visitors’ Promotion 

Fund that is generated with the 1 percent city restaurant and lodging tax for this project. 

Visitor promotion funds must be used in accordance with N.D. Century Code 40-57.3-02 

for ―tourism or the purchase, equipping, improving, construction, maintenance, repair, 

and acquisition of buildings or property consistent with visitor attraction or promotion.‖ 

 

At this same meeting, the Commission approved formation of an ad hoc committee to 

assist with site and sign design selection based on the work of the selected contractor. The 

committee was formed as follows: 

 City Commission, Mike Braun 

 Community Beautification Committee, Brian Dehnert 

 Leadership, Pride & Image Committee, Melissa Frohlich 

 City Business Development & Communications Department, Ellen Huber 

 Architectural Review Commission, Miles Melhoff 

 City Administrator, Jim Neubauer 

MEETING DATE: April 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: April 15, 2016 Revised April 18, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development and Communications 

Department 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development and 

Communications Director 

SUBJECT: Way-finding Sign Design Package & Request for 

Bids 

 

 

  

New Business No. 2  

Revised April 18, 2016 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Visitor Way-finding Sign Project 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 Visitors Promotion Fund Committee, Lee Pierce 

 

The consultants providing design and engineering services for this project as approved in 

a contract by the City Commission at its Dec. 15, 2015, meeting are Berberich Designs 

and Kadrmas Lee and Jackson. 

 

All signs are proposed for arterial streets and highways for which the N.D. Department of 

Transportation has jurisdiction and therefore must meet Federal Highway and state 

regulations. These regulations dictate many aspects of the signs including, but not limited 

to, that destinations listed on the way-finding signs must be within city limits  (with 

NDDOT providing roadway signs for attractions beyond those limits), the need for 

breakaway posts, the need to be at least 100 feet from any other roadway sign, and overall 

sign simplicity with a maximum allowance of three destination listings and four lines per 

sign, consistent logo use, no more than two colors, font size in relation to roadway speed 

limits.  

 

The ad hoc committee has met three times on this project and soon realized that, because 

of the NDDOT constraints, more signs will ultimately be needed than originally 

envisioned to address all areas and destinations within the community.  The new signs are 

generally smaller and simpler, but need to be greater in number as compared to the 

existing way-finding signs. The committee prioritized and recommendations the initial 24 

locations shown in the packet along with design and destination listings presented. A 

Phase II project could be considered pending future funding. 

 

Among the sign design elements is a recommendation by the consultant and the 

committee for the use of cedar posts. The cedar posts are preferred for reasons of both 

aesthetics and harmony with the sign design as well as to maximize project impact with a 

greater number of signs and geographical coverage. The consultant indicates that the 

second choice, metal posts (powder-coated aluminum or steel) would be approximately 2-

3 times the cost of the cedar posts because the metal posts require breakaway hardware 

with a concrete base whereas the cedar posts can meet the requirement with holes drilled 

in the bottom.   

 

Berberich Design has received tentative approval of the package to date from the N.D. 

Department of Transportation with final approval to come once the package is bid out and 

the fabricator produces engineered shop drawings that are signed and stamped by a 

professional engineer. 

 

The proposed sign design package was presented to the Mandan Architectural Review 

Commission (MARC) for consideration at its April 12 meeting. MARC consensus was 

that the sign policy allows for the project to be exempt from permit because the signs are 

for roadways and will be placed in the public right-of-way. They are also directional and 

instructional, without commercial advertising. MARC members did express reservation; 

however, about the use of cedar posts. The sign policy has sections that reference support 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Visitor Way-finding Sign Project 

Page 3 of 3 

 

posts being made of non-flammable material, although Building Official Doug Lalim 

indicates flammable materials are allowed by building code up to a height beyond the 

proposed sign height.  MARC plans to review its policy in the coming year for 

inconsistencies and clarifications. Meanwhile, the consultant recommends bidding the 

project with both post options. 

 

The tentative timeline from here forward as follows: 

1. April 22 & 29 & May 6 — Public notices in the Mandan News and Bismarck 

Tribune about the request for bids 

2. May 13 – Bid opening 

3. May 17 — City Commission consideration of the award of bids 

4. May 20-27 (date to be determined) – Special City Commission meeting for 

consideration of contract approval 

5. 6 weeks for sign production and installation (with a goal of having in place by 

July 4) 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Way-finding sign package with sign design, locations and destination 

messages (split into 4 sections due to file size). First section revised with updated bid 

form and specifications. Draft legal ad also attached. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  A maximum of $250,000 has been approved for the project from the 

Visitors Promotion Capital Construction Fund. 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  Staff time is necessary for project direction and oversight. 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Attorney Brown has reviewed all information. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Ad Hoc Visitors Way-Finding Sign Committee 

recommends approval of the design package as presented and for the issuance of a request 

for bids.   

 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the visitor way-finding signage project 

design, locations and destination messages as presented and to authorize issuance of a 

request for bids. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deleted: 2

Deleted: 3



p o  b o x  4 6 8  h i l l  c i t y ,  s o u t h  da k o ta  5 7 7 4 5
6 0 5 - 4 3 0 - 5 1 7 0  •  ray @ b e r b e r i c h d e s i g n . c o m  

mandan, nd
CITY WAYFINDING PROJECT

PHASE IV
design intent

  

DATE: 04/14/2016

revised date: 

04/30/2014



Table Of Contents

 

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
- 

      
      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.

TABLE OF CONTENTS          

001 - Bid Form

002 - General Specification

003 - Project Standards

004 - DOT_Post Information

VEH1.00 - Vehicular Directional (Small)

VEH2.00 - Vehicular Directional (Not Used)

VEH3.00 - Vehicular Directional

VEH3.01 - Vehicular Directional Detail

LP.00 - Mandan Base Map

LP.DT - Location Plan  DT_Downtown

LP.NW - Location Plan NW_Northwest

LP.SE - Location Plan  SE_Southeast

Message Schedule - DT.004-006-007-016

Message Schedule - DT.041-043-044-046

Message Schedule - DT.048-049-051

Message Schedule - NW.003-004-005-015

Message Schedule - NW.022

Message Schedule - SE.005-006-009-010

Message Schedule - SE.017-021-024-025



BID FORM - CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA - VEHICULAR WAYFINDING    
 

Company Name:                         
          
Contact Information:                         
       
The undersigned proposes to provide all labor, materials, equipment, supervision, coordination and 
all related incidentals needed to furnish, fabricate, and install the proposed Wayfinding Signage 
Program.

In accordance with the bid documents submitted by the CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 
dated       and including all associated addenda numbered thru     , inclusive, 
for an all-inclusive Base Bid for the Wayfinding Signage Program to include but not limited to all 
incidental costs for shop drawings, engineering, permitting, permit fees, samples, and shipping. 
Installation costs shall be submitted as a lump sum fee at the end of the bid form and shall not be 
included in the unit or extended costs.

SIGN TYPE DESCRIPTION 

VEH1.00  Vehicular Directional (Small)

VEH2.00 Parking Identification (Not Used)

VEH3.00  Vehicular Directional (Large)

(NOTE: BIDDER NEEDS TO VERIFY ALL QUANTITES)

FABRICATION: ESTIMATED LEAD-TIME (DAYS)    FABRICATION COST:    

INSTALLATION: ESTIMATED LEAD-TIME (DAYS)    INSTALLATION COST:    

       GRAND TOTAL:    

ALTERNATES
Refer to sheet 002 - General Specification >Bid Specifications> Alternates.
1. Provide lump sum alternate pricing for .100” aluminum to replace 6mm composite aluminum.
ADD -          DEDUCT -                 
              
2. Provide lump sum alternate pricing for concrete footers, 6” square aluminum painted post with 
breakaway hardware that meets or exceeds MUTCD specifications to replace all cedar sign posts.
ADD -          DEDUCT -           

VOLUNTEERED ALTERNATES
Any volunteered alternates may be submitted with the bid form, based on the use of the products 
equivalent or better in quality and /or performance as specified. List any voluntary alternates 
separately and attach to the bid form.  Provide the following information for each voluntary 
alternate:
1) Name of manufacturers and / or suppliers
2) Detailed description of the alternate to include all product and warranty data, material, finishes 
and availability
3) Reason for proposing the voluntary alternate
4) Change in price

The business address to which the Notice to Proceed may be mailed, emailed, faxed or otherwise 
delivered:

Contact:           
Email:           
Phone:           

Address:           
         
         

SUBMITTED:

By:         Date:  

Its;           

AWARDED CONTRACT
The contract will be awarded to the firm whose proposal conforms to the solicitation and will be 
most advantageous to the CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA  with price and other evaluation 
factors considered. The CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA  reserves the right to reject any and 
all proposals received and reserves the right to waive any informalities to negotiate with the select-
ed Fabricator / Vendor. This project may be subject to phasing. If phasing occurs, this issue will be 
resolved and negotiated with the selected Fabricator 

 UNIT COSTS

 

 

 

 QUANTITIES

        11 

        0 

        13 

EXTENDED COSTS

 

 

 

001

Bid Form

 

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
- 

      
      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.



SUBMITTALS  
A. SHOP DRAWINGS:  PDF format shop drawings are to be submitted to the Owner 
and Designer for review prior to production. These drawings are to show/indicate all 
materials, finishes, construction details, lighting, and installation detailing of artwork 
and signage structure, including locations of all material seams (finished and 
unfinished).  Additional drawing(s) may be requested by the Designer, at the 
contractor's expense to further indicate items in question.

B. PRODUCT DATA:  Submit manufacturer's technical data and installation instructions 
for each type of sign and/or fixture required.  As will be provided in the completed, 
installed sign unit.

C. SPECIFIC SAMPLES:  Submit two (2) 6" x 6" samples of all actual material to be 
used for each different finish surface, (each color and texture) coated to match the 
proper color texture and finish as for each indicated, to show the quality of fabrication 
and design.  If there are material seams or welded joints in the sign cabinet, a sample 
of a continuously welded, ground, filed, and smoothed seam with the correct indicated 
finish(s) applied must be submitted for Designer review.  Completed and installed 
components will be  evaluated based on these submittals.

D. OTHER SAMPLES:  Two (2) 6" x 6" samples of all exterior materials that can be 
viewed when all finished sign structures are completed and in place (in addition to 
those mentioned above) are to be submitted for Designer review prior to production.  
Items sampled would include those specified, as well as those materials proposed for 
substitution of specified materials, or suggested materials for those that are 
unspecified, including Neon (sample drawing will be provided).

E. STRUCTURE:  Design of installation, internal structure, mounting assembles and 
foundations by Sign Contractor: Sign Contractor shall submit  comprehensive shop 
drawings incorporating an adequate foundation or mounting structure for all sign 
components given site conditions.  The sign contractor shall at his expense submit 
calculations, stamped by the appropriate Engineer registered in the state of Final 
Installation for all structural members, including foundations for Owner's review.

F. ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS:  Sign Contractor shall provide at the earliest 
possible time the specific electrical requirements (if any) to the Owner.

G. LAMP SERVICE:  Sign Contractor to provide Designer and Owner with complete 
lamp replacement information brand, type, wattage, color, etc.  For all lighted 
components.  This information shall be in type written format (8-1/2" x 11") and shall 
indicate at least one local (site) supplier.

H. MAINTENANCE:  Sign Contractor to provide Designer and Owner with complete 
finish / component care instructions as specified by manufactures for on-going 
cosmetic sign cleaning and maintenance.

MATERIALS  
A. ACRYLIC/COLOR TRANSLUCENT SHEET:  Where sheet material is indicated as a 
"color", provide color translucent sheet of density required to produce uniform 
brightness without halo effects.  Material provided shall be  appropriately matched to 
the intended permanent field conditions.

B. ACRYLIC/TRANSPARENT SHEET:  Where sheet material is indicated as "clear" 
provide colorless sheet in glass finish, with light transmittance of 92%, where tested in 
accordance with the requirements of ASTM D-1003.

C. ALUMINUM SHEET:  Provide aluminum sheet of alloy and temper recommended by 
the aluminum producer or finisher for the type of use and finish indicated, and with not 
less than the strength and durability properties specified in ASTM B109 for 5005-H15.

D. ALUMINUM EXTRUSIONS:  Provide aluminum extrusions of alloy and temper 
recommended by the aluminum producer or finisher for the type of use and finish 
indicated, and with not less than the strength and durability properties specified in 
ASTM B-221 for 6063-T5.

E. STRUCTURAL STEEL:  Provide internal galvanized structural steel as required to 
meet the requirements of the permanent installation when required.

F. FASTENERS:  Unless otherwise indicated, use concealed fasteners fabricated from 
Hot Dipped Galvanized Steel, Stainless Steel and / or Aluminum. No steel fasteners.

G. ELECTRICAL/LAMPS:  Provide new electrical components and respective lamps, 
so as to be easily repaired or replaced from local available stock. (24 hr. max. turn 
around).

H. VINYL WALL COVERING:  Type II, PVC coated, 20 oz., 20 mil, passes flame test,   
ASTME-84-98,  Meets UL723,  NFPA NO. 255, UBC 42-1 AND ANSI NO. 2.5

I. ALTERNATE MATERIALS AND METHODS:  All bids are to be based directly on the 
materials and fabrication techniques indicated in this drawing package. No alternates 
will be considered as part of the base bid. Any alternates suggested by the potential 
bidder must be quoted separately as alternates and must be accompanied by a 
complete description of the proposed alternate in order to be considered.

J. WARRANTY
- During the warranty period, the Contractor agrees to restore defective work to the 
standard of the Bid Documents without cost to the Client, including material and labor, 
for three years after acceptance of the Work. 
- Signs shall be warranted for five years against discolouration, UV fading, 
delamination, or deterioration. 
- Vinyl die-cut letters shall be warranted for five years against delamination from 
substrate. 
- At project completion the Contractor must include within a 3-ring binder material  
samples and all warranty information, to include but not limited to, labor, materials, 
products used, along with all lighting specification and manufacturers contact 
information.

QUALITY ASSURANCE  
A. UL COMPLIANCE:  Provide lighting fixture and electrical components that are 
UL-labeled and listed.  Indicate electrical service required and location for review by 
Designer.

B. LAMP EMISSION:  All lighting fixtures/sources shall emit a color balanced, consistent 
and uniform light with no browning, flickering, haloing, or other uneven effect.

C. ELECTRICAL HARDWARE:  All transformers and electrical hardware shall be 
concealed, non-audible and non-visible to pedestrian and vehicular traffic.

D. LABELING:  There shall be no visible labels, manufacturer's or otherwise, code 
permitting, on the completed signs.  If labels are required, a sample label and intended 
location must be submitted for Designer review, prior to application.

E. STOCK:  All materials, hardware, electrical components, finishes, etc. used to 
fabricate any and all sign components shall be "NEW" (not previously used or operated 
in any other application) and from the most recent original manufacturer's production 
run/supply and appropriately matched to the service conditions required of the site.

F. ARTWORK:  Digital artwork for all symbols and other custom designed graphic 
components, such as logos, logo-type and arrow heads used for all sign types shall be 
furnished or specified by the Designer for reproduction.  All enlarging and reducing is the 
responsibility of the Sign Contractor. Paper patterns are required prior to fabrication.

G. EXECUTION:  Problems such as messages being too long to fit into the required 
formats, difficult logo or logo-type components to reproduce accurately, etc., must be 
brought to the attention of the Designer, prior to execution. The Sign Contractor is not  to 
resolve these kinds of discrepancies.

H. OWNERSHIP:  All designs created by the Designer for this project are to be used 
exclusively for this project.  The Sign Contractor must receive express written permission 
from the Designer and Owner for any use other than for the completion of this project 
including self-promotion and publication.  It is required that all original artwork furnished 
be returned upon completion of this project.  (Deposit may be required.)

I.  ACCEPTANCE:  All work shall be complete in every respect and satisfactory to all 
governing legislative authorities and building codes, the Owner and the Designer.

PERMITS  
A. PERMITS: Sign Fabricator is responsible for acquiring all necessary permits and 
approvals from all governing authorities for  contents of this package prior to fabrication 
and/or installation. Owner is to be supplied with copies of all permits and approvals.

A.  ALL  POTENTIAL BIDDERS:  All bidders must submit, at Owners request,  three 
(3) examples of similar projects, completed under the bidding company's name, within 
a period of three years prior to the date of this bid. This submittal is to include:
detailed photographs, shop drawing examples and total project costs.
Potential bidders must also submit a written description regarding their specific role in 
each submitted project as well as a statement regarding their qualifications as they 
directly relate to this project along with their bid. 

B.  SIGN REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL: Disposal of existing signage by Owner.

C.  PROJECT COMPLETION: Successful bidder shall have six (6) week after bid has 
been awarded for substantial completion. Project close-out to follow 12 days after 
substantial completion. 

D.  SIGN MOCK-UP FOR APPROVAL: Prior to fabrication the successful bidder shall 
mock-up of one or more sign types for Owner approval. Owner shall advise and 
negotiate with successful bidder on  sign types, time-line and cost.

E. TIMBER: All timber used is to be Western Red Cedar. All cedar to be rough sawn,  
timber free of heart center (fohc).        
Refer to: http://www.realcedar.com/architects/engineering-data/ for additional 
specification information. Contact PAUL MACKIE 877-316-8845 or  www.realcedar.com 
and for information on lumber yards and distributors.

DISTRIBUTOR CONTACT INFORMATION: 
Midwest Lumber, PO Box 800, Stillwater, MN 55082
Tim Knox 800-862-6003, 651-439-5051, 651-439-5446

F. The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) accepts total responsibility for all final 
selected materials, engineering methods, fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE.

ALTERNATES
1. Provide lump sum alternate pricing for .100” aluminum to replace 6mm composite 
aluminum.

2. Provide lump sum alternate pricing for concrete footers, 6” square aluminum painted 
post with breakaway hardware that meets or exceeds MUTCD specifications to replace 
all cedar sign posts. 

BID SPECIFICATIONS (Also refer to complete bid documents) 

002

General Specifications

 

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
- 

      
      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.



FHWA Series D 2005  (DOT Approved font)

SIGNAGE COLOR PALETTE (Computer Representation )

 LOGO VERSIONS    

PROJECT TYPE FONTS

P1
Matte
Black

P2
PMS 201C

SIGNAGE COLOR PALETTE 3M VINYL OR EQUAL  (Computer Representation )

INTERNATIONAL SYMBOLS AND ARROWS

V1
3M Vinyl

Reflective
5000

V2
3M Vinyl
Opaque
7725-20

V3
3M Vinyl
7725-23

V4
3M Vinyl
7725-47

ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ
abcdefghijklmnopqrstuvwxyz
1234567890.,;:“”&!?$

FHWA / DOT OVERVIEW OF DESIGN STANDARDS    
 
1)  MAXIMUM OF 3 LISTINGS / DESTINATIONS PER SIGN PANEL.
2)  MAXIMUM OF 4 LINES PER SIGN PANEL.
3)  COLOR CONTRAST SHOULD BE AT LEAST 70 PERCENT BETWEEN TYPEFACE AND BACKGROUND.
4) FHWA SERIES “D” FONT TO BE USED.
5)  LETTER CAP HEIGHT TO BE 4 “ UPPER CASE WITH 3” LOWER CASE FOR SIGNS IN URBAN CONDITIONS WITH SPEEDS   
 OF 25 MPH OR LESS.
6)  LETTER CAP HEIGHT TO BE 6“ UPPER CASE AND 4 1/2” LOWER CASE FOR SIGNS ON ROADWAYS OVER 30 MPH.
7)  RETROREFLECTIVE VINYL MUST BE USED AND COMPLY WITH MUTCD SECTION TABLE 2A-3.
8) ALL SIGN POSTS ARE TOBE BREAKAWAY AND MEET OR EXCEED MUTCD SPECIFICATIONS.
9)  SIGNS WITHIN RIGHT-OF-WAY AND IN CLEAR ZONES MUST HAVE A VERTICAL CLEARANCE OF 7’-0” IN URBAN AREAS   
 AND 5’-0” IN RURAL AREAS.
10)  5’-0” MINIMUM LATERAL SETBACK FOR POSTS REQUIRED IN URBAN AREA WITH LOW SPEEDS ≤ 40 MPH WITH CURB.  
11)  2’-0” MINIMUM LATERAL SETBACK OFF BACK OF CURB TO FRONT EDGE OF SIGN IN URBAN AREAS.
12)  6’-0” MINIMUM LATERAL SETBACK FROM EDGE OF SHOULDER TO NEAR EDGE OF SIGN FOR POSTS IN RURAL AREAS .
13)  SETBACK ≥ 30’-0” POST ARE NOT REQUIRED TO BE BREAKAWAY.
14) SIGNS WITHIN RIGHT-OF-WAY (ROW) AND IN CLEAR ZONES MUST USE “BREAK AWAY” HARDWARE AND/OR    
 CONSTRUCTION METHODS.
15) SIGN SPACING SHOULD BE A 200' DESIRABLE, 100' MINIMUM IN URBAN AREAS. SIGN SPACING SHOULD BE 400'   
 DESIRABLE, 200' MINIMUM IN RURAL AREAS.
16)  WOOD POSTS TO BE EMBEDDED A MINIMUM OF 5’-0”. WOOD POSTS LONGER THAN THE REQUIRED LENGTH SHALL BE  
 CUT OFF OR SET DEEPER. HOLES FOR SETTING WOOD POSTS TO BE A MIMINUM DIAMETER OF 6” WIDER THAN THE   
 LARGEST SIDE DIMENSION OF THE POST WITH THE TOP 6“ OF FILL 12” WIDER THAT THE LARGEST SIDE DIMENSION OF  
 THE POST. 
17) POSTS ARE TO BE CENTERED IN THE HOLE, SET, BACKFILLED, AND COMPACTED WITH HYDRALIC COMPACTOR WITH   
 MATERIAL PLACED IN LAYERS NOT TO EXCEED 6”. 
18)  ALL POSTS TO BE TREATED FOR BELOW GROUND INSTALLATION AND BACKFILL WITH 3/4“ - 1” CRUSHED STONE OR   
 WITH EXISTING MATERIAL FROM SITE. VERIFY WITH THE CITY OF MANDAN MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT.
19)  FINISH AREA AROUND POST(S) TO MATCH EXISTING CONDITIONS IS URBAN SETTINGS.  

NOTES          
  
1) COLOR BLOCKS ARE A COMPUTER REPRESENTATION ONLY AND ARE A CLOSE APPROXIMATION OF THE ACTUAL   
 COLORS
2)  ALL PAINT COLORS FOR SIGNAGE ARE TO BE MATTHEWS PAINT COMPANY, MATTHEWS ACRYLIC POLYURETHANE   
 (MAP)  [1-800-323-6593] OR EQUAL. UV CLEAR COAT REQUIRED FOR ALL PAINTED SURFACES
3)  COLOR AND MATERIAL SAMPLES REQUIRED FOR APPROVAL PRIOR TO FABRICATION.
4)  ALTERNATIVES MATERIALS AND COATINGS  WILL REQUIRE THAT THE FABRICATOR TO SUBMIT 6" SQUARE SAMPLES   
 FOR APPROVAL. ALSO NOTE THAT ANY SUCH MATERIALS MUST HAVE A COMPARABLE WARRANTY.
5)  ALL ARTWORK TO BE PROVIDED BY THE OWNER / DESIGNER

ARROW DETAIL 

003

Phase IV
Project Standards

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
- 

      
      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.



DOT APPROVED HARDWARE IF NEEDED:
h�p://www.transpo.com/Way�nding.html
or equal

2013 6th Edition  
BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
- 

      
      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

004

DOT Summary 

 

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.

5
’-0

”



1.00

Phase IV
Vehicular Directional

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2015
Revisions:
- 

      
      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

6"

www.decksdirect.com/sirius-post-cap.html
or equal. Sample required. 

5'
-0

"
7'

-0
"

12
'-8

"

10 1/2"

APPLIED VINYL LOGO, V2

APPLIED VINYL, V3

6mm ALUMINUM COMPOSITE 
PANEL (DiBond or equal)

THRU-BOLT, TYP

2” SQUARE ALUMINUM TUBE 
WITH CAP ENDS PTD. P2, TYP.

NOTE:
- SIGN PANEL TO BE 
CHEMICALLY ADHERED TO 
SUPPORT TUBES

6” SQUARE WESTERN RED 
CEDAR POST, TYP.

6mm ALUMINUM COMPOSITE 
PANEL (DiBond or equal)

2” SQUARE ALUMINUM TUBE 
WITH CAP ENDS TO MATCH V3, 
TYP.

THRU-BOLT, TYP.

6” SQUARE WESTERN RED 
CEDAR POST, TYP.
 

FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/2” = 1’-0”
A

VEH1.00

POST CAP

SCALE: NTS
D

VEH1.00

SIGN PANEL DETAIL

SCALE: 1” = 1’-0”
C

VEH1.00

Family Wellness

Prairie West
Golf Course

Centennial Park

ALUMINUM POST CAP, P1

APPLIED VINYL LOGO, V2

APPLIED VINYL, V3

APPLIED REFLECTIVE VINYL, 
TYP., V1

6mm ALUMINUM COMPOSITE 
PANEL (DiBond or equal), P1

APPLIED REFLECTIVE VINYL, 
TYP., V1

6” SQUARE WESTERN RED 
CEDAR POST, TYP.

NOTE:
- ALL EXPOSED FASTENERS TO 
MATCH BACKGROUND COLOR

REFER TO PAGE 004 FOR 
DETAILS ON BREAKAWAY 
SPECIFICATIONS

FABRICATED ALUMINUM 
COLLAR PTD. P1

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.

4'-0"

REAR ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/2” = 1’-0”
B

VEH1.00

A

A

SEE PAGE 003 FOR DETAILS

2 
1 /

2"

4"

LE
TT

ER
. T

YP
.

Family Wellness

Prairie West
Golf Course

Centennial Park

1/
2"

 R
U

LE
 

LI
N

E,
 T

YP
. 

1'
-1

 1/
2 "

EQ
.

EQ
.

1 3/4"

1 3/4"

2"

2"

5"

5"

SECTION DETAIL AA, TYPICAL

SCALE: NTS
E

VEH1.00
5 1/4"

10
 3 /

8"
NOTE:  - MESSAGES SHOWN DO NOT REFLECT AN ACTUAL SIGN PANEL
 - MESSAGES ARE ARE LIMITED TO 15 CHARACTERS PER LINE
 - MESSAGES ARE GROUPED BY DIRECTIONAL ARROWS
 - RULES LINES ARE REQUIRED WITH EACH CHANGE IN DIRECTION
 - ALL COPY IS TO BE LEFT JUSTIFIED
 - UP AND LEFT ARROWS CENTER ALIGNED AND TO THE LEFT OF 
   FIRST LINE OF DESTINATION
 - RIGHT ARROW MUST BE PLACED TO RIGHT OF THE LONGEST LINE OF TEXT
 - TWO LINE RIGHT DESTINATION, RIGHT ARROW TO BE CENTER 
    ALIGNED WITH BOTTOM LINE OF TEXT



10 1/2"

APPLIED VINYL LOGO, V2

APPLIED VINYL, V3

6mm ALUMINUM COMPOSITE 
PANEL (DiBond or equal)

THRU-BOLT, TYP

2” SQUARE ALUMINUM TUBE 
WITH CAP ENDS PTD. P2, TYP.

NOTE:
- SIGN PANEL TO BE 
CHEMICALLY ADHERED TO 
SUPPORT TUBES
 

6” SQUARE WESTERN RED 
CEDAR POST, TYP.

A

A

2.00

Phase IV
Vehicular Directional

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2015
Revisions:
- 

      
      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

6"

www.decksdirect.com/sirius-post-cap.html
or equal. Sample required. 

5'
-0

"
7'

-0
"

15
'-0

" P
O

ST

FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/2” = 1’-0”
A

VEH2.00

POST CAP

SCALE: NTS
D

VEH2.00

Family Wellness

Prairie West
Golf Course

Centennial Park

4 1/2"

APPLIED VINYL LOGO, V2

APPLIED VINYL, V3

APPLIED REFLECTIVE VINYL, 
TYP., V1

6mm ALUMINUM COMPOSITE 
PANEL (DiBond or equal), P1

APPLIED REFLECTIVE VINYL, 
TYP., V1

6” SQUARE WESTERN RED 
CEDAR POST, TYP.

NOTE:
- ANY EXPOSED FASTENERS 
TO MATCH BACKGROUND 
COLOR

REFER TO PAGE 004 FOR 
DETAILS ON BREAKAWAY 
SPECIFICATIONS

FABRICATED ALUMINUM 
COLLAR PTD. P1

SEE PAGE 003 FOR DETAILS

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.

4'-0"

REAR ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/2” = 1’-0”
B

VEH2.00

2'-0"

ALUMINUM POST CAP, P1

6mm ALUMINUM COMPOSITE 
PANEL (DiBond or equal), P1

APPLIED REFLECTIVE VINYL, 
TYP., V1

APPLIED VINYL, TYP., V4

1'
-8

"

2'
-0

"

1'
-0

"
 “P

”

6 
1 /

2"

2 
1 /

2"

SECTION DETAIL AA, TYPICAL

SCALE: NTS
E

VEH2.00

SIGN PANEL DETAIL

SCALE: 1” = 1’-0”
C

VEH2.00

4"

LE
TT

ER
. T

YP
.

Family Wellness

Prairie West
Golf Course

Centennial Park

1'
-1

 1/
2 "

EQ
.

EQ
.

1 3/4"

1 3/4"

2"

2"

5"

5"

5 1/4"

6mm ALUMINUM COMPOSITE 
PANEL (DiBond or equal)

2” SQUARE ALUMINUM TUBE 
WITH CAP ENDS TO MATCH V3, 
TYP.

THRU-BOLT, TYP.

6” SQUARE WESTERN RED 
CEDAR POST, TYP.
 

1/
2"

 R
U

LE
 

LI
N

E,
 T

YP
. 

10
 3 /

8"

NOT USED
PHASE II ONLY

NOTE:  - MESSAGES SHOWN DO NOT REFLECT AN ACTUAL SIGN PANEL
 - MESSAGES ARE ARE LIMITED TO 15 CHARACTERS PER LINE
 - MESSAGES ARE GROUPED BY DIRECTIONAL ARROWS
 - RULES LINES ARE REQUIRED WITH EACH CHANGE IN DIRECTION
 - ALL COPY IS TO BE LEFT JUSTIFIED
 - UP AND LEFT ARROWS CENTER ALIGNED AND TO THE LEFT OF 
   FIRST LINE OF DESTINATION
 - RIGHT ARROW MUST BE PLACED TO RIGHT OF THE LONGEST LINE OF TEXT
 - TWO LINE RIGHT DESTINATION, RIGHT ARROW TO BE CENTER 
    ALIGNED WITH BOTTOM LINE OF TEXT



Family Wellness

Prairie West
Golf Course

Centennial Park

3.00

Phase IV
Vehicular Directional

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/14/2015
Revisions:
- 

      
      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation.

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.

FRONT ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/2” = 1’-0”
A

VEH3.00
REAR ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/2” = 1’-0”
C

VEH3.00
SECTION DETAIL BB

SCALE: 1/2” = 1’-0”
B

VEH3.00

7'
-6

"
SI

G
N

 P
AN

EL
5'

-0
"

ALUMINUM POST CAP, P1

SEE DETAIL ON PAGE 
3.01

APPLIED VINYL LOGO, V2

APPLIED VINYL, V3

APPLIED REFLECTIVE 
VINYL, TYP., V1

6mm ALUMINUM 
COMPOSITE PANEL 
(DiBond or equal), P1

APPLIED REFLECTIVE 
VINYL, TYP., V1

6” SQUARE WESTERN 
RED CEDAR POST, TYP.

NOTE:
- ALL EXPOSED 
FASTENERS TO MATCH 
BACKGROUND COLOR

REFER TO PAGE 004 FOR 
DETAILS ON BREAKAWAY 
SPECIFICATIONS

FABRICATED ALUMINUM 
COLLAR PTD. P1

B

B

3” X 1 1/2” ALUMINUM 
SUPPORT TUBE WITH CAP 
ENDS PTD P2, TYP.

APPLIED VINYL LOGO, V2, 
TYP.

APPLIED VINYL, V3

6mm ALUMINUM 
COMPOSITE PANEL 
(DiBond or equal)

ALUMINUM FABRICATED 
“L” BRACKET PTD P2

NOTE:
- SIGN PANEL TO BE 
CHEMICALLY ADHERED TO 
SUPPORT TUBES AND 
BRACKETS.

SEE PAGE 003 FOR DETAILS

2 
1 /

2"

6'-0"
EQ. EQ.

7'-3"

5'
-0

"
3'

-3
"

2'
-6

"
6"

3"
3"

3"

12
'-8

"

13
'-2

 1 /
2"

www.decksdirect.com/sirius-post-cap.html
or equal. Sample required. 

NOTE: 
- MESSAGES SHOWN DO NOT REFLECT AN ACTUAL SIGN PANEL
- MESSAGES ARE ARE LIMITED TO 15 CHARACTERS PER LINE
- MESSAGES ARE GROUPED BY DIRECTIONAL ARROWS
- RULES LINES ARE REQUIRED WITH EACH CHANGE IN DIRECTION
- ALL COPY IS TO BE LEFT JUSTIFIED
- UP AND LEFT ARROWS CENTER ALIGNED AND TO THE LEFT OF 
  FIRST LINE OF DESTINATION
- RIGHT ARROW MUST BE PLACED TO RIGHT OF THE LONGEST LINE OF TEXT
- TWO LINE RIGHT DESTINATION, RIGHT ARROW TO BE CENTER 
   ALIGNED WITH BOTTOM LINE OF TEXT

1'
-2

 3/
4 "

 
LO

G
O

1'
-2

 1/
2 "

 
LO

G
O

1'-9"
LOGO



3.01

Phase IV
Vehicular Directional

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2015
Revisions:
- 

      
      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation.

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.

1/4” ALUMINUM  PLATE

3” X 1 1/2” ALUMINUM 
SUPPORT TUBE WITH CAP 
ENDS PTD P2, TYP.

3"

6" 3"
EQ

.
EQ

.

1 1/2"

1 1/2"3/4"

3 /
4"

3 /
4"

SUPPORT DETAIL - SECTION BB

SCALE: 1:2
B

VEH3.01

SUPPORT DETAIL - TOP VIEW

SCALE: 1:2
C

VEH3.01

1/4” ALUMINUM PLATE

3” X 1 1/2” ALUMINUM 
SUPPORT TUBE WITH CAP 
ENDS PTD P2, TYP.

NOTE: 
- MESSAGES SHOWN DO NOT REFLECT AN ACTUAL SIGN PANEL
- MESSAGES ARE ARE LIMITED TO 15 CHARACTERS PER LINE
- MESSAGES ARE GROUPED BY DIRECTIONAL ARROWS
- RULES LINES ARE REQUIRED WITH EACH CHANGE IN DIRECTION
- ALL COPY IS TO BE LEFT JUSTIFIED
- UP AND LEFT ARROWS CENTER ALIGNED AND TO THE LEFT OF 
  FIRST LINE OF DESTINATION
- RIGHT ARROW MUST BE PLACED TO RIGHT OF THE LONGEST LINE OF TEXT
- TWO LINE RIGHT DESTINATION, RIGHT ARROW TO BE CENTER 
   ALIGNED WITH BOTTOM LINE OF TEXT

SIGN ELEVATION

SCALE: 1” = 1’-0”
A

VEH3.01

6 3/4"

6"

LE
TT

ER
. T

YP
.

3/
4"

 R
U

LE
 

LI
N

E,
 T

YP
. 

1'
-9

 1/
2 "

EQ
.

EQ
.

3" 3"7 1/4" 3" 3"7 1/4"
1'

-2
 5 /

8"



MEMORIAL HWY

HW
Y 1806

H
W

Y 1806

19TH STREET

MCKENZIE DRIVE

H
W

Y 
6

3RD ST SW

MAIN STREET

SUNSET AVE

OLD RED TRAIL

C
O

LLIN
S

 AVE

SO
U

TH
EA

ST
 - 

 S
H

EE
T 

LP
.0

3

LP.00

Phase IV
Location Plan Grid

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
- 

      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

M
AN

DAN
 AVE

N
O

RT
H

W
ES

T 
- S

H
EE

T 
LP

.0
1

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N
 - 

 S
H

EE
T 

LP
.0

2

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.

35MPH 
w/CURB

35MPH 
w/CURB

25MPH 
w/CURB

25MPH 
w/CURB

25MPH 
w/CURB

25MPH 
w/CURB

35MPH 
NO CURB

45MPH 
NO CURB

25MPH 
w/ CURB

25MPH 
w/ CURB

25MPH 
w/ CURB

25MPH 
w/ CURB

25MPH 
w/ CURB

30MPH 
w/ CURB

35MPH 
NO CURB

40MPH NO CURB

40MPH 
NO CURB

40MPH 
NO CURB

30MPH 
w/ CURB

55MPH 
NO CURB

NO CURB

CITY LIMITS

25MPH 
w/ CURB

25MPH 
w/ CURB

35MPH 
W/ CURB

DT

SE

NW



HW
Y 1806

MEMORIAL HIGHWAY

SU
N

SET AVE/6TH
 STREET

CO
LLIN

S AVE

1ST AVE. N
E

1ST AVE. N
W

2N
D

 AVE. N
W

3RD
 AVE. N

W

4TH
 AVE. N

W

5TH
 AVE. N

W

3RD ST SW

H
W

Y 6/10TH
 A

VE SW

LP.DT

Phase IV
Location Plan
Downtown

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
-  

      
      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.

DT1

DT1

DT2

DT2

DT3

DT3

DT4

DT4

DT5

D
T5

D
T6

D
T7

D
T8

DT6

DT7

DT8

DT9

DT10

DT11

DT12

DT13

DT14

DT10

DT11

DT12DT13

DT14

LIBRARY
DYKSHOORN PARK
MANDAN DEPOT
HERITAGE PARK
CITY HALL
COURTHOUSE
POLICE DEPT.
POST OFFICE
**NOT USED
TROLLEY
BALL DIAMONDS
FARIS FIELD
MUNICIPAL GOLF 
COURSE
LEGION PARK

MAIN ST.

CO
LLINS AVE.

6TH AVE. AVE. / SUNSET

VEHX.XX
DT.034

VEHX.XX
DT.035

VEHX.XX
DT.033

VEH1.00
DT.044

VEH1.00
DT.043

VEH3.00
DT.051

VEH1.00
DT.004

VEH1.00
DT.006

VEH1.00
DT.007

VEH3.00
DT.016

VEH1.00
DT.046

VEHX.XX
DT.053

M
AN

DA
N 

AV
E.

VEHX.XX
DT.002

VEHX.XX
DT.003

VEHX.XX
DT.001

VEHX.XX
DT.045

VEH1.00
DT.049

VEH1.00
DT.048

VEHX.XX
DT.050

VEHX.XX
DT.031

VEHX.XX
DT.032

VEHX.XX
DT.005

VEHX.XX
DT.008

NOT USED
DT.009-015

NOT USED
DT.021-030

NOT USED
DT.036-040

VEHX.XX
DT.017

VEHX.XX
DT.018

VEH1.00
DT.041

VEHX.XX
DT.042

VEHX.XX
DT.047

VEHX.XX
DT.052

VEHX.XX
DT.054

VEHX.XX
DT.055

VEHX.XX
DT.020

VEHX.XX
DT.019

VEHX.XX
XX.000

SIGN TYPE

LOCATION 
NUMBER

INDICATES SIGN FUTURE
SIGN LOCATIONS

VEHXXX
XX.0XX



M
ANDAN AVE

SU
N

SET AVE

SU
N

SET AVE.

OLD RED TRAIL

H
W

Y 1806 / CO
LLIN

S AVE

CO
LLIN

S AVE

VEHX.XX
XX.000

SIGN TYPE

LOCATION 
NUMBER

INDICATES SIGN 
FUTURE SIGN
LOCATIONS

VEHXXX
XX.0XX

LP.NW

Phase IV
Location Plan
Northwest

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
 

      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
NNOT USED

NW.007-010

NOT USED
NW.017-020

VEH3.00
NW.003

VEHX.XX
NW.001

VEHX.XX
NW.002

VEH3.00
NW.015

VEHX.XX
NW.016

VEHX.XX
NW.021

VEH3.00
NW.022

VEHX.XX
NW.023

VEH3.00
NW.005

VEHX.XX
NW.006

VEH1.00
NW.004

VEHX.XX
NW.011

VEHX.XX
NW.012

VEHX.XX
NW.013

VEHX.XX
NW.014

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.

NW1

NW1

NW2
NW3

NW2

NW4

NW3

NW4

NW5

NW6

NW8

NW9

NW8

NW7

NW9

NW10

NW11

NW12

NW10

NW11

NW12

NW5

NW6 NW7

MIDDLE SCHOOL
RR MUSEUM
RED TRAIL ELEM. SCHOOL
LIONS PARK/WALKING TR.
AQUATIC CTR
ALL SEASONS ARENA
HIGH SCHOOL
SPORTS COMPLEX
UNIVERSAL PLAYGROUND
UNION CEMETERY
ARCHERY RANGE
NATURE TRAIL



MEMORIAL HIGHWAY

3RD ST SW

MCKENZIE DRIVE

HW
Y 1806

VEHX.XX
XX.000

SIGN TYPE

LOCATION 
NUMBER

INDICATES SIGN 
FUTURE SIGN 
LOCATIONS

VEHXXX
XX.0XX

LP.SE

Phase IV
Location Plan
Southeast

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
- 

      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.

SE1
SE1 SE2

SE2

SE3

SE3

SE4

SE5

SE6

SE5

SE6

SE4

CENTENNIAL PARK
SOCCER COMPLEX
PRAIRIE WEST
GOLF COURSE
VETERANS MEMORIAL PK. 
WATER PARK
FAMILY WELLNESS

NOT USED
SE.018-020

NOT USED
SE.011-015

VEH3.00
SE.021

VEHX.XX
SE.022

VEHX.XX
SE.023

VEH3.00
SE.024

VEH1.00
SE.025

VEHX.XX
SE.026

VEHX.XX
SE.004

VEH3.00
SE.005

VEH3.00
SE.006

VEHX.XX
SE.007

VEH3.00
SE.009

VEH3.00
SE.010

VEHX.XX
SE.008

VEHX.XX
SE.016

VEH3.00
SE.017

VEHX.XX
SE.001

VEHX.XX
SE.002

VEHX.XX
SE.003



DT.004-006-007-016

Phase IV
Message Schedule

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
-   

      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

VEH1.00
DT.004

VEH1.00
DT.006

Ball Diamonds

All Seasons 
Arena

Aquatic Center

Dykshoorn Park

All Seasons 
Arena

Aquatic Center

- 25 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED
- AVOID CLEAR ZONE 

- 25 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED
- AVOID CLEAR ZONE 

Ball Diamonds

Municipal
Golf Course

Legion Park

- 25 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED
- AVOID CLEAR ZONE

VEH1.00
DT.007

Municipal
Golf Course

Legion Park

Ball Diamonds

- 25 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

VEH3.00
DT.016

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.



DT.041-043-044-046

Phase IV
Message Schedule

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
-   

      
      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

Centennial Park

Prairie West
Golf Course

Ball Diamonds

Downtown

Dykshoorn Park

Ball Diamonds

- 25 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

Centennial Park

Prairie West
Golf Course

Downtown

- 25 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

- 25 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED
- REMOVE EXISTING “NO PARKING” SIGN AND 
POST. INSTALL NEW SIGN SAME LOCATION. 

Centennial Park

Pairie West
Golf Course

Water Park

- 25 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

VEH1.00
DT.043

VEH1.00
DT.044

VEH1.00
DT.046

VEH1.00
DT.041

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.



DT.048-049-051

Phase IV
Message Schedule

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
-   

      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

Downtown

Centennial Park

Prairie West
Golf Course

- 30 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

VEH3.00
DT.051

Ball Diamonds

Legion Park

Downtown

- 25 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

Centennial Park

Prairie West
Golf Course

Ball Diamonds

- 25 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

VEH1.00
DT.049

VEH1.00
DT.048

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.



NW.003-004-005-015

Phase IV
Message Schedule

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
-   

      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

Middle School

Universal
Playground

   

All Seasons 
Arena

Aquatic Center

Downtown

- 25 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

NOTE: 
-LOCATION TO BE VERIFIED 
- THIRD MESSAGE / LOCATION BEING 
RESERVED FOR FUTURE SPORTS COMPLEX
 

- 25 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED
 

Universal
Playground

Downtown

  

RR Museum

Universal
Playground

Downtown

- 35 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED
- AVOID CLEAR ZONE

NOTE: THIRD MESSAGE / LOCATION BEING 
RESERVED FOR FUTURE SPORTS COMPLEX 

- 40 MPH
- URBAN 
- NO CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED
- AVOID CLEAR ZONE
- MOUNT EXISTING “NO PARKING” SIGN ON TO 
NEW SIGN POST

NOTE:
- VERIFY FINAL LOCATION 

VEH3.00
NW.003

VEH1.00
NW.004

VEH3.00
NW.005

VEH3.00
NW.015

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.

TBD

TBD



NW.022

Phase IV
Message Schedule

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
-   

      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

Downtown

Centennial Park

Water Park

- 35 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

 

VEH3.00
NW.022

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.



SE.005-006-009-010

Phase IV
Message Schedule

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
-   

      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

Water Park

Centennial Park

Prairie West
Golf Course

Downtown

Centennial Park

Ball Diamonds

- 40 MPH
- URBAN 
- NO CURB AND GUTTER
- 6’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

 

- 40 MPH
- URBAN 
- NO CURB AND GUTTER
- 6’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

- 40 MPH
- URBAN 
- NO CURB AND GUTTER
- 6’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

- 40 MPH
- URBAN 
- NO CURB AND GUTTER
- 6’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

 

Water Park

Family 
Wellness

Centennial Park

Downtown

Ball Diamonds

Centennial Park

VEH3.00
SE.005

VEH3.00
SE.006

VEH3.00
SE.009

VEH3.00
SE.010

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.



SE.017-021-024-025

Phase IV
Message Schedule

BERBERICHDESIGN
PO Box 468
Hill City, SD 57745
Contact:
Ray Berberich
605-430-5170
ray@berberichdeisgn.com

Project:
City-Wide Vehicular 
Wayfinding

Prepared for:
The City of Mandan
205 Second Avenue NW, 
Mandan, ND 58554

Client Contact:
Ellen Huber, CEcD
Business Development & 
Communications Director
Office 701-667-3485
Cell 701-400-6249

Date: 04/21/2016
Revisions:
-   

      

Drawn by: RB

©
 2

01
6 

B
ER

B
ER

IC
H

 D
ES

IG
N

Centennial Park

Water Park

Family
Wellness

Water Park

Family
Wellness

Veterans Park

- 40 MPH
- URBAN 
- CURB AND GUTTER
- 5’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK TO POST
- 2’-0” LATERAL SETBACK TO EDGE OF SIGNS 
PANEL / STRUCTURE
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

 

- 40 MPH
- URBAN 
- NO CURB AND GUTTER
- 6’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

 

Veterans Park

   

   

- 35 MPH
- URBAN 
- NO CURB AND GUTTER
- 6’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

 

Veterans Park

   

   

- 25 MPH
- URBAN 
- NO CURB AND GUTTER
- 6’-0”+ LATERAL SETBACK
- BREAKAWAY REQUIRED

NOTE: 
- CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE EXISTING SIGN 
AND REPLACE WITH NEW SIGN POST 

 

VEH3.00
SE.017

VEH3.00
SE.021

VEH3.00
SE.024

VEH1.00
SE.025

The sole purpose of all drawings is to 
express visual design intent only and not 
intended for actual fabrication purposes. 
The sign fabricator(s)  and / or contractor(s) 
accepts total responsibility for all �nal 
selected materials, engineering methods, 
fabrication methods, permitting and 
installation. Shop drawings and plan sheets 
are required to be sealed and signed by a 
North Dakota registered PE. 

This document is the sole property of 
Berberich Design, Inc., and all drawing are 
protected under US copyright law. The 
reproduction, reuse and sales rights 
regarding the drawings and designs herein 
are expressly forbidden. It is submitted 
under a con�dential relationship, for a 
special purpose, and the recipient, by 
accepting this document shall not be 
copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 
nor its contents revealed in any manner or 
to any person except for the purpose for 
which it was tendered, nor any special 
features peculiar to this design be 
incorporated in other projects.



  Page 1 of 2 

 

 

ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 

 

CITY-WIDE VEHICULAR WAYFINDING SIGNS 

CITY OF MANDAN 

MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 
 

 

Sealed bids will be received by the City of Mandan, at the office of the City Administrator, 205 Second 

Avenue NW, Mandan, ND 58554, until 11:00 AM CT, May 13, 2016, at which time they will be 

publicly opened and read aloud for the furnishing of materials, labor, equipment and skill required for the 

construction of City-Wide Vehicular Wayfinding Signs and incidental items in and for said City of 

Mandan, as is more fully described and set forth in the plans and specifications therefore, which are now 

on file in the office of the City Administrator. 

 

Bids shall be upon cash payment on the following estimated quantities and types of work: 

       

Shop Drawings, Fabrication, Permitting, Shipping, and Installation of multiple vehicular 

wayfinding signs, posts, break-a-way bases, and other incidental work at 24 locations 

throughout the City of Mandan. 

 

The contract documents are on file and may be examined at the following: 

 

City of Mandan 

205 Second Avenue NW, Mandan, ND 58554 

 

Complete digital project bidding documents are available at www.kljeng.com “Projects for Bid” or 

www.questcdn.com. You may download the digital plan documents for $18 by inputting Quest project # 

4444607 on the website’s Project Search page. Please contact QuestCDN at (952) 233-1632 or 

info@questcdn.com for assistance in free membership registration, downloading, and working with this 

digital project information.  
 

All bids are to be submitted on the basis of cash payment for the work and materials, and each bid shall be 

accompanied by a separate envelope containing the contractor’s license and bid security. The bid security 

must be in a sum equal to five per cent (5%) of the full amount of the bid and must be in the form of a 

bidder’s bond. A bidder’s bond must be executed by the bidder as principal and by a surety company 

authorized to do business in this state, conditioned that if the principal's bid be accepted and the contract 

awarded to the principal, the principal, within ten (10) days after notice of award, will execute and effect a 

contract in accordance with the terms of his bid and the bid bond as required by the laws of the State of 

North Dakota and the regulations and determinations of the governing body. If a successful bidder does 

not execute a contract within ten (10) days allowed, the bidder’s bond must be forfeited to the governing 

body and the project awarded to the next lowest responsible bidder.   

 

All bidders must be licensed for the full amount of the bid as required by Section 43-07-05 and 43-07-12 

of the North Dakota Century Code.  

 

The successful Bidder will be required to furnish Contract Performance and Payment Bonds in the full 

amount of the contract. 
 

http://www.kljeng.com/
http://www.questcdn.com/
mailto:info@questcdn.com


  Page 2 of 2 

 

Contracts shall be awarded on the basis of the low bid submitted by a responsible and responsive bidder 

for the aggregate sum of all bid items. A single contract will be awarded for the work. 

 

All bids will be contained in a sealed envelope, as above provided; plainly marked showing that such 

envelope contains a bid for the above project. In addition, the bidder shall place upon the exterior of such 

envelope the following information: 

 

1. The work covered by the bidder 

2. The name of the bidder 

3. Separate envelope containing bid bond and a copy of North Dakota Contractor's License or 

certificate of renewal. 

4. Acknowledgement of the Addenda. 

 

No Bid will be read or considered which does not fully comply with the above provisions as to Bond and 

licenses and any deficient Bid submitted will be resealed and returned to the Bidder immediately.   

 

The work on the improvement will be completed by July 2, 2016. 

 

The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, to waive any informality in any bid, to hold all 

bids for a period not to exceed 30 days from the date of opening bids, and to accept the bid deemed most 

favorable to the interest of the Owner. 

 

Should the Contractor fail to complete the work within the time required herein or within such extra time 

as may have been granted by formal extensions of time approved by the Owner, there will be deducted 

from any amount due the Contractor the sum of $350 per day and every day that the completion of the 

work is delayed. The Contractor and his surety will be liable for any excess.  Such payment will be as and 

for liquidated damages.    
 

Dated this 18 day of April, 2016 

 

City of Mandan 

MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 

 

  

s/Jim Neubauer  

 City Administrator 

 

Published April 22, April 29, May 6, 2016 



  

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To authorize the installation of water and sewer for the 

development of the subject area. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Jude Lane NW is located north of Old Red Trail NW and 

west of Sunset Drive NW.  The proposed utilities only serve the developer of the benefiting land; 

therefore, this is being paid for by the developer under a 3-way agreement.  Our office has not 

received a letter of credit yet therefore would like the approval of the 3-way agreement 

contingent on receiving the letter of credit. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Project Vicinity Map 

2. Resolution Approving Plans and Specifications and Authorizing  Execution of 3-way 

Agreement    

3. 3-way agreement 

    

FISCAL IMPACT:   The entire cost of the project is being paid by the developer as part of the 

3-way agreement.    

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

his review.   

 

RECOMMENDATION:  This office supports the authorization to move forward with this 

project. 

 

MEETING DATE: April 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: April 14, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Engineering & Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Consider resolution approving plans and 

specifications and authorizing the execution of a 3-

way agreement for water & sewer improvement 

Project 2016-02(Big Sky Additions - Jude Lane 

NW). 

 

  

New Business No. 3 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(Big Sky 

Additions - Jude Lane NW). 

Page 2 of 12 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the resolution approving the plans and 

specifications and authorizing execution of 3-way agreement for water and sewer improvement 

Project 2016-02 (Big Sky Additions - Jude Lane NW) contingent on receiving letter of credit. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(Big Sky 

Additions - Jude Lane NW). 

Page 3 of 12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(Big Sky 

Additions - Jude Lane NW). 

Page 4 of 12 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF 3-WAY AGREEMENT FOR WATER AND 

SEWER IMPROVEMENT PROJECT NO. 2016-10 

(Big Sky Additions – Jude Lane NW) 

 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota, as follows: 

 1. That the plans and specifications for the Water and Sewer Project No. 

2016-10 serving Big Sky Additions(Jude Lane NW) in the City of Mandan, as presented 

by Modern Machine Works - Kris Lengenfelder , on behalf of themselves, are hereby 

approved, ratified and confirmed as the plans and specifications for said project, in 

accordance with which said improvement project will be constructed, subject to any 

further modifications of the plans and specifications by the Board as provided by law.  

The plans and specifications shall be filed in the Office of the City Administrator and 

City Engineer and open for public inspection.  The named streets within the subdivision 

to receive the improvements are: Jude Lane NW. 

                        

 2. That the President of the Board is hereby authorized to enter into a 3-way 

agreement between the City of Mandan; the developer, Modern Machine Works - Kris 

Lengenfelder, and the developer's contractor, contingent upon the City's receipt of an 

irrevocable escrow account covering construction costs. 

 

 3. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage. 

 
           

      President, Board of City Commissioners 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

James Neubauer, City Administrator 

 

Date of Passage:   April 19, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(Big Sky 

Additions - Jude Lane NW). 

Page 5 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(Big Sky 

Additions - Jude Lane NW). 

Page 6 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(Big Sky 

Additions - Jude Lane NW). 

Page 7 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(Big Sky 

Additions - Jude Lane NW). 

Page 8 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(Big Sky 

Additions - Jude Lane NW). 

Page 9 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(Big Sky 

Additions - Jude Lane NW). 

Page 10 of 12 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(Big Sky 

Additions - Jude Lane NW). 

Page 11 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(Big Sky 

Additions - Jude Lane NW). 

Page 12 of 12 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

  

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider resolution approving plans and specifications and 

resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 206, Project No. 

2016-07 (Big Sky Additions). 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: On March 1, 2016 the Mandan City Commission approved 

the Resolution creating district, Resolution approving Engineer’s Report, Feasibility Report, and 

Resolution of Necessity.  On April 5
th
 the Mandan City Commission approve the Resolution 

determining insufficiency of protest.  We now are asking for approval of the plans and 

specifications and approval to advertise for bids for this project. 

   

Going forward, the intended project schedule is as follows: 

 Open Bids May 10, 2016 

 Award Bid May 17, 2016 

 Substantial Completion October 15, 2016 

 

ATTACHMENTS:     

1. District Map 

2. Resolution approving Plans and Specifications 

3. Resolution directing Advertisement for Bids 

    

FISCAL IMPACT:  The base construction cost of the project would be $936,800.12, 

engineering, administration, and contingency is estimated to add $327,880.04, bringing the total 

to $1,264,680.17 ($26,076 per unit). 

 

City staff’s duty is to recommend the allocation of special assessments to benefitting properties, 

at the conclusion of the project the Special Assessment Commission will meet to review and 

MEETING DATE: April 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: April 13, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider Resolution approving plans and 

specifications and Resolution directing 

advertisement for bids for Street Improvement 

District No. 206, Project No. 2016-07 (Big Sky 

Additions). 

 

  

New Business No. 4 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider Resolution approving plans and specifications and Resolution directing 

advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 206, Project No. 2016-07 (Big 

Sky Additions). 

Page 2 of 8 

 
approve how the cost of the project is being assessed and then the city commission will have the 

final review and approval of the allocation of the special assessments.  

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City   

   Attorney for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  We recommend approving the resolution approving plans and 

specifications and approving the resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street 

Improvement District 206, Project 2016-07(Big Sky Additions). 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the resolution approving plans and specifications 

and to approve the resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District 

No. 206, Project No. 2016-07 (Big Sky Additions) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider Resolution approving plans and specifications and Resolution directing 

advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 206, Project No. 2016-07 (Big 

Sky Additions). 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 
 
 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider Resolution approving plans and specifications and Resolution directing 

advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 206, Project No. 2016-07 (Big 

Sky Additions). 

Page 4 of 8 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 206 

PROJECT # 2016-07 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows:   

 Pursuant to the requirement of section 40-22-11 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, the Plans and Specifications for the improvement project in Street 

Improvement District No. 206 (Project # 2016-07) of said City be and the same 

are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed as the plans and specifications in 

accordance with which said improvement project will be constructed, except as 

modified by this Board in accordance with law, and the City Administrator shall 

file the same in his office, open for public inspection. 

 Dated this 19
th

 day of April, 2016. 

 
     ____________________________________ 
     President, Board of City Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
City Administrator 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider Resolution approving plans and specifications and Resolution directing 

advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 206, Project No. 2016-07 (Big 

Sky Additions). 

Page 5 of 8 

 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 

FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 206 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows: 

 1.  The City Administrator, Deputy Auditor and City Engineer shall meet at the 

time and place specified in the notice authorized in paragraph 2 hereof, for the 

purpose of opening sealed bids for the work and material needed for the 

improvement project to be made in Street Improvement District No. 206 (Project # 

2016-07) of the City of Mandan, as more fully described and referred to in the 

resolution creating said improvement district passed and approved by the Board on 

March 1, 2016 and in the plans and specifications for said improvement now on file 

in the office of the City Engineer. 

 

 2.  The City Administrator is authorized and directed to cause notice of 

advertisement for bids to be published once each week for two consecutive weeks in 

the Mandan News, the official newspaper, the first of such publications to be at least 

fourteen days before the date specified for receipt of bids, which notice shall be in 

the following form: 

  

                                               “ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS FOR 

                                  STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 206 

                                                MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 

 
 Notice is hereby given, that the City of Mandan, North Dakota will receive 

sealed bids at the office of the City Administrator until May 10,  2016 at 10:00 a.m., 
local time for the purpose of furnishing of materials, labor and skill needed for the 
new construction of storm sewer mains, asphalt streets, concrete curb and gutter 
and street lights and related work in accordance with the plans and specifications for 
Street Improvement District No. 206 (Project  # 2016-07),  for the City of Mandan.  
The Work consists of all labor, skill, and materials required to properly construct the 
improvement. 
 
 Contractors and vendors desiring plans and specifications for personal use 
may secure digital copies from www.questcdn.com for a fee of $25.00.  These 
documents may be downloaded by selecting this project from the “Bid Documents” 
tab and by entering Quest Project Number #4433664 on the “Search Projects” page.  

http://www.questcdn.com/


Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider Resolution approving plans and specifications and Resolution directing 

advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 206, Project No. 2016-07 (Big 

Sky Additions). 

Page 6 of 8 

 
For assistance and the free membership registration, contact QuestCDN at 
(952)233-1632 or info@questcdn.com.  Paper copies of the bid documents may be 
obtained from the City of Mandan Engineering office, 205 2

nd
 Avenue Northwest, 

Mandan, North Dakota 58554 upon non-refundable payment of $50.00 for each set. 
If Plans are mailed out and additional fee of $15.00 will be added for postage and 
handling. 
 
 The bid proposals must be submitted to the City Administrator by 10:00 a.m., 
local time, Tuesday, May 10

th
, 2016 and shall be sealed and endorsed “Proposal for 

Street Improvement District No 206.  Bids shall be delivered or mailed to: City 
Administrator, City of Mandan, 205 2

nd
 Avenue NW, Mandan, ND 58554.  Bids will 

be opened and read aloud in the City Commission Meeting Room at 10:00 a.m., 
local time, on May 10, 2016.  All bidders are invited to be present at the public 
opening of the Bids. 
 
 All Bidders must be licensed for the highest amount of their Bids, as provided 
by Section 43-07-05 of the North Dakota Century Code.  The Bidder shall include a 
copy of his license or certificate of renewal thereof enclosed in the required bid bond 
envelope as required pursuant to Section 43-07-12 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, as amended.  
  
 Each bid shall be accompanied by a separate envelope containing a bidder’s 
bond in the amount of five (5) percent of the highest amount of the bids as required 
by Section 48-01.2-05, North Dakota Century Code, as amended, and executed by 
the Bidder as principal and by a surety, conditioned that if the principal’s bid is 
accepted and the contract awarded to the principal, the principal, within ten days 
after Notice of Award, shall execute and effect a contract in accordance with the 
terms of the bid, and a Contractor’s Bond as required by law.  No bid may be read or 
considered if it does not fully comply with the requirements of Section 48-01.2-05 of 
the North Dakota Century Code and any deficient bid must be resealed and returned 
to the bidder immediately. 
 
 Bids shall be made on the basis on cash payment for the work to be done.  
All work under this advertisement shall be started on a date to be specified in a 
written order from the Board of City Commissioners, or no later than ten (10) days 
after written notice to proceed has been received from the City. 
 
 Work shall be completed on or before the following dates with liquidated 
damages assessed as follows: 
 
 All construction work on Project #2016-07 is to be completed no later than 
October 31, 2016 other than the chip seal which will have a completion date of 
August 15, 2017. 
 

mailto:info@questcdn.com


Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider Resolution approving plans and specifications and Resolution directing 

advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 206, Project No. 2016-07 (Big 

Sky Additions). 

Page 7 of 8 

 
 Liquidated damages of $500.00 per day will be assessed if any completion 
dates are exceeded. 
   
           Should the contractor fail to complete all of the work in a District according to 
the above date, or within such additional time as may have been granted by formal 
extensions of time approved by the City Engineer, there shall be deducted from any 
money due the contractor, the above mentioned sum for each calendar day the 
completion of the Work is delayed, for each District. Liquidated damages will 
continue to accumulate until the City Engineer determines winter weather prevents 
further construction.  Liquidated damages will restart on the first day of construction 
in the Spring of 2017 and continue to accumulate until final project acceptance.  The 
Contractor and his surety shall be liable for any excess.  Such payments shall be 
deducted from the final payment and shall be charged as liquidated damages and 
not as a penalty. 
 
 The Board of City Commissioners will meet on Tuesday, May 17

th
, 2016, at  

5:30 PM, local time, to review the Bids submitted, consider the engineer’s 
recommendation, and to award the contract to the successful Bidder.  The contract 
will be awarded on the basis of the low Bid submitted, on eligible areas, by a 
responsible and responsive Bidder deemed most favorable to the City’s interest. 
 
 The City of Mandan reserves the right reject any or all bids, to waive any 
informality or irregularity, to hold all bids for a period of thirty (30) days after the date 
fixed for the opening thereof, and to accept the Bid deemed most favorable to the 
best interest of the City of Mandan. 
 
  Dated this 19

th
 day of April, 2016 

       City of Mandan, North Dakota 
       BY: /s/ James Neubauer               
                                                                           City Administrator” 
 
 
 
 3.  Each and all of the terms and provisions of the foregoing notice are hereby 

adopted as the terms and conditions for the award of said contract. 

 

 4.  The Board of City Commissioners shall meet on Tuesday, May 17
th
, 2016 

at 5:30 pm, local time, to review the bids submitted, consider the engineer’s 

recommendation, and to award the contract to the successful bidder, subject to the 

Board finding that filed protests are insufficient to bar the work. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider Resolution approving plans and specifications and Resolution directing 

advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 206, Project No. 2016-07 (Big 

Sky Additions). 

Page 8 of 8 

 
     _________________________________  
                 President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________                             
City Administrator 
 
Passed: April 19

th
, 2016 

 



  

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To authorize the installation of water and sewer for the 

development of the subject area. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The West Hills 4th Addition plat is located north of Old 

Red Trail NW and west of 40
th
 Avenue NW.  The proposed utilities only serve the developer of 

the benefiting land; therefore, this is being paid for by the developer under a 3-way agreement.  

Our office has not received a letter of credit yet therefore we are asking that the approval be 

contingent on receiving that letter of credit.   

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Project Vicinity Map 

2. Resolution Approving Plans and Specifications and Authorizing  Execution of 3-way 

Agreement    

3. 3-way agreement 

    

FISCAL IMPACT:   The entire cost of the project is being paid by the developer as part of the 

3-way agreement.    

 

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for 

his review.   

 

RECOMMENDATION:  This office supports the authorization to move forward with this 

project. 

 

MEETING DATE: April 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: April 13, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Engineering & Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Consider resolution approving plans and 

specifications and authorizing the execution of a 3-

way agreement for water & sewer improvement 

Project 2016-02(West Hills 4
th

 Addition). 

 

  

New Business No. 5 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(West 

Hills 4th Addition). 

Page 2 of 12 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the resolution approving the plans and 

specifications and authorizing execution of 3-way agreement for water and sewer improvement 

Project 2016-02 (West Hills 4th Addition) contingent on receiving the letter of credit. 

 

 

  

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(West 

Hills 4th Addition). 

Page 3 of 12 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(West 

Hills 4th Addition). 

Page 4 of 12 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF 3-WAY AGREEMENT FOR WATER AND 

SEWER IMPROVEMENT PROJECT NO. 2016-02 

(West Hills Estates 4
th

 Addition) 

 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota, as follows: 

 1. That the plans and specifications for the Water and Sewer Project No. 

2016-02 serving West Hills Estates 4
th

 Addition in the City of Mandan, as presented by 

Nathan Lamoureux, on behalf of themselves, are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed 

as the plans and specifications for said project, in accordance with which said 

improvement project will be constructed, subject to any further modifications of the plans 

and specifications by the Board as provided by law.  The plans and specifications shall be 

filed in the Office of the City Administrator and City Engineer and open for public 

inspection.  The named streets within the subdivision to receive the improvements are: 

Nova Avenue NW and Crown point Road NW.                        

 2. That the President of the Board is hereby authorized to enter into a 3-way 

agreement between the City of Mandan; the developer, Nathan Lamoureux, and the 

developer's contractor, contingent upon the City's receipt of an irrevocable escrow 

account covering construction costs. 

 

 3. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from the date of its passage. 

 
           

      President, Board of City Commissioners 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

James Neubauer, City Administrator 

 

Date of Passage:   April 19, 2016 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(West 

Hills 4th Addition). 

Page 5 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(West 

Hills 4th Addition). 

Page 6 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(West 

Hills 4th Addition). 

Page 7 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(West 

Hills 4th Addition). 

Page 8 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(West 

Hills 4th Addition). 

Page 9 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(West 

Hills 4th Addition). 

Page 10 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(West 

Hills 4th Addition). 

Page 11 of 12 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider resolution approving plans and specifications and authorizing the 

execution of a 3-way agreement for water & sewer improvement Project 2016-02(West 

Hills 4th Addition). 

Page 12 of 12 

 

 



 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

  

 

 
STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To create and allow the assessments of specials related to, authorize 

the required paperwork for the requested project, and allow for the project to be bid. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The developer is requesting that the City allow the special 

assessment of street costs to the benefitting properties for the development of West Hills Estates 

4
th
 Addition.  

 

ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Resolution creating district 

2. District Map 

3. Engineer’s Estimate 

4. Resolution Approving Engineer’s Report 

5. Resolution of plans and specs 

6. Petition 

7. Resolution determining sufficiency of petition 

8. Feasibility Report 

9. Resolution Directing Advertisement for Bids 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Based on the estimate of cost included with your documentation, the cost 

of the project would be $415,868.40, engineering and administration will add $145,556.94, 

bringing the total to $561,422.34. These items would be entirely special assessed to the 

MEETING DATE: April 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: April, 14, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Planning 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth 

PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning & Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: Consider approving the Resolution creating 

district, approving Resolution approving 

Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution 

approving Plans and Specifications, approving 

Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, 

approving feasibility report and Resolution 

directing advertisement for bids for Street 

Improvement District No. 203, Project No. 2016-

03 (West Hills Estates 4
th

 Addition). 

 

  

New Business No. 6 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution approving Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 203, 

Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition). 

Page 2 of 16 

 
benefitting properties.  There are 19 lots within this special assessment district which would be 

approximately $29,548.54 per lot in specials. 

    

STAFF IMPACT:   Minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:   All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City   

   Attorney for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  This office supports moving forward with the project. 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  I move to approve the Resolution creating district, approve 

Resolution approving Engineer’s Report, approve Resolution of Plans and Specifications, 

approve Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approve feasibility report and 

approve Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 

203, Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 4
th

 Addition). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution approving Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 203, 

Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition). 

Page 3 of 16 

 

 

RESOLUTION CREATING 

STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 203 

Project No. 2016-03 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota, as follows: 

 

 1.  There is hereby created Street Improvement District No. 203 (the 

“District”)(Project# 2016-03) of the City of Mandan for the purpose of making an 

improvement project of the type specified in Section 40-22-01(2), N.D.C.C., to improve 

those parts of the municipal street system listed below.  The improvement to said streets 

within this improvement district shall include, but not be limited to, Nova Avenue NW 

and Crown Point Road NW, and includes street construction, installation of curb and 

gutter, asphalt street, storm sewer, street lights, chip seal and related work.   

 

 2.  Consultation with respect thereto having been had with the City Engineer, as to 

the property to be benefitted by said improvement project and the most practical size, 

form and location of said District, said District shall include all the lots, tracts and parcels 

of land lying within the City of Mandan and its additions within the following boundary 

lines: namely:   

 

The following lots and blocks are included in said District: 

 

Lots 1-6 Block 2, West Hills Estates 4
th

 Addition 

Lots 1-8 Block 1, Replat of Blocks 1 and 3, West Hills Estates 4
th

 Addition 

Lots 1-5 Block 3, Replat of Blocks 1 and 3, West Hills Estates 4
th

 Addition 

 

 A tract of land being all of West Hills Estates 4
th

 Addition and the Replat of 

Blocks 1 and 3 of West Hills Estates 4
th

 Addition of the City of Mandan, North Dakota. 

 

           3.  Pursuant to section 40-22-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, the City 

Engineer is hereby authorized and directed to prepare a report as to the general nature, 

purpose and feasibility of the proposed improvement and an estimate of the probable cost 

of the improvement. 

 

 4.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 
 

                                                            

                   President, Board of City Commissioners 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution approving Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 203, 

Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition). 

Page 4 of 16 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________ 

City Administrator 

 

Date of Passage:   April 19, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution approving Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 203, 

Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition). 

Page 5 of 16 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution approving Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 203, 

Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition). 

Page 6 of 16 

 

 
 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution approving Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 203, 

Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition). 

Page 7 of 16 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ENGINEER'S REPORT AND 

AUTHORIZING PREPARATION OF THE DETAILED PLANS 

AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 

IMPROVEMENT IN STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 203 

 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, 

North Dakota, as follows: 

1. That the report of the City Engineer with respect to the general nature, purpose, 

and feasibility of the proposed improvement and the estimate of the probable cost of the 

work to be done in Street Improvement District No. 203 (Project  # 2016-03), as required 

by section 40-22-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, and hereto filed in the office of 

the City Administrator, is hereby accepted and approved and the proposed improvement 

project within said District is hereby determined and declared to be feasible.  

 

2. The probable costs of the of the improvement project are estimated to be as 

follows: 

 a. Construction costs:              $415,868.40  

 b. Other costs including necessary and reasonable 

change orders; engineering, fiscal agents’ and 

attorneys’ fees; cost of publication of legal notices; 

printing of warrant bonds; and all expenses incurred 

in the making of the improvement and levy of 

assessments therefor:    

 

 

 

 

$145,553.94 

         c. Total estimated costs of the improvement:              $561,422.34 

 

3. The Engineer is hereby authorized and directed to prepare detailed plans and 

specifications for the project to be constructed. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution approving Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 203, 

Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition). 

Page 8 of 16 

 

 

4. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage. 

 Dated this 19
th

 day of April, 2016. 

     

     ________________________________                                                                          

     President, Board of City Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

 _______________                                                    

City Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution approving Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 203, 

Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition). 

Page 9 of 16 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 203 

PROJECT # 2016-03 
 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows:   

 Pursuant to the requirement of section 40-22-11 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, the Plans and Specifications for the improvement project in Street 

Improvement District No. 203 (Project # 2016-03) of said City be and the same 

are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed as the plans and specifications in 

accordance with which said improvement project will be constructed, except as 

modified by this Board in accordance with law, and the City Administrator shall 

file the same in his office, open for public inspection. 

 Dated this 19
th 

day of April, 2016. 

 
     ____________________________________ 
     President, Board of City Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
City Administrator 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution approving Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 203, 

Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition). 

Page 10 of 16 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution approving Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 203, 

Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition). 

Page 11 of 16 

 
RESOLUTION DETERMINING SUFFICIENCY OF FORMS OF PETITION, WAIVER 

AND CONSENT TO ASSESSMENT FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT  

DISTRICT NO. 203 

 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of City Commissioners of Mandan, North Dakota: 

 

 1. The City having received and filed executed written forms of Petition, Waiver 

and Consent to Assessment executed by Nathan Lamoureux, the owners of a majority of property 

area, for the improvement in and for Street Improvement District No. 203, Project  No. 2016-

03("the District"), and true and correct copies of said executed forms being attached hereto, it is 

hereby determined that said forms are signed by the owners of a majority of the area of property 

included within the District. 

 

 2. This Board is authorized to cause the improvement in and for the District to be 

made, and to levy and collect assessments therefore. 

 

 Dated this 19
th
 day of April, 2016 

       

                                                                                     

      President, Board of City Commissioners 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

City Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution approving Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 203, 

Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition). 

Page 12 of 16 

 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution approving Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 203, 

Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition). 

Page 13 of 16 

 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 

FOR STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 203 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, North Dakota, as follows: 

 1.  The City Administrator, Deputy Auditor and City Engineer shall meet at the 

time and place specified in the notice authorized in paragraph 2 hereof, for the 

purpose of opening sealed bids for the work and material needed for the 

improvement project to be made in Street Improvement District No. 203 (Project # 

2016-03) of the City of Mandan, as more fully described and referred to in the 

resolution creating said improvement district passed and approved by the Board on 

April 19, 2016 and in the plans and specifications for said improvement now on file in 

the office of the City Engineer. 

 

 2.  The City Administrator is authorized and directed to cause notice of 

advertisement for bids to be published once each week for two consecutive weeks in 

the Mandan News, the official newspaper, the first of such publications to be at least 

fourteen days before the date specified for receipt of bids, which notice shall be in 

the following form: 

  

                                               “ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS FOR 

                                  STREET IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 203 

                                                MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 

 
 Notice is hereby given, that the City of Mandan, North Dakota will receive 

sealed bids at the office of the City Administrator until May 10,  2016 at 10:30 a.m., 
local time for the purpose of furnishing of materials, labor and skill needed for the 
new construction of storm sewer mains, asphalt streets, concrete curb and gutter 
and street lights and related work in accordance with the plans and specifications for 
Street Improvement District No. 203 (Project  # 2016-03),  for the City of Mandan.  
The Work consists of all labor, skill, and materials required to properly construct the 
improvement. 
 
 Contractors and vendors desiring plans and specifications for personal use 
may secure digital copies from www.questcdn.com for a fee of $25.00.  These 

http://www.questcdn.com/


Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution approving Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 203, 

Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition). 

Page 14 of 16 

 
documents may be downloaded by selecting this project from the “Bid Documents” 
tab and by entering Quest Project Number #4433736 on the “Search Projects” page.  
For assistance and the free membership registration, contact QuestCDN at 
(952)233-1632 or info@questcdn.com.  Paper copies of the bid documents may be 
obtained from the City of Mandan Engineering office, 205 2

nd
 Avenue Northwest, 

Mandan, North Dakota 58554 upon non-refundable payment of $50.00 for each set. 
If Plans are mailed out and additional fee of $15.00 will be added for postage and 
handling. 
 
 The bid proposals must be submitted to the City Administrator by 10:30 a.m., 
local time, Tuesday, May 10

th
, 2016 and shall be sealed and endorsed “Proposal for 

Street Improvement District No 203.  Bids shall be delivered or mailed to: City 
Administrator, City of Mandan, 205 2

nd
 Avenue NW, Mandan, ND 58554.  Bids will 

be opened and read aloud in the City Commission Meeting Room at 10:30 a.m., 
local time, on May 10, 2016.  All bidders are invited to be present at the public 
opening of the Bids. 
 
 All Bidders must be licensed for the highest amount of their Bids, as provided 
by Section 43-07-05 of the North Dakota Century Code.  The Bidder shall include a 
copy of his license or certificate of renewal thereof enclosed in the required bid bond 
envelope as required pursuant to Section 43-07-12 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, as amended.  
  
 Each bid shall be accompanied by a separate envelope containing a bidder’s 
bond in the amount of five (5) percent of the highest amount of the bids as required 
by Section 48-01.2-05, North Dakota Century Code, as amended, and executed by 
the Bidder as principal and by a surety, conditioned that if the principal’s bid is 
accepted and the contract awarded to the principal, the principal, within ten days 
after Notice of Award, shall execute and effect a contract in accordance with the 
terms of the bid, and a Contractor’s Bond as required by law.  No bid may be read or 
considered if it does not fully comply with the requirements of Section 48-01.2-05 of 
the North Dakota Century Code and any deficient bid must be resealed and returned 
to the bidder immediately. 
 
 Bids shall be made on the basis on cash payment for the work to be done.  
All work under this advertisement shall be started on a date to be specified in a 
written order from the Board of City Commissioners, or no later than ten (10) days 
after written notice to proceed has been received from the City. 
 
 Work shall be completed on or before the following dates with liquidated 
damages assessed as follows: 
 

mailto:info@questcdn.com


Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution approving Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 203, 

Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition). 

Page 15 of 16 

 
 All construction work on Project #2016-03 is to be completed no later than 
September 30, 2016 other than the chip seal which will have a completion date of 
August 15, 2017. 
 
 Liquidated damages of $500.00 per day will be assessed if any completion 
dates are exceeded. 
   
           Should the contractor fail to complete all of the work in a District according to 
the above date, or within such additional time as may have been granted by formal 
extensions of time approved by the City Engineer, there shall be deducted from any 
money due the contractor, the above mentioned sum for each calendar day the 
completion of the Work is delayed, for each District. Liquidated damages will 
continue to accumulate until the City Engineer determines winter weather prevents 
further construction.  Liquidated damages will restart on the first day of construction 
in the Spring of 2017 and continue to accumulate until final project acceptance.  The 
Contractor and his surety shall be liable for any excess.  Such payments shall be 
deducted from the final payment and shall be charged as liquidated damages and 
not as a penalty. 
 
 The Board of City Commissioners will meet on Tuesday, May 17

th
, 2016, at  

5:30 PM, local time, to review the Bids submitted, consider the engineer’s 
recommendation, and to award the contract to the successful Bidder.  The contract 
will be awarded on the basis of the low Bid submitted, on eligible areas, by a 
responsible and responsive Bidder deemed most favorable to the City’s interest. 
 
 The City of Mandan reserves the right reject any or all bids, to waive any 
informality or irregularity, to hold all bids for a period of thirty (30) days after the date 
fixed for the opening thereof, and to accept the Bid deemed most favorable to the 
best interest of the City of Mandan. 
 
  Dated this 19

th
 day of April, 2016 

       City of Mandan, North Dakota 
       BY: James Neubauer               
                                                                           City Administrator” 
 
 
 
 3.  Each and all of the terms and provisions of the foregoing notice are hereby 

adopted as the terms and conditions for the award of said contract. 

 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

Meeting Date: April 19, 2016 

Subject: Consider approving the Resolution creating district, approving Resolution 

approving Engineer’s Report, approving Resolution approving Plans and Specifications, 

approving Resolution determining sufficiency of petition, approving feasibility report and 

Resolution directing advertisement for bids for Street Improvement District No. 203, 

Project No. 2016-03 (West Hills Estates 3rd Addition). 

Page 16 of 16 

 
 4.  The Board of City Commissioners shall meet on Tuesday, May 17

th
, 2016 

at 5:30 pm, local time, to review the bids submitted, consider the engineer’s 

recommendation, and to award the contract to the successful bidder, subject to the 

Board finding that filed protests are insufficient to bar the work. 

 

     _________________________________  
                 President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________                             
City Administrator 
 
Passed: April 19

th
, 2016 

 



New Business No.7
Revised 4-19-16

AMENDMENT TO
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT dated the __ day of
=--:-::c-:-c-:-' 2016, entered into between the City of Mandan, North Dakota (the "City") and the
Park District of the City of Mandan, North Dakota (the "Park District").

WHEREAS, The parties hereto entered into a Joint Powers Agreement relating to the
levy, collection and disbursement of a three-fourths of one percent (0.75%) city sales tax by the
Park District for a recreational facility described in said Joint Powers Agreement; and

WHEREAS, The City intends to issue revenue bonds to provide for the construction of
said recreational facility and appurtenances. Said revenue bonds will be paid from the proceeds
of the three-fourths ofone percent (0.75%) sales tax; and

WHEREAS, The parties by this agreement intend to amend the Joint Powers Agreement
to provide a contingency for payment of said revenue bonds in the event that the said sales tax
collections are insufficient to pay the revenue bond payments as and when they become due.

NOW, THEREFORE, The parties agree as follows:

In the event that the collections from the three-fourths of one percent (0.75%) sales tax
are, at any time during the term of the revenue bonds, insufficient to pay as and when due
payments on said revenue bonds, the Park District acknowledges that it will be responsible for
the funds required to pay any deficiency and that the following sources shall be used to make up
any deficiency. The Park District shall have the option to request refinance of the revenue bonds,
if feasible and appropriate. If the revenue bonds cannot be refinanced, the Park District shall
make up any deficiency from any and all sources available to it, including, but not limited to, the
following:

(a) Any surplus sales tax collected funds;
(b) Subject to appropriation, the Park District covenants and agrees to include as

required in the Park District's budget such additional amounts as are necessary to
pay principal and interest on the bonds to the extent not paid from the sales tax.
Such appropriation may be from any legally available source, including, but not
limited to, state aid distributions, general fund tax levy, and facility revenues; and

(c) The sales tax bond reserve fund.

CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA

President, Board ofCity Commissioners

PARK DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF
MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA

President, Board of Park Commissioners

Attest:

City Administrator

Attest:

Clerk



~
CITY OJ'

MANOAN
"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS"

New Business No.7

Board of City Commissioners

Agenda Documentation

MEETING DATE:
PREPARATION DATE:
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT:
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR:
PRESENTER:
SUBJECT:

April 19, 2016
April 15, 2016
Administration
Jim Neubauer, City Administrator
Jim Neubauer, City Administrator
Amendment to Joint Powers Agreement, City &
Park District

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To consider proposed amendments to the Joint Powers
Agreement (JPA) between the City of Mandan and the Mandan Park District.

BACKGROUNDIALTERNATIVES: Amendment to the JPA are being suggested in
order to outline what would occur in the event that collections from the .75% sales tax
are, at any time during the term of the revenue bonds insufficient to pay as when due. The
Park District acknowledges that it would be responsible for the funds required to pay any
deficiency in the following order.

(a) Any surplus sales tax collected funds;
(b) Subject to appropriation, the Park District covenants and agrees to include as

required in the Par Districts budget such additional amounts as are necessary to
pay principal and interest on the bonds to the extent not paid form the sales tax.
Such appropriation may be from any legally available source, including, but not
limited to, state aid distributions, general fund tax levy, and facility revenues, and;

(c) The sales tax bond reserve fund.

Financial Underwriter Mike Manstrom and Bond Counsel Scott Wegner have indicated
this will strengthen the rating of the bonds and potentially provide a more favorable
interest rate.

An update from Monday, April 11, Park Board Meeting:

Attorney Ruffinformed the Park Board ofCommissioners that they do not need to
address or vote on the proposed amendment submitted by the City. I (Cole) explained
that the current Joint Powers Agreement doesn't specifically state that the Mandan Park
District is responsible for any shortfall ofsales tax funds (even though we assumed it was
intended too). The Park Board ofCommissioner agreed that the City ofMandan should



Board of City Commissioners
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: April 19, 2016
Subject: Amendment to Joint Powers Agreement, City & Park District
Page 2 of2

not have any financial liability for the Sports Complex bond due to insufficient sales tax
funds.

The Park Board ofCommissioners made a motion to direct Attorney Ruffto develop a
memorandum ofunderstanding to clearly state that the Mandan Park District is
responsiblefor insufficient sales tax funds required tofu!jil! the principal and interest
bond payment for the Starion Sports Complex. In addition, the Park Board of
Commissioners added that the first option would be to refinance the bond if there are
insufficient funds.

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed amendments to the JPA

FISCAL IMPACT: nla

STAFF IMPACT: nla

LEGAL REVIEW: City Attorney Brown, and Scott Wegner, along with Commissioner
Tibke, Finanee Direetor Welch and Administrator Neubauer have reviewed the proposed
language.

RECOMMENDATION: I reeommend approval of the amendment to the JPA as
proposed.

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the JPA as amended.



AMENDMENT TO
JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT

TI-IIS AMENDMENT TO JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT dated the __ day of
,,-_--,----,-_' 20 I6, entered into between the City of Mandan, North Dakota (the "City") and the
Park District of the City of Mandan, North Dakota (the "Park District").

WlIEREAS, The parties hereto entered into a Joint Powers Agreement relating to the
levy, collection and disbursement of a three-fourths of one percent (0.75%) city sales tax by the
Park District for a recreational facility described in said Joint Powers Agreement; and

WHEREAS, The City intends to issue revenue bonds to provide for the construction of
said recreational facility and appurtenances. Said revenue bonds will be paid from the proceeds
of the three-fourths of one percent (0.75%) sales tax; and

WHEREAS, The parties by this agreement intend to amend the Joint Powers Agreement
to provide a contingency for payment of said revenue bonds in the event that the said sales tax
collections are insufficient to pay the revenue bond payments as and when they become due.

NOW, THEREFORE, The parties agree as follows:

In the event that the collections from the three-fourths of one percent (0.75%) sales tax
are, at any time during the term of the revenue bonds, insufficient to pay as and when due
payments on said revenue bonds, the Park District acknowledges that it will be responsible for
the funds required to pay any deficiency and that the following sources shall be used to make up
any deficiency in the following order:

(a) Any surplus sales tax collected funds;
(b) Subject to appropriation, the Park District covenants and agrees to include as

required in the Park District's budget such additional amounts as are necessary to
pay principal and interest on the bonds to the extent not paid from the sales tax.
Such appropriation may be from any legally available source, including, but not
limited to, state aid distributions, general fund tax levy, and facility revenues; and

(c) The sales tax bond reserve fund.

CITY OF MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA

President, Board of City Commissioners

PARK DISTRICT OF THE CITY OF
MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA

President, Board of Park Commissioners

Attest:

City Administrator

Attest:

Clerk



 

 

  Page 1 

Board of City Commissioners 
 

Agenda Documentation 
 

 

 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider amendments to the Mandan Code of Ordinances related to the 

Emerald Ash Borer and Dutch Elm Disease. 

 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The Emerald Ash Borer is a destructive insect that is migrating 

across the county.  It has been found in nearby states.  The Emerald Ash Borer attacks and eventually 

causes the death of ash trees. 

 

These proposed changes to the municipal code identify the insect as a public nuisance and give the City 

Arborist authority to deal with any infestation that is discovered.  Planting or selling ash cultivars 

susceptible to the Emerald Ash Borer was listed as a violation.  A list of susceptible ash cultivars will be 

provided on the city web site if this ordinance is approved. 

 

Edits were also made to the language related to Dutch Elm disease.  These edits included minor word 

revisions and listing the planting or selling of an American Elm or Siberian Elm as a violation. 

 

Violations of this article are infractions with a maximum penalty of $1,000. 

 

The loss of trees due to Dutch Elm Disease has been an issue of concern to the Community Beautification 

Committee.  The committee has encouraged a proactive approach to preventing the disease and is 

supporting efforts to provide funding for replacement of trees removed in boulevards due to Dutch Elm 

Disease. 

Kaiden Straabe, City Arborist, attended a Community Beautification Committee meeting and briefed the 

committee members on the issue with the Emerald Ash Borer.  The committee voted at its Feb. 11, 2016, 

meeting to recommend to the City Commission approval of the proposed ordinance that adds language 

that addresses the Emerald Ash Borer. 

The draft ordinance was circulated to all department heads and other senior staff utilizing EchoSign, a 

software program used to document submittal and response.  Some suggestions were made for edits.  

Those edits were incorporated and the draft circulated a second time.  The final wording reflects all 

comments received. 

MEETING DATE: April 19, 2016 

PREPARATION DATE: April 15, 2016 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Jeff Wright, Director 

PRESENTER: Jeff Wright & Kaiden Straabe, City Arborist 

SUBJECT: First consideration of Ordinance No. 1237 amending and reenacting 

Chapter 16, Article 4 of the Mandan Municipal Code related to the 

Emerald Ash Borer and Dutch Elm Disease.  

 

  

Resolutions & Ordinances No. 1 



 

 

  Page 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Ordinance 

FISCAL IMPACT:  minimal 

 

STAFF IMPACT:  minimal 

 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All of my commission data has been forwarded to the City Attorney for his review. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends adoption of this ordinance. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION:  Move to approve the first consideration of Ordinance No. 1237 amending and 

reenacting Chapter 16, Article 4 of the Mandan Municipal Code related to the Emerald Ash Borer and 

Dutch Elm Disease. 

 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 1237 

 

An Ordinance to Amend and Reenact Chapter 16, Article 4 of the 

Mandan Municipal Code related to the Emerald Ash Borer and Dutch 

Elm Disease 

 

WHEREAS, The Emerald Ash Borer is a destructive insect that is migrating across the country 

and has been found in neighboring states, and 

 

WHEREAS, It is necessary to add language to the municipal code authorizing the City Arborist 

to take action if an infestation of this pest is found in the city, and 

  

WHEREAS, Some adjustments are needed to the language related to Dutch Elm Disease. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 

Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Chapter 16, Article 4 is amended to read. 

 

ARTICLE 4. - DUTCH ELM DISEASE AND EMERALD ASH BORER 

Sec. 16-4-1. - Declaration of public nuisance.  

(a) Whereas, tThe board of city commissioners has determined that there are many elm trees growing 
on public and private premises within the city, the loss of which would substantially depreciate the 
value of public and private property, impair the use and enjoyment of public premises and erode the 
tax base of the city. and that tThe health and life of such trees is threatened by the fatal disease 
known as Dutch elm disease, which is spread by the elm bark beetles Scolytus multisriatus (Eichb.) 
or Hylurgopinus rufipes (marsh.)., tThe commission board declares its intention to control and 
prevent the spread of such disease and the insect pests and vectors which carry such disease.  The 
board and declares Dutch elm disease and the elm bark beetles which carry such disease to be 
public nuisances. 

(b) The Emerald Ash Borer is an insect that attacks and eventually causes the death of ash trees.   The 
board declares the Emerald Ash Borer to be a public nuisance. 

Sec. 16-4-2. - Inspection.  



 

 

  Page 3 

(a) The city foresterarborist shall inspect or cause to be inspected all premises and places within the city 
to determine whether any public nuisance exists thereon. 

(b) The city arborist He shall also inspect or cause the inspection of any elm tree reported or suspected 
to be infected with Dutch elm disease or any elm bark bearing material reported or suspected to be 
infested with elm bark beetles. 

(c) The city arborist shall inspect or cause the inspection of any ash tree reported or suspected to be 
infected with Emerald Ash Borers. 

Sec. 16-4-3. - Right of entry.  

The city foresterarborist and his agents or employees shall have authority, with a warrant or the 
consent of the owner, to enter upon private premises at reasonable times for the purpose of carrying out 
any of the provisions of this article.  

Sec. 16-4-4. - Authority of city foresterarborist.  

(a) The city foresterarborist shall order, direct, supervise and control the abatement of public nuisances 
by spraying, removal, burning or by other means. 

(b) The city arborist shall take such action which he determines to be necessary to prevent as fully as 
possible the spread of Dutch elm disease fungus or the insect pests or vectors known to carry such 
disease fungus. 

(c) The city arborist shall take such action necessary to eradicate any infestation of Emerald Ash Borer.  

Sec. 16-4-5. - Abatement of nuisances on public property.  

Whenever the city foresterarborist shall, after inspection or examination, determine that a public 
nuisance exists on public property in this the city, he shall immediately abate or cause the abatement of 
such nuisance in such manner as to destroy or prevent as fully as possible the spread of Dutch elm 
disease or the insect pests or vectors known to carry such disease fungus.  

Sec. 16-4-6. - Nuisance on private property; notice to owner.  

When the city foresterarborist shall determine with reasonable certainty that a public nuisance exists 
upon private premises or upon the strip between the lot line and the curb, he shall immediately serve or 
cause to be served personally or by first class mail upon the owner of such property or the abutting 
property, if the property owner can be found, and upon the occupant thereof, a written notice of the 
existence of such nuisance. Such notice shall describe the nuisance and recommended procedures for its 
abatement, and shall further state that unless the owner shall abate the nuisance in the manner specified 
in the notice, or shall request a hearing within fourteen days of receipt of the notice to show that such 
nuisance does not exist, or does not endanger the health of the elm trees in the city, the city 
foresterarborist shall cause the abatement thereof at the expense of the property served or abutting 
property. If the owner cannot be found, such notice shall be given by publication in the official newspaper 
of the city.  

Sec. 16-4-7. - Abatement of nuisances on private property.  

If, after a hearing held pursuant to section 16-4-6, it is determined by the city foresterarborist that a 
public nuisance exists, or if no hearing is requested, the city foresterarborist shall forthwith order the 
immediate abatement thereof. Unless the property owner abates the nuisance as directed within 24 hours 
after such hearing, the city foresterarborist shall proceed to abate the nuisance and cause the cost 
thereof to be assessed against the property in accordance with the procedures provided in this article. 
The city foresterarborist may extend the time allowed the property owner for abatement work but not to 
exceed ten additional days.  

Sec. 16-4-8. - Prohibited acts and penalties.  

Any person who shall do any of the following acts within the city commits an infraction:  



 

 

  Page 4 

(1) Transports any bark-bearing elm wood, bark or material on public streets, highways or other 
public premises without first securing the written permission of the city foresterarborist;  

(2) Interferes with or prevents any acts of the city foresterarborist or his agents or employees while 
they are engaged in the performance of duties imposed by this article;  

(3) Refuses to permit the city foresterarborist or his duly authorized representative to enter upon his 
premises at reasonable times to exercise the duties imposed by this article;  

(4) Permits any public nuisance to remain on any premises owned or controlled by him when 
ordered by the city foresterarborist to abate such nuisance. 

(5) Plants on public or private property an American Elm or Siberian Elm. 

(6) Sells for planting within the city an American Elm or Siberian Elm. 

(6) Plants on public or private property ash cultivars that are susceptible to the Emerald Ash Borer. 

(7) Sells for planting within the city ash cultivars that are susceptible to the Emerald Ash Borer. 

Section 2.  Chapter 16, Article 4 is reenacted as amended. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

President, Board of City Commissioners  

Attest: 

 

 

________________________ 

City Administrator 

 

First Consideration:       April 19, 2016 

Second Consideration and Final Passage:    ______________ 

Publication Date:       ______________ 

 



Resolutions and Ordinances No. 2 

Recommended action: 

Move to approve the first consideration of Ordinance No. 1238 creating PUD District 2016-01 

for Lakewood 8th Addition First Replat. 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1238 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 21-03-02 OF 

THE MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT 

BOUNDARIES AND ZONING MAP 

 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 

amended to read as follows:  

 

Lakewood 8
th

 Addition First Replat located within the City of Mandan, Morton County, 

North Dakota shall be excluded from the R3.2 Residential District and shall be included in PUD 

District 2016-01 with the following conditions and restrictions. 

a. All lots shall conform to the requirements of an R3.2 district unless modified herein. 

b. Lots 1 through 8 and 17 through 26 shall be developed with one half of a twin home and 

lots 9 through 16 shall be developed with single family dwellings. 

c. The minimum lot size shall be 4,000 square feet. 

d. The minimum lot width at the front building line shall be 30 feet. 

e. The minimum side yard setback for a primary structure shall be 20% of the average lot 

width for the combination of the two side yards for single family lots and 10% of the 

average lot width for the one side yard for twin home lots. 

f. The minimum side yard setback for a primary structure shall be 5 feet. 

g. The minimum front yard setback for a garage door facing the street shall be 25 feet.  

Other portions of the structure may be developed within 20 feet of the front property line, 

including any 2
nd

 floor overhang. 

h. The minimum rear yard setback for a primary structure shall be 20 feet. 

i. The maximum building footprint for all structures on lots 1-6 shall be 50% of the lot area. 

j. The maximum building footprint for all structures on lots 7-8 shall be 45% of the lot area. 

k. The maximum building footprint for all structures on lots 9-16 shall be 35% of the lot 

area. 

l. The maximum building footprint for all structures on lots 17-26 shall be 40% of the lot 

area. 

m. The floor area ratio (FAR) for all structures on a lot shall be 0.8. 

n. The property owner shall be responsible to install a sidewalk in the boulevard along the 

property line prior to occupying the dwelling or within the next construction season after 

occupancy if this delay is approved by the city. 

o. The property owner shall be responsible to install landscaping within the next growing 

season after occupancy. 



Resolutions and Ordinances No. 2 

p. The width of the driveway apron shall be limited to the width of the garage or 36 feet 

whichever is less. 

 

SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 

hereby re-enacted as amended.  The city principal planner is authorized and directed to make the 

necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance with this section.   

 

           

President, Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

 

                                             

City Administrator 

 

Public Hearing:    _______________ 

First Consideration:    _______________  

Second Consideration and Final Passage:   _______________ 

 

 

 



Resolutions and Ordinances No. 3 

Recommended action: 

Move to approve the first consideration of Ordinance No. 1239 creating PUD District 2016-02 

for Ash Grove Estates Addition. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1239 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT SECTION 21-03-02 OF 

THE MANDAN CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DISTRICT 

BOUNDARIES AND ZONING MAP 

 

BE IT ORDAINED By the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, Morton 

County, North Dakota, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 

amended to read as follows:  

 

Ash Grove Estates Addition located within the City of Mandan, Morton County, North 

Dakota shall be excluded from the R7 Residential District and shall be included in PUD District 

2016-02 with the following conditions and restrictions. 

a. All lots shall conform to the requirements of an R3.2 district unless modified herein. 

b. Lots 1A through 15A and 16 through 20, Block 1 and Lots 1 through 9 and 11 through 

22, Block 2 shall be developed with single family dwellings and lots 21 through 34, 

Block 1 shall be developed with one half of a twin home. 

c. The minimum lot size for the twin home lots shall be 3,000 square feet. 

d. The minimum lot size for the single-family lots shall be 4,000 square feet. 

e. The minimum lot width at the front building line shall be 30 feet. 

f. The minimum side yard setback for a primary structure shall be 20% of the average lot 

width for the combination of the two side yards for single family lots and 10% of the 

average lot width for the one side yard for twin home lots. 

g. The minimum side yard setback for a primary structure shall be 5 feet. 

h. The minimum side yard setback for all structures on the side yard facing 37
th

 Avenue 

NW shall be 15 feet. 

i. The minimum front yard setback for a garage door facing the street shall be 25 feet.  

Other portions of the structure may be developed within 20 feet of the front property line, 

including any 2
nd

 floor overhang. 

j. The minimum rear yard setback for a primary structure on Lots 20 through 34, Block 1 

shall be 15 feet and for all other lots 20 feet. 

k. The maximum building footprint for all structures on lots 1A through 15A and 16 

through 20, Block 1 shall be 30% of the lot area. 

l. The maximum building footprint for all structures on lots 21 through 34, Block 1 shall be 

50% of the lot area. 

m. The maximum building footprint for all structures on lots 1 through 9 and 11 through 22, 

Block 2 shall be 35% of the lot area. 

n. The floor area ratio (FAR) for all structures on a lot shall be 0.8. 



Resolutions and Ordinances No. 3 

o. The property owner shall be responsible to install a sidewalk in the boulevard along the 

property line prior to occupying the dwelling or within the next construction season after 

occupancy if this delay is approved by the city. 

p. The property owner shall be responsible to install landscaping within the next growing 

season after occupancy. 

q. Lot 10, Block 2 shall be developed as a detention pond that is owned and maintained by 

all lot owners within the subdivision through a home owners association. 

r. Lots 1B, 2B, 2C, 2D, 3B, 3C, 4B, 4C, 5B, 5C, 6B, 6C, 7B, 8B, 8C, 9B, 9C, 10B, 11B, 

12B, 12C, 12D, 13B, 13C, 14B, 14C, 15B and 15C are not buildable lots and may be sold 

separately. 

s. The width of the driveway apron shall be limited to the width of the garage or 36 feet 

whichever is less. 

t. The street to be created within this subdivision shall be constructed within an 80 foot 

wide right-of-way and have a 31 foot wide paved surface with 1 foot wide mountable 

curbs on both sides. 

u. Sidewalks may be constructed against the property line and fire hydrants may be located 

between two and seven feet behind the back of curb.  

 

SECTION 2.  RE-ENACTMENT.  Section 21-03-02 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances is 

hereby re-enacted as amended.  The city principal planner is authorized and directed to make the 

necessary changes upon the official zoning map of the city in accordance with this section.   

 

           

President, Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

 

                                             

City Administrator 

 

Public Hearing:    _______________ 

First Consideration:    _______________  

Second Consideration and Final Passage:   _______________ 
 

 


	Agenda 19, 2016
	Minutes - April 5, 2016 regular mtg.
	Minutes - April 5, 2016 Board of Equalization
	Public Hearing 1 - Lakewood 8th First replat PUD 2016-01 Ord. 1238
	Public Hearing 2 - Ash Grove Estates PUD 2016-02 Ord. 1239
	Bid 1 - SID D201 Project 2015-11 (Meadowlands Addition)
	Bike to Work Week & Day proclamation
	Mandan Dacotah Lions Club STRIDES: Lions Walk for Diabetes Awareness proclamation
	National Music Week proclamation
	Mandan & ND PERS LE Contract Agreement
	Mandan Moose 425 Special Sunday Openings
	American Foundation for Wildlife site authorization at Lakewood Bar & Grill
	American Foundation for Wildlife site authorization at Last Call Bar
	Dacotah Speedway Annual Liq. Lic., Spec. B Liq. Lic. & Spec. Sunday Openings
	Mandan Baseball Club, Inc. site authorization at Powerhouse/501
	Mandan Baseball Club, Inc. site authorization at Rock Point
	Mandan Baseball Club, Inc. site authorization at Broken Oar - added 4-19-16
	2016 Election ballot-Publication of Minutes
	Public Works Expansion Architect Service Contract - revised 4-19-16
	Public Works Expansion Architect Service Contract
	MGF 1i Restaurant Rewards Application Overview
	Restaurant Rewards Application - recommended
	Restaurant Incentive Program - Revisions Proposed
	MGF 1ii Retail & Restaurant Incentive Clarifications
	Retail & Restaurant Incentive Program - MGF Revisions
	Visitor Way-Finding Signage Project - Revised 4-18-16 
	Visitor Wayfinding Signage 1 of 4 revised 4-18-16
	Visitor Wayfinding Signs 2 of 4 revised 4-18-16
	Visitor Wayfinding Signs 3 of 4 revised 4-18-16
	Visitor Wayfinding Signs 4 of 4 revised 4-18-16
	Visitor Wayfinding Ad for Bids added 4-21-16
	NB 3 - 3way Big Sky Additions Jude Lane NW 2016-10
	NB 4 Advertisement for bid 2016-07 SID 206
	NB 5 3way West Hills 4th Addition 2016-02
	NB 6 SID 203 Project 2016-03 
	NB 7 Amendment to Joint Powers Agreement, City & Park District - revised 4-19-16
	NB 7 Amendment to Joint Powers Agreement, City & Park District
	Res & Ord. 1 - Ord. 1237 Emerald Ash Borer & Dutch Elm Disease
	Res. & Ord. 2 - Ord. 1238 Lakewood 8th First Replat PUD 2016-01
	Res. & Ord. 3 - Ord. 1239 Ash Grove estates PUD 2016-02



